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SAIC DELIVERS
REAL INNOVATION

REAL INDEPENDEN (g



have the experience and knowledge to help custc
- make better choices on how to leverage new ar di
technologies and resolve technology conjcerh_s’
s Real value is our promise to our custofl'léf
B 2 tions stay close to their customers, h‘eli_‘

) 2 important reason:
e deliver the best solutiensforeurcustomeys. .|




MESSAGE ™ STOCKHOLDERS

SAIC delivered superb results in both technical
and financial performance this past year. | want
to thank the two groups responsible for our suc-
cess — our customers and our employees.

Our customers face some of the most difficult
and mission-critical challenges in the United
States and even the world. At SAIC, it is our privi-
lege to help meet those challenges. The high-
caliber work that our men and women perform
every day makes real contributions to the security
and defense of our nation, and to cancer research,
education, environmental cleanup, robotics, space
exploration, and countless other areas.

I am especially proud of the SAIC employees
who have made service to country a central part

of their lives. Some of the most admirable are the
SAIC employees working in unstable regions of
the world, such as Irag and Afghanistan, in order
to protect our freedom.

Most of all, we at SAIC are honored by our cus-
tomers’ trust and confidence in our experience,
ability, and integrity. | could talk about our strong
ethics program, and the fact that SAIC has been
a member of the Defense Industry initiative on
Business Ethics and Conduct since its formation
in 1987. But the bottom line is how we execute
for our customers. SAIC executes approximately
9,000 contracts annually, and last fiscal year we
had a 95% win rate on recompete contracts.

We earn our customers’ trust each time we




execute and innovate, and perform and deliver.
We believe this is the best way to thank our cus-
tomers for their business and support.

Because of our customers’ confidence in SAIC,
our compary revenues were $7.2 billion in Fiscal
Year 2005, a 23% increase for the company as a
whole. Operating income rose 24%.

We set records in total contract awards and in
funded contract backlog. But the most dramatic
move occurred in our cash flow from operating
activities, which jumped 61%. Cash flow is the
lifeblood of our company, generating free cash to
make strategic acquisitions and investments to
fuel our growth and create long-term value.

Bxtracrdinary growth in government business
The key driver for our growth was outstanding
performance in our government business, led by
Duane Andrews, who was recently promoted to
Chief Operating Officer. Achieving this extraor-
dinary growth meant capturing market share
from determined competitors in an environment
where many government budgets were flat or
nearly so. Last year, you heard me say we were
creating a more streamlined organization with
sharper customer and market focus. These out-
standing results speak for themselves.

Four of the five operating groups turned in
stellar performances. Mark Hughes' systems and
network group, Carl Albero’s naval engineering
group, and George Singley’s transformation and
logistics group grew 37%, 30%, and 21%, respec-
tively. Don Foley's intelligence and research group
grew 32%, becoming the largest in the com-
pany. Don accepted a new position as our Chief
Engineering & Technology Officer, and in FYO6, his
organization divided into two new groups, now
led by Trey Smith and Larry Prior.

Larry Peck’s enterprise infrastructure group
also delivered market-beating growth and won
one of SAIC's most important contracts — the U.S.
Army's Guardian Installation Protection Program.

Most of our growth came from the national
sécurity arena, whére we contintied to find new
opportunities and win market share.

Our work with civil agencies also showed saolid
growth and strong potential. As those agencies
upgrade their IT infrastructures, we expect to see
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many opportunities for growth in this arena.

‘Our changing business portfolio
.Our business and technology portfolio must

reflect changing business realities. Shortly after
fiscal year end, we completed the sale of our
Telcordia Technologies subsidiary to Providence

.Equity Partners and Warburg Pincus. The sale

+

— which has a pre-tax value of approximately

$1.35 billion in cash - strengthens SAIC's balance

sheet and provides funds to pursue other

strategic initiatives. Since Telcordia has now been
classified as a discontinued operation, the SAIC

revenue, operating income, and cash flow results | - *°
| cited earlier do not include Telcorgiafg finaricial

results. . 5 " -

Telcordia’s market “ the commercial telecom * ¢
space = has suffered a number of setbacks in
recent years. I'm deﬁghie'd we found two firmsg, . 7
that uriderstand Telcordia’s market space and
strong potential; this imprdves Telcordia’s prob-
ability of success within a consolidating industry.
While the commercial telecom market
struggled, SAIC's'telecom work for government
customers grew dramatically. Our government
telecom business now generates hundreds of

_millions of dollars in annual revenues. Our work

involves advanced optical networks and satellite
communications, management of converged net-
works, and high-level security.

We remain committed to the commercial
space and see many new opportunities emerg-

. ing. For example, we are well positioned to help

the “super majors” in the oil industry transition

" next-generation digital oil field technology from

successful pilots to full-scale deployment. Already,

. we are helping Shell, ChevronTexaco, and BP
' develop and deploy the technologies needed to

make the next generation oilfield a reality.

Discipline and entrepreneurship - the keys to
our future
We are now working to build a stronger SAIC, bet-

ter able to win and execute larger systems inte-
‘ gratibn contracts. At the same time, we continue

to strengthen the,parts of our culture that made
SAIC a multibillion-dollar engine of growth in

- professional sefvices and smaller contracts,
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To do so, our culture is embracinz both disci-
pline and entrepreneurship. The 1atter has always
been in great supply in SAIC. Wesintroduced more
of the former when we launched new strategic
campaigns in what, we believe, will be our most
important growth areas. The experience and
insights of our Directors and top managers were
crucial in creating these campaigns, which will
guide our efforts to capture future key contracts.

Our FY06 operating plan is tightly integrated
with our new strategic campaigns and our stra-
tegic imperatives for technology development,
acquisitions, and improvements to our informa-
tion technology infrastructure.

Employee diversity and empowerment
Going forward, we must hire, retain and grow the
best and brightest from diverse backgrounds and

-

experiences. Our future success depends on it.

To do so, we strengthened initiatives to grow
future leaders, improve workforce diversity, and
expand training opportunities. We also strength-
ened our capabilities in pivotal jobs such as “pro-
grdm manager” and “systems engineer.”

And we still believe our employee ownership
culture is one of the keys to motivate the best
and brightest to perform at tbp‘leve]s_ for our.
customers. That's why we continue to-seek ways
to strengthen this important part of our heritage
—and-our future.

&%/bww%gf,

KEN DAHLBERG
CEQ, President, and Chairman of the Board
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An Employee-Owned Company

SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
10260 Campus Point Drive
San Diego, California 92121

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held June 10, 2005

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Science Applications
International Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), will be held in the Grand Ballroom of the
La Jolla Marriott Hotel, 4240 La Jolla Village Drive, San Diego, California, on Friday, June 10, 2005, at 10:00
A.M. (local time), for the following purposes:

1. To elect four Class III Directors, each for a term of three years;
2. To vote on a stockholder proposal regarding the Company’s classified Board; and
3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any

adjournments, postponements or continuations thereof.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 26, 2005, are entitled to notice of and to vote at
the Annual Meeting and at any and all adjournments, postponements or continuations thereof. A list of
stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting will be available for inspection at the office of the Secretary of the
Company at 10010 Campus Point Drive, San Diego, California for at least 10 days prior to the meeting and will
also be available for inspection at the meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

OE Soitt

D.E. SCOTT
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

San Diego, California
May 12, 2005

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting. However, to ensure that your shares are
represented at the meeting, please submit your proxy (1) over the Internet, (2) by telephone or (3) by mail.
For specific instructions, please refer to the questions and answers beginning on the first page of this proxy
statement and the instructions on the enclosed proxy card. Submitting a proxy will not prevent you from
attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person, if you so desire, but will help the Company secure a
quorum and reduce the expense of additional proxy solicitation.
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An Employee-Owned Company

SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
10260 Campus Point Drive
San Diego, California 92121

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held June 10, 2005

PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is being furnished to the stockholders of Science Applications International
Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), in connection with the solicitation of proxies by its Board
of Directors for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company (the “Annual Meeting”) to be held in
the Grand Ballroom of the La Jolla Marriott Hotel, 4240 La Jolla Village Drive, San Diego, California, on
Friday, June 10, 2005, at 10:00 A.M. (local time), and at any and all adjournments, postponements or
continuations thereof. This Proxy Statement and the enclosed form of proxy are first being mailed to the
stockholders of the Company on or about May 12, 2005.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING
What is the purpose of the Annual Meeting?

At the Annual Meeting, the stockholders of the Company are being asked to consider and vote upon:

1. the election of four Class III Directors, each for a term of three years;
2. a stockholder proposal regarding the Company’s classified Board; and
3. such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments,

postponements or continuations thereof.
When and where will the Annual Meeting be held?

The Annual Meeting will be held in the Grand Ballroom of the La Jolla Marriott Hotel, 4240 La Jolla
Village Drive, San Diego, California, on Friday, June 10, 2005, at 10:00 A.M. (local time).

Who can attend the Annual Meeting?

All stockholders or their duly appointed proxies may attend the meeting.




INFORMATION ABOUT VOTING RIGHTS AND SOLICITATION OF PROXIES
Who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only stockholders of record of the Company’s Class A common stock, par value $.01 per share (the “Class
A common stock™), and/or Class B common stock, par value $.05 per share (the “Class B common stock™), as of
the close of business on April 26, 2005 (the “Record Date”), are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual
Meeting. As of the Record Date, the Company had 174,753,404 shares of Class A common stock and 216,593
shares of Class B common stock outstanding. The Company has no other class of capital stock outstanding. The
Class A common stock and the Class B common stock are collectively referred to herein as the “Common Stock”
and vote together as a single class on all matters.

What constitutes a quorum?

The presence at the meeting, either in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the total voting
power of the shares of Common Stock outstanding on the Record Date is necessary to constitute a quorum and to
conduct business at the Annual Meeting. Although abstentions may be specified on all proposals (other than the
election of Directors), abstentions will only be counted as present for purposes of determining the presence of a
quorum.

How many votes am I entitled to?

Each holder of Class A common stock will be entitled to one vote per share and each holder of Class B
common stock will be entitled to 20 votes per share, in person or by proxy, for each share of Common Stock held
in such stockholder’s name as of the Record Date on any matter submitted to a vote of stockholders at the Annual
Meeting. However, in the election of Directors, all shares are entitled to be voted cumulatively. Accordingly, in
voting for Directors: (i) each share of Class A common stock is entitled to as many votes as there are Directors to
be elected, (ii) each share of Class B common stock is entitled to 20 times as many votes as there are Directors to
be elected and (iii) each stockholder may cast all of such votes for a single nominee or distribute them among any
two or more nominees as such stockholder chooses. To apportion your votes among two or more nominees other
than on a pro rata basis, you must submit your proxy using a proxy card or by voting in person at the Annual
Meeting. You may not submit your proxy over the Internet or by telephone if you wish to distribute your votes
unevenly among two or more nominees. Unless otherwise directed, shares represented by properly executed
proxies will be voted at the discretion of the proxy holders so as to elect the maximum number of the Board of
Directors’ nominees that may be elected by cumulative voting.

How do I vote my shares?

Shares of Common Stock represented by properly executed proxies received in time for voting at the
Annual Meeting will, unless such proxies have previously been revoked, be voted in accordance with the
instructions indicated thereon. In the absence of specific instructions, the shares represented by properly executed
proxies will be voted FOR the election of Directors so as to elect the maximum number of the Board of
Directors’ nominees that may be elected by cumulative voting and AGAINST the stockholder proposal regarding
the Company’s classified Board. No business other than that set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual
Meeting is expected to come before the Annual Meeting; however, should any other matter requiring a vote of
stockholders properly come before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the proxy holders to vote such
shares in accordance with their best judgment on such matter.

There are four different ways to vote your shares:

Vote by Internet:  You may submit a proxy or voting instructions by the Internet by following the
instructions at www.proxyvote.com.
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Vote by Telephone: You may submit a proxy or voting instructions by calling 1-800-690-6903 and
following the instructions.

Vote by Mail: 1f you received your proxy materials via the U.S. mail, you may complete, sign and return
the accompanying proxy and voting instruction card in the postage-paid envelope provided.

Vote in Person: If you are a stockholder as of the Record Date and attend the meeting, you may vote in
person at the meeting.

Submitting a proxy will not prevent a stockholder from attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person.
Any proxy may be revoked at any time prior to the exercise thereof by delivering in a timely manner a written
revocation or a new proxy bearing a later date to the Secretary of the Company as described below, or by
attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. The mailing address of the Corporate Secretary is 10260
Campus Point Drive, San Diego, California 92121. Attendance at the Annual Meeting will not, however, in and
of itself constitute a revocation of a proxy.

How are the shares held by the Retirement Plans voted?

Each participant in the Employee Stock Retirement Plan (“ESRP”) and the 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan
(“401(k) Profit Sharing Plan”) of the Company, the Telcordia Technologies 401(k) Savings Plan of Telcordia
Technologies, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company until its sale on March 15, 2005 (the “Telcordia
Plan”), and the AMSEC Employees 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan of AMSEC LLC, a joint venture in which the
Company owns 55% (the “AMSEC Plan”) (collectively, the “Retirement Plans”) has the right to instruct
Vanguard Fiduciary Trust Company (the ‘“Trustee”), as trustee of the Retirement Plans, on a confidential basis
how to vote his or her proportionate interests in all allocated shares of Common Stock held in the Retirement
Plans. The Trustee will vote all allocated shares held in the Retirement Plans as to which no voting instructions
are received, together with all unallocated shares held in the Retirement Plans, in the same proportion, on a plan-
by-plan basis, as the allocated shares for which voting instructions have been received. The Trustee’s duties with
respect to voting the Common Stock in the Retirement Plans are governed by the fiduciary provisions of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”). The fiduciary provisions of ERISA
may require, in certain limited circumstances, that the Trustee override the votes of participants with respect to
the Common Stock held by the Trustee and to determine, in the Trustee’s best judgment, how to vote the shares.

How are the shares held by the Stock Plans voted?

Under the terms of the Company’s Stock Compensation Plan, Management Stock Compensation Plan and
Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan (collectively, the “Stock Plans™), Wachovia Bank, N.A. (“Wachovia”), as
trustee of the Stock Plans, has the power to vote the shares of Class A common stock held by Wachovia in the
Stock Plans. Wachovia will vote all such shares of Class A common stock in the same proportion that the other
stockholders of the Company vote their shares of Common Stock.

Who is soliciting these proxies?

The Company is soliciting these proxies and the cost of the solicitation will be borne by the Company,
including the charges and expenses of persons holding shares in their name as nominee for forwarding proxy
materials to the beneficial owners of such shares. In addition to the use of the mails, proxies may be solicited by
officers, Directors and regular employees of the Company in person, by telephone or by email. Such individuals
will not be additionally compensated for such solicitation but may be reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with such solicitation.

PROPOSAL I—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation provides for a “classified” Board of Directors consisting of
three classes which shall be as equal in number as possible. The number of authorized Directors is currently fixed
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at 15 Directors, with four Directors in Class III, five Directors in each of Class I and II and one vacancy. The
Board of Directors will review the authorized number of Directors at its next meeting to determine whether to fix
the authorized number of Directors at a lower number or appoint individuals to fill any vacancies.

At the Annual Meeting, four Class III Directors are to be elected to serve three-year terms ending in 2008 or
until their successors are elected and qualified or their earlier retirement, death, resignation or removal or
disqualification from service as a Director pursuant to any current or future provision of the Bylaws. Currently,
W.A. Downing, D.H. Foley, A.K. Jones and E.J. Sanderson, Jr. serve as Class III Directors. All such Class III
Directors will be standing for reelection with the exception of W.A. Downing. In addition, J.J. Hamre has been
nominated to stand for election as a Class III Director. All nominees have been nominated by the Board of Directors
based on the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The four nominees who
receive the most votes will be elected as Class III Directors. It is intended that, unless otherwise indicated, the proxy
holders will vote FOR the election of Directors so as to elect the maximum number of the Board of Directors’
nominees that may be elected by cumulative voting. Abstentions and withheld votes will have no effect on the
outcome of this vote. Each nominee has consented to be named in this proxy statement and to serve if elected. To
the best knowledge of the Board of Directors, all of the nominees are, and will be, able and willing to serve. In the
event that any of the four nominees listed below should become unable to stand for election at the Annual Meeting,
the proxy holders intend to vote for such other person, if any, as may be designated by the Board of Directors, in the
place and stead of any nominee unable to serve. Alternatively, the Board of Directors may elect, pursuant to Section
3.02 of the Company’s Bylaws, to fix the authorized number of Directors at a lower number to give the Nominating
Committee of the Board of Directors additional time to evaluate candidates.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR each nominee. Set forth below is a brief
biography of each nominee for election as a Class III Director and of all other members of the Board of Directors
who will continue in office:

NOMINEES FOR ELECTION AS CLASS 1II DIRECTORS—TERM ENDING 2008

D.H. Foley, age 60

Executive Vice President and Director Director since 2002
Dr. Foley joined the Company in 1992 and has served as an Executive Vice President since 2000, Group
President since February 2004, and a Director since July 2002. In January 2005 he was appointed as Chief
Engineering and Technology Officer. Dr. Foley served as a Sector Vice President from 1992 to 2000.

J.J. Hamre, age 54 Nominee for Director
Dr. Hamre has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Center for Strategic & International
Studies, a public policy research institution, since 2000. Prior thereto, Dr. Hamre served as U.S. Deputy
Secretary of Defense from 1997 to 2000 and Under Secretary of Defense (Comptroller) from 1993 to 1997.

Dr. Hamre is also a member of the Board of Directors of ChoicePoint, Inc., ITT Industries, Inc., Integrated
Nano-Technologies and MITRE Corporation.

A.K. Jones, age 63

Director Director since 1998
Dr. Jones is the Quarles Professor of Engineering at the University of Virginia where she has taught since
1989. From 1993 to 1997, Dr. Jones was on leave of absence from the University to serve as Director of
Defense Research and Engineering in the U.S. Department of Defense. Dr. Jones also served as a Director of
the Company from 1987 to 1993.

E.J. Sanderson, Jr., age 56

Director Director since 2002
Mr. Sanderson retired from Oracle Corporation in 2001 after having served as an Executive Vice President
since 1995. At Oracle, Mr. Sanderson was responsible for Oracle Product Industries, Oracle Consulting, and
the Latin American Division. Prior to that he was President of Unisys World-wide Services and partner at both
McKinsey & Company and Accenture (formerly Andersen Consulting). Mr. Sanderson is also a member of the
Board of Directors of Quantum Corporation and serves on several non-profit boards.
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CLASS I DIRECTORS—TERM ENDING 2006

W.H. Demisch, age 60

Director Director since 1990
Mr. Demisch has been a principal of Demisch Associates LLC, a consulting firm, since 2003. He was a
Managing Director of Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein, formerly Wasserstein Perella Securities, Inc., from
1998 to 2002. From 1993 to 1998, he was Managing Director of BT Alex. Brown, and from 1988 to 1993, he
was Managing Director of UBS Securities, Inc.

J.A. Drummond, age 65

Director Director since 2003
Mr. Drummond was employed by BellSouth Corporation from 1962 until his retirement in December 2001. He
served as Vice Chairman of BellSouth Corporation from January 2000 until his retirement. He was President
and Chief Executive Officer of BellSouth Communications Group, a provider of traditional telephone
operations and products, from January 1998 until December 1999. He was President and Chief Executive
Officer of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. from January 1995 until December 1997. Mr. Drummond is
also a member of the Board of Directors of Borg-Warner Automotive, AirTran Holdings, Inc. and Centillium
Communications, Inc.

J.E. Glancy, age 59

Director Director since 1994
Dr. Glancy joined the Company in 1976 and served as an Executive Vice President until January 2004 when
he commenced part-time employment. Prior thereto, Dr. Glancy served as a Corporate Executive Vice
President from 1994 to 2000.

H.M.]J. Kraemer, Jr., age 50

Director ‘ Director since 1997
Mr. Kraemer has been an executive partner of Madison Dearborn Partners, LLC, a private equity investment
firm, since April 2005, and has served as an adjunct professor at the Kellogg School of Management at
Northwestern University since January 2005. Prior thereto, Mr. Kraemer served as the Chairman of Baxter
International, Inc. (“Baxter”), a health-care products, systems and services company, from January 2000 until
April 2004, as Chief Executive Officer of Baxter from January 1999 until April 2004 and as President of
Baxter from April 1997 until April 2004. Mr. Kraemer also served as the Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Baxter from November 1993 to April 1997.

C.B. Malone, age 68

Director Director since 1993
Ms. Malone has served as the President of Financial & Management Consulting, Inc., a consulting company,
since 1982. Ms. Malone is also a member of the Board of Directors of Hasbro, Inc., Lafarge North America,
Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and Novell, Inc.

CLASS Il DIRECTORS—TERM ENDING 2007

D.P. Andrews, age 60 :

Corporate Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Director Director since 1996
Mr. Andrews joined the Company in 1993 and has served as a Corporate Executive Vice President since
January 1998. In January 2005, he was appointed Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Andrews served as President
and Chief Operating Officer of Federal Business from December 2003 to January 2004 and as Executive Vice
President for Corporate Development from 1995 to 1998. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Andrews served
as Assistant Secretary of Defense from 1989 to 1993,
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K.C. Dahlberg, age 60

Chief Executive Officer, President, Chairman of the Board and Director Director since 2003
Mr. Dahlberg has served as Chairman of the Board since July 2004 and Chief Executive Officer and President
since November 2003. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Dahlberg was with General Dynamics Corp. from
March 2001 to October 2003, where he served as Executive Vice President. Mr. Dahlberg was with Raytheon
International from February 2000 to March 2001, where he served as President, and from 1997 to 2000 he
served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Raytheon Systems Company. Mr. Dahlberg held various
positions with Hughes Aircraft from 1967 to 1997.

J.P. Walkush, age 53

Executive Vice President and Director Director since 1996
Mr. Walkush joined the Company in 1976 and has served as an Executive Vice President since 2000. Prior
thereto, Mr. Walkush served as a Sector Vice President from 1994 to 2000.

J.H. Warner, Jr., age 64

Corporate Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer and Director Director since 1988
Dr. Warner joined the Company in 1973 and has served as a Corporate Executive Vice President since 1996
and Chief Administrative Officer since December 2003. Prior thereto, Dr. Warner served as an Executive Vice
President from 1989 to 1996.

A.T. Young, age 67

Director Director since 1995
Mr. Young retired from Lockheed Martin Corp. in 1995 after having served as an Executive Vice President
from March 1995 to July 1995. Prior to its merger with Lockheed Corporation, Mr. Young served as the
President and Chief Operating Officer of Martin Marietta Corp. from 1990 to 1995. Mr. Young is also on the
Board of Directors of the Goodrich Corporation and Potomac Electric Power Company.

PROPOSAL II—STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL REGARDING THE COMPANY’S CLASSIFIED BOARD

This proposal was submitted by Christopher A. Smith, 3440 Hamlin Road, Lafayette, California 94549. As
of the Record Date, Mr. Smith beneficially owned 27,384 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock.

Resolved: That SAIC stockholders recommend that the Board of Directors take the necessary steps, in
compliance with state law, to declassify the Board for the purpose of director elections and to implement annual
director elections. The Board’s declassification shall be completed in a manner that does not affect the unexpired
terms of directors previously elected.

Stockholder’s Supporting Statement
The Board of Directors is currently separated into three classes. Each year stockholders are requested to vote

on directors comprising one of the classes for a three-year term. Because of the classified (or “staggered”) board
structure, stockholders have the opportunity to vote only on roughly one-third of the directors each year,

In 2004, as reported in SAIC’s 10-Q quarterly report for the period ended July 31, 2004, a shareholder
proposal recommending that the Board of Directors take the necessary steps, in compliance with state law, to
declassify the Board for purposes of director elections and to implement annual director elections was rejected by
a vote of 105,079,635 votes against and 21,953,031 for, while 7,275,353 shares abstained.

The proponent is of the opinion that:

* A classified board structure reduces the accountability of directors to stockholders. The ability of
stockholders to vote on all directors each year will maintain and enhance accountability.
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* Annual elections of directors will enable stockholders, including many managers and officers at
SAIC, to have their views reflected currently and on a broader basis.

+  Corporate governance will be enhanced through a closer linkage between the stockholders and directors.

» Elimination of the classified board will create an environment that encourages directors to consider
new and innovative ways to positively impact shareholder value.

The shareholder urges you to research this issue and to mark your proxy FOR this resolution.
Board of Directors’ Statement in Opposition to the Stockholder Proposal

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote AGAINST this proposal for the reasons set
forth below.

The Board of Directors has carefully considered the arguments for and against a classified board,
particularly in light of the vote on a similar proposal at last year’s Annual Meeting. The Board of Directors has
concluded that continuing SAIC’s classified board is in the best mterests of our stockholders and opposes the
proposal to change it for the following reasons:

* Previous Opposition by SAIC Stockholders. Mr. Smith presented an identical proposal to our
stockholders last year which was rejected by our stockholders Our stockholders determined last year that
this proposal was not in their best interests.

* Continuity and Stability. The Company’s employee ownership philosophy and structure is unique and
significantly different from other public companies. The classified board structure allows for a majority
of directors to have the benefit of experience with our employee ownership, stock pricing and other
policies and values that we believe differentiate the Company from most of its competitors.

* Long-Term Focus. The Board of Directors is the governing body that has oversight responsibilities for
the Company’s strategic, long-term planning. The Board of Directors believes that a classified board with
staggered, three-year terms for directors promotes a longer-term focus and better facilitates the
Company’s long-term planning process. ‘

* Value Protection. For many companies, a classified board is viewed as one of the primary means to
protect the company against the abuses that can result from a hostile takeover attempt. Although a
classified board would not prevent an unsolicited takeover from being consummated, it could give the
Board additional time to consider alternative proposals and act in the best interests of the Company and
its stockholders. The Board of Directors believes that the continuation of our classified board structure
would help protect against hostile takeover attempts not deemed to be in the best interests of
stockholders.

» Director Accountability and Corporate Governance. The Board of Directors believes that electing
directors to three-year terms does not reduce their accountability or linkage to our stockholders. Directors
have the same legal duties and responsibilities to the Company, regardless of the length of their term.
Directors who are elected to three-year terms are not insulated from legal responsibility, are just as
accountable to stockholders as those who are elected annually and are just as likely to consider innovative
ways to positively impact stockholder value.

*» Director Recruitment and Retention. Three-year terms may be more attractive to highly qualified
individuals who are likely to be in demand for other board positions. As a result, the Company’s current
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three-year director term may make it easier for the Company to attract and retain highly qualified
candidates who will provide valuable oversight of the Company, benefiting all stockholders.

Unanimous Recommendation of the Board of Directors; Vote Required

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote AGAINST the stockholder proposal. The
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of Class A common stock and Class B common
stock, voting together as a single class, present or represented and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is
required to approve the proposal. Shares of Common Stock represented by properly executed, timely received
and unrevoked proxies will be voted in accordance with the instructions indicated thereon. A stockholder who
signs and submits a ballot or proxy is “present,” so an abstention will have the same effect as a vote against the
proposal. In the absence of specific instructions, properly executed, timely received and unrevoked proxies will
be voted AGAINST the stockholder proposal.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board of Directors Meetings and Committees

During the year ended January 31, 2005 (“Fiscal 2005”), the Board of Directors held eight meetings.
Average attendance at such meetings of the Board of Directors was 94%. During Fiscal 2005, all incumbent
Directors attended at least 75% of the aggregate of the meetings of the Board of Directors.and committees of the
Board of Directors. In addition, all Directors other than J.E. Glancy attended the 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders. It is the Company’s policy that all Directors attend the Company’s annual meetings.

The Board of Directors has the following standing committees: an Audit Committee, a Compensation
Committee, an Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee, an Executive Committee, a Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee and a Stock Policy Committee. The charters of all committees of the Board of
Directors are available at the Company’s website at www .saic.com/corporategovernance/.

Audit Committee

The functions of the Audit Committee are described below under the heading “Audit Committee Report”
and the Audit Committee’s charter is attached to this Proxy Statement as Annex I. The Audit Committee held ten
meetings during Fiscal 2005. The Audit Committee is comprised of five independent directors as defined by the
current listing standards of the National Association of Securities Dealers and the Company’s Corporate
Governance Guidelines. The Board of Directors has determined that J.A. Drummond, H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr. and
C.B. Malone qualify as Audit Committee financial experts as defined by the rules under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended. The current members of the Audit Committee are C.B. Malone (Chairperson),

W.H. Demisch, J.A. Drummond, A.K. Jones and H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee’s responsibilities include: (i) determining the compensation of the Chief
Executive Officer and reviewing and approving the compensation of the other executive officers named pursuant
to Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; (ii) approving and evaluating compensation plans, policies
and programs, including incentive compensation and equity-based plans for employees and officers;

(iii) preparing an annual report on executive compensation for inclusion in the Company’s proxy statement or
Annual Report on Form 10-K, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and (iv) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board regarding director compensation. The
Compensation Committee held eight meetings during Fiscal 2005. The Compensation Committee consists of
Directors who are “independent” as defined by the current listing standards of the National Association of
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Securities Dealers and the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines. The current members of the
Compensation Committee are E.J. Sanderson, Jr. (Chairperson), W.H. Demisch and A.K. Jones.

Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee

The Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee duties include: (i) reviewing and making
recommendations regarding the ethical responsibilities of the Company’s employees and consultants under the
Company’s administrative policies and procedures; (ii) reviewing and assessing the Company’s policies and
procedures addressing the resolution of conflicts of interest involving the Company, its employees, officers and
directors and addressing any potential conflict of interest involving the Company and a director or an executive
officer; (iii) reviewing and establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
regarding violation of the Company’s policies, procedures and standards related to ethical conduct and legal
compliance and (iv) reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s ethics, compliance and training
programs and related administrative policies. The Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee held four
meetings during Fiscal 2005. The current members of the Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee are
A.K. Jones (Chair), W.A. Downing, J.A. Drummond, C.B. Malone and J.H. Warner, Jr.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee’s charter provides that, to the extent permitted by Delaware law, it shall have and
may exercise all powers and authorities of the Board of Directors with respect to the following: (i) taking action
on behalf of the Board of Directors during intervals between regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of
Directors if it is impractical to delay action on a matter until the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of
Directors; (ii) overseeing and assisting management in the formulation and implementation of scientific research
policies; (iii) authorizing and approving the offer, issuance or sale of the Company’s capital stock;

(iv) authorizing the filing of registration statements, reports and other documents with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and with state securities commissions; (v) authorizing the calling of the Annual Meeting
of Stockholders of the Company; (vi) within certain limits established by the Board or Directors, approving the
acquisition of the business or assets of another company; (vii) authorizing the preparation and filing of
documentation to effect a merger between the Company and one or more subsidiary corporations; (viii)
reviewing and approving various financial matters, including matters pertaining to the capital structure of the
Company, the Company’s financial projections, plans and strategies, the Company’s capital budget and capital
budgeting processes, plans and strategies and the Company’s treasury operations, investment strategies, banking
and cash management arrangements and financial risk management, including the Company’s policies and
procedures related thereto and (ix) authorizing the opening of bank accounts in the name of the Company,
approving the establishment of loans or letters of credit and guaranteeing the repayment of indebtedness or
contractual performance of majority-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The Executive Committee held five
meetings during Fiscal 2005. The current members of the Executive Committee are A.T. Young (Chairperson),
D.P. Andrews, K.C. Dahlberg, W.H. Demisch, J.E. Glancy, HM.J. Kraemer, Jr. and E.J. Sanderson, Jr.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s responsibilities include: (i) identifying and
recommending individuals qualified to become members of the Board of Directors, consistent with the criteria
approved by the Board; (ii) reviewing and making recommendations regarding the composition and procedures
of the Board of Directors; (iii) developing and recommending to the Board a set of corporate governance
principles; (iv) making recommendations regarding the size, composition and charters of the committees of the
Board; (v) reviewing and developing long-range plans for Chief Executive Officer and management succession
and (vi) developing and overseeing an annual self-evaluation process of the Board and its committees. A copy of
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s charter is available at the Company’s website at
www.saic.com/corporategovernance/.
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The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held six meetings during Fiscal 2005. The current
members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are J.A. Drummond (Chairperson),
D.P. Andrews, K.C. Dahlberg, C.B. Malone, J.H. Warner, Jr. and A.T. Young. J.A. Drummond, C.B. Malone and
A.T. Young are independent directors as defined by the current listing standards of the National Association of
Securities Dealers and the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers recommendations for director nominees
from a wide variety of sources, including members of our Board, business contacts, community leaders and
members of our management. To date, the Company has not utilized the services of any third parties to which it
paid a fee to assist in identifying or evaluating candidates. The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee also would consider any stockholder recommendation for director nominees that is properly received
in accordance with our Bylaws, as discussed below, and applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

The Board of Directors has delegated to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee the
responsibility for recommending nominees for membership on the Board. In discharging this responsibility, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee receives input from the Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes its membership should reflect a broad range of experience, knowledge and
judgment beneficial to the broad business diversity of the Company. The Company expects a high level of
commitment from the Directors and will review a candidate’s other commitments and service on other boards to
ensure that the candidate has sufficient time to devote to the Company. In recommending nominees for
membership on the Board, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commiittee will observe the following
principles: (i) a majority of Directors must meet the independence criteria established by the Company, (ii) based
upon the desired Board size of 12 Directors, no more than five Directors may be employees of the Company,

(iii) only full-time employees who serve as either the Chief Executive Officer or a direct report to the Chief
Executive Officer will be considered as candidates for an employee director position and (iv) no director
nominee may be a consultant to the Company.

Any stockholder may nominate a person for election as a Director of the Company by complying with the
procedure set forth in the Company’s Bylaws. Pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Company’s Bylaws, in order for a
stockholder to nominate a person for election as a Director, such stockholder must give timely notice to the
Secretary of the Company prior to the meeting at which Directors are to be elected. To be timely, notice must be
received by the Secretary not less than 50 days nor more than 75 days prior to the meeting (or if fewer than 65
days’ notice or prior public disclosure of the meeting date is given or made to stockholders, not later than the
15th day following the day on which the notice of the date of the meeting was mailed or such public disclosure
was made). Such notice must contain certain information about the nominee, including his or her name, age,
business and residence addresses and principal occupation during the past five years, the class and number of
shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by such nominee and such other information as would be required
to be included in a proxy statement soliciting proxies for the election of the proposed nominee. The notice must
also contain certain information about the stockholder proposing to nominate that person. Pursuant to Section
3.03 of the Company’s Bylaws, the Company may also require any proposed nominee to furnish other
information reasonably required by the Company to determine the proposed nominee’s eligibility to serve as a
Director.

Stock Policy Committee

The Stock Policy Committee responsibilities include: (i) during intervals between the regularly scheduled
meetings of the Board of Directors, exercising all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors with respect to
establishing the Market Factor in the Company’s stock price formula and the fair market value price of the Class A
common stock; (ii) selecting an independent appraisal firm to review the value of the Company’s stock;

(iii) reviewing and recommending any changes to the formula adopted by the Board of Directors for the purpose of
determining the fair market value of the Company’s Class A and Class B common stock and (iv) reviewing and
recommending any changes to the Company’s stock programs and in the function of the Company’s broker dealer
subsidiary, Bull, Inc. The Stock Policy Committee held eight meetings during Fiscal 2005. The current members of
the Stock Policy Committee are J.P. Walkush (Chair), K.C. Dahlberg, W.H. Demisch, D. H. Foley and A.T. Young.
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Retirement Policies

The retirement age for independent directors is age 72 and the retirement age for employee directors is age
65. It is the policy of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commiittee to nominate only candidates who
will not attain the applicable retirement age during their term of office or those who have agreed to resign from
the Board upon their applicable birthday.

Communications with the Board

Stockholders may contact Directors by writing to them either individually, the independent directors as a
group, or the entire Board of Directors at the following address:

SAIC

Corporate Secretary

10260 Campus Point Drive, M/S F-3
San Diego, CA 92121

All communications to an individual Director will be forwarded directly to the individual Director or, if sent
to the Board of Directors, it will be forwarded to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Lead Director.
Communications sent to the independent Directors as a group will be forwarded to the Lead Director on behalf of
all independent Directors.
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EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTORS COMPENSATION
Summary Compensation

The following table (the “Summary Compensation Table”) sets forth information regarding the annual and
long-term compensation for services in all capacities to the Company for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003, of those persons who were, at January 31, 2005 (i) the Chief Executive Officer and (ii) the other
four most highly compensated executive officers of the Company (collectively, the “Named Executive
Officers”). The Summary Compensation Table sets forth the annual and long-term compensation earned by the
Named Executive Officers for the relevant fiscal year, whether or not paid in such fiscal year.

Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation
Number of
Name and Restricted Securities
Principal Fiscal Other Annual Stock Underlying All Other
Position Year Salary(1) Bonus(2) Compensation(3) Awards(4) Options Compensation(5)
K.C. Dahlberg 2005 $1,000,000 $1,500,000 $77,897(6) $299,989 260,000 $0
Chief Executive 2004 $250,000(7) $1,010,000(8) $229,459(9) 0 225,000(10) $0
Officer and
President
D.P. Andrews 2005 $628,846 $799,996 $2,473 $199,993 125,000 $9,052
2004 $504,519 $699,992 $1,305 $199,984 100,000 $13,445
2003 $467,308 $600,014 $3,127 $200,000 75,000 $13,308
W.A. Roper, Jr. 2005 $475,962 $799,996 $6,275 $130,003 55,000 $9,052
2004 $475,962 $500,009 $5,825 $149,988 60,000 $13,442
2003 $473,847 $399,993 $7,845 $150,007 75,000 $13,308
T.E. Darcy 2005 $480,000 $599,996 $400 $130,003 80,000 $6,402
2004 $470,000 $599,992 $400 $99,992 75,000 $10,945
2003 $425,001 $500,014 $500 $100,014 75,000 $10,958
J.H. Wamer, Jr. 2005 $475,962 $550,018 $5,375  $99,996 55,000 $9,052
2004 $475,962 $510,015 $4,725  $99,992 50,000 $13,445
2003 $428,365 $449,994 $4,800 $125,011 45,000 $13,308

1) Includes amounts paid in lieu of unused comprehensive leave.

2) Includes the award of the following number of shares of Class A common stock with a market value as of
the date of grant (calculated by multiplying the Formula Price of the Class A common stock on the date of
grant by the number of shares awarded) for Fiscal Years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, as follows:
K.C. Dahlberg: 10,000 shares with a market value of $405,500, O shares and O shares; D.P. Andrews:
2,466 shares with a market value of $99,996, 2,738 shares with a market value of $99,992 and 3,497
shares with a market value of $100,014; W.A. Roper, Jr.: 2,466 shares with a market value of $99,996,
1,917 shares with a market value of $70,009 and 1,748 shares with a market value of $49,993; T.E.

Darcy: 2,466 shares with a market value of $99,996, 2,738 shares with a market value of $99,992 and
3,497 shares with a market value of $100,014 and J.H. Warner, Jr.: 1,850 shares with a market value of
$75,018, 2,191 shares with a market value of $80,015 and 2,797 shares with a market value of $79,994.

3) Represents amounts paid or reimbursed by the Company on behalf of the Named Executive Officers for
athletic, airline and country club memberships, financial planning and tax preparation services and
relocation expenses.
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The amount reported represents the market value on the date of grant (calculated by multiplying the
Formula Price of the Class A common stock on the date of grant by the number of shares awarded),
without giving effect to the diminution in value attributable to the restrictions on such stock. Restricted
stock vests as to 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% on the first, second, third and fourth year anniversaries of the
date of grant, respectively. See “Continued Vesting on Vesting Stock and Options for Retirees” for rights
to continued vesting after retirement for certain holders. The amount reported represents the following
number of restricted shares of Class A common stock awarded for Fiscal Years 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively: K.C. Dahlberg: 7,398 shares, O shares and 0 shares; D.P. Andrews: 4,932 shares, 5,476
shares and 6,993 shares; W.A. Roper, Jr.: 3,206 shares, 4,107 shares and 5,245 shares; T.E. Darcy: 3,206
shares, 2,738 shares and 3,497 shares and J.H. Warner, Jr.: 2,466 shares, 2,738 shares and 4,371 shares.
As of January 31, 2005, the aggregate restricted stock holdings (other than restricted stock which has
been deferred into the Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan) for the Named Executive Officers were as
follows: K.C. Dahlberg: 0 shares; D.P. Andrews: 9,118 shares, with a market value as of such date of
$369,735; W.A. Roper, Jr.: 0 shares; T.E. Darcy: 4,048 shares, with a market value as of such date of
$164,146 and J.H. Warner, Jr.: 3,411 shares, with a market value as of such date of $138,316. Dividends
are payable on such restricted stock if and when declared. However, the Company has never declared or
paid a dividend on its capital stock.

Represents amounts contributed or accrued by the Company for the Named Executive Officers under the
Company’s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan and ESRP.

Includes $67,897 for country club dues. See “Employment Agreements.”

Mr. Dahlberg joined the Company as Chief Executive Officer in November 2003. Mr. Dahlberg’s annual
salary for Fiscal 2004 would have been $1,000,000.

Includes $660,000 paid as a cash sign on bonus. See “Employment Agreements.”

Represents the reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with the relocation of K.C. Dalhberg
and his family to the Company’s principal place of business. See “Employment Agreements.”

Issued pursuant to K.C. Dahlberg’s Letter Agreements. See “Employment Agreements.”

Option Grants

The following table sets forth information regarding grants of options to purchase shares of Class A
common stock pursuant to the Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive Plan made during Fiscal 2005 to the Named
Executive Officers. :

Number of ‘ Annual Rates of Stock

Securities % of Total Price Appreciation

Underlying Options Granted for Option Term(3)

Options to Employees in Exercise Price Expiration

Name Granted(1) Fiscal 2005 (Per Share)(2) Date 5% 10%
K.C. Dahlberg .. .... 30,000 * $36.52 3/7/09  $302,694  $668,875
30,000 * $37.34 5/18/09  $309.491  $683,893
D.P. Andrews ...... 100,000(4) 1.4% $36.52 4/1/09 $1,008,980 $2,229,583
W.A. Roper, Jr. ..... 60,000(4) * $36.52 4/1/09  $605,388 $1,337,750
TE.Darcy ......... 75,000(4) 1.0% $36.52 4/1/09  $756,735 $1,672,187
JH. Warner, Jr. ... .. 50,000(4) * $36.52 4/1/09  $504,490 $1,114,791

Option Grants In Last Fiscal Year

Potential Realizable
Value at Assumed

Less than 1% of the total options granted to employees in Fiscal 2005.
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(D) All such options vest as to 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% on the first, second, third and fourth year
anniversaries of the date of grant, respectively. See “Continued Vesting on Vesting Stock and Options for
Retirees” for rights to continued vesting after retirement for certain holders.

2) The exercise price is equal to the stock price of the Class A common stock on the date of grant.

3) The potential realizable value is based on an assumption that the Formula Price of the Class A common
stock will appreciate at the annual rate shown (compounded annually) from the date of grant until the end
of the 5-year option term. These values are calculated based on the regulations promulgated by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and should not be viewed in any way as an estimate or forecast of
the future performance of the Class A common stock. There can be no assurance that (i) the values
realized upon the exercise of the stock options will be at or near the potential realizable values listed in
this table, (ii) the Class A common stock will in the future provide returns comparable to historical
returns or (iii) the Formula Price will not decline.

)] Although the listed grants of options were made during Fiscal 2005, such grants relate to the individual’s
service for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004.

Option Exercises and Fiscal Year-End Values

The following table sets forth information regarding the exercise of options during Fiscal 2005 and
unexercised options to purchase Class A common stock granted during Fiscal 2005 and prior years under the
Company’s 1998 Stock Option Plan and 1999 Stock Incentive Plan to the Named Executive Officers and held by
them at January 31, 2005.

Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year
and Fiscal Year-End Option Value

Number of Securities Value of Unexercised
Underlying Unexercised In-the-Money Options
Options at January 31, 2005  at January 31, 2005(1)

Shares Acquired Value
Name on Exercise Realized Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
K.C. Dahlberg . . .. 0 N/A 45,000 240,000 $394,200 $1,794,000
D.P. Andrews .... 60,000 $1,143,900 215,000 260,000 $2,529,450 $1,964,800
W.A. Roper, Jr. ... 45,000 $857,925 243,000 222,000 $2,908,290 $1,835,760
TE.Darcy ....... 0 N/A 217,921 201,438 $2,179,157 $1,537,743
JH. Warner, Jr. ... 60,000 $733,200 66,000 144,000 $610,710 $1,119,140

(D Based on the Formula Price of the Class A common stock as of such date less the exercise price of such
options.

Employment Agreements

The Company and K. C. Dahlberg are parties to two letter agreements both of which are dated October 3,
2003 (“Dahlberg Letter Agreements”) pursuant to which Mr. Dahlberg serves as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Dahlberg Letter Agreements provide that Mr. Dahlberg will receive (i) a base salary of
$1,000,000 per year, (ii) a short-term performance bonus for Fiscal Year 2004 of $1,000,000 with the potential
for up to $1,500,000 for extraordinary performance, which bonus will be payable in cash and fully vested SAIC
Class A Common Stock, (iii) a cash sign-on bonus of $660,000, (iv) an award of 104,919 shares of SAIC’s
vesting Class A Common Stock, (v) an award of a vesting option to purchase up to 225,000 shares of SAIC Class
A Common Stock, (vi) reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with the relocation of Mr. Dahlberg
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and his family to the Company’s principal place of business, (vii) a gross up to Mr. Dahlberg’s salary to cover
the federal, state and local income and employment tax liability on the relocation benefits provided by the
Company, (viii) a country club membership, (ix) first class seating for business travel, (x) up to $10,000 for
financial planning and/or tax preparation within the first two years of employment and (xi) disability insurance.
The number of vesting shares actually issued to Mr. Dahlberg was reduced by mutual agreement because of an
adjustment to the benefits Mr. Dahlberg forfeited upon his resignation from his former employer. In addition, the
Dahlberg Letter Agreements provide that Mr. Dahlberg’s long-term bonus for Fiscal Year 2005 will be awarded
in the form of a vesting option to purchase shares and that the number of option shares granted at target for Fiscal
Year 2005 would be equal to $5,300,000 divided by the Formula Price in effect when the option is granted. The
Dahlberg Letter Agreements provide that in the event Mr. Dahlberg’s employment is involuntarily terminated by
the Company during the first three years for reasons other than cause, the Company would continue

Mr. Dahlberg’s base salary, target short-term bonus and benefits for the balance of that period. In order to receive
these severance benefits, Mr. Dahlberg would be required to sign a release and a non-compete/non-solicitation
agreement. At the end of the period, Mr. Dahlberg would be provided with at least two years of non-paid
consulting status. For purposes of the Dahlberg Letter Agreements, “cause” is defined as “(i) a willful failure to
substantially perform your duties, (i1) gross misconduct or (iii) conviction of a felony.”

Directors’ Compensation

All non-employee directors are paid an annual retainer of $25,000 and the Chair of a committee of the
Board is paid an additional annual retainer of $10,000, except for the Chair of the Audit Committee who is paid
an additional annual retainer of $12,500. The Lead Director is also paid an additional annual retainer of $2,500.
Non-employee directors also receive $1,500 for each meeting of the Board of Directors and $2,000 for each
meeting of a committee on which they serve and are reimbursed for expenses incurred while attending meetings
or otherwise performing services as a director of the Company. The Directors are eligible to defer their fees into
the Company’s Keystaff Deferral Plan and Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan. In addition, a stock bonus of
1,000 shares of Class A common stock will be offered to independent director nominees as an inducement to join
the Board.

Directors are eligible to receive stock options under the Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive Plan. For services
rendered as a Director during Fiscal 2005, W.H. Demisch, J.A. Drummond, A K. Jones, HM.J. Kraemer, Jr.,
C.B. Malone, E.J. Sanderson, Jr. and A.T. Young each received options to purchase 12,000 shares of Class A
common stock at $42.27 per share (which was the stock price on the date of grant). All such options vest as to
20%, 20%, 20% and 40% on the first, second, third and fourth year anniversaries of the date of grant,
respectively. See “Continued Vesting on Vesting Stock and Options for Retirees” for rights to continued vesting
after retirement for certain holders.

W.A. Downing, a Director of the Company, is a consulting employee of the Company and receives
compensation at a fixed hourly rate in addition to the annual retainer and meeting fees. In Fiscal 2005,
W.A. Downing received $332,500 of compensation pursuant to these arrangements, but was not eligible for and
did not receive the benefits generally available to full-time employees of the Company.

See “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” for information with respect to transactions between
the Company and certain persons related to or entities in which certain Directors of the Company may be deemed
to have an interest.

Continued Vesting on Vesting Stock and Options for Retirees

Certain qualifying retirees may continue holding and vesting in their vesting stock (including units of
vesting stock held in the Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan) and stock options after retirement, if they have held
such securities for at least 12 months prior to retirement. Qualifying retirement is defined as terminating service
with the Company (i) after age 59 /2 with at least ten years of service with the Company, (ii) after age 59 V2 when
age at termination plus years of service with the Company equals at least 70 or (iii) after reaching the applicable
mandatory retirement age regardless of their length of service with the Company for Section 16 Officers and
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Directors. The Company will have the right to terminate this continued vesting in certain circumstances. The
Company will have the right to repurchase shares held by retirees after their options are exercised and/or their
shares are fully vested. If a retiree is a participant in the Company’s Alumni Program (a program for eligible
retirees where the Company will have no repurchase right on their shares during the first five years after
termination, but would have the right to repurchase the shares during the second five years on an established
schedule with the ability to accelerate the repurchase during the second five years), the Company will have the
right to repurchase shares held by the retiree upon the termination of the retiree’s participation in the Alumni
Program. This policy change will be implemented for all unvested stock and options awarded after July 1, 2004,
However, for Section 16 Officers and Directors retiring after reaching mandatory retirement age, this policy
change will apply to all unvested stock and options held by them, regardless of when the vesting stock and
options were awarded. See “Retirement Policies.” The Compensation Committee of the Board will have
oversight over the treatment of any unvested stock and options granted to retiring Section 16 Officers prior to this
policy change.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT
ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Compensation Committee consists exclusively of non-employee, independent directors, and is
responsible for establishing and administering the programs that govern the compensation and benefits for the
executive officers of the Company, including the five executive officers named in this proxy statement.

Employee Ownership Philosophy and Compensation Policy

Since its inception, the Company has been an employee-owned corporation based upon the philosophy that
“those who contribute to the Company should own it, and ownership should be commensurate with that
contribution and performance as much as feasible.” The Company’s compensation policies, plans and programs
seek to implement this employee ownership philosophy by closely aligning the financial interest of the
Company’s employees, including executive officers, with the financial interest of its stockholders.

Consistent with this philosophy, the compensation policy of the Company, which is endorsed by the
Compensation Committee, is that a substantial portion of the total compensation of executive officers be related
to and contingent upon their individual contribution and performance, the performance of business units under
their management and the performance of the Company as a whole. In this way, the Company seeks to encourage
continuing focus on increasing the Company’s revenue, profitability and stockholder value, while at the same
time motivating its executive officers to perform to the fullest extent of their abilities.

Methodology

As members of the Compensation Committee, it is our responsibility to determine the compensation of the
Chief Executive Officer and to review and approve the compensation of the other executive officers named pursuant
to Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These determinations are made in light of individual,
corporate and business unit performance, the performance of our competitors and other similar businesses and
relevant market compensation data. To assist the Compensation Committee in carrying out these responsibilities,
Mellon Human Resources & Investor Solutions, an executive compensation consulting firm (“Mellon”), was
retained by the Compensation Committee to review the compensation paid to the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and the four other highest paid executive officers of the Company during the fiscal year ended January 31,
2005 (“Fiscal 2005”) and to provide a competitive assessment of the various components of such compensation.

We analyzed the Company’s compensation practices, guided by three key principles:

1. Performance-based: Compensation levels should be determined based on Company,
business unit and individual results compared to quantitative and qualitative performance
priorities set at the beginning of the year.

*  Operating cash flow, segment operating income after tax (SOIAT), earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA), revenues and contract
awards are key performance measures considered in making compensation decisions.

2. Stockholder-aligned: Equity should be awarded as a significant component of incentive
compensation.

+ Equity awards have historically comprised a significant portion of incentive
compensation awarded to the Chief Executive Officer and the other executive officers.

» The Company’s Stock Ownership Guidelines align executive officer and management
interests with those of stockholders by promoting increased stock ownership.

3. Fair: Compensation levels should be perceived as fair, both internally and externally.

* Compensation levels are compared to those of the Company’s peers.

» Competitive pay levels are considered in the context of an evaluation of Company
and business unit results relative to the results of the Company’s peers.

* Executive compensation is compared to other compensation levels within the
Company to ensure that appropriate internal equitable relationships are achieved.
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Components of Executive Compensation

Base Salary - The Company has continued to set the annual base salaries of its executive officers at
competitive levels and continues to cause a significant portion of an executive officer’s compensation to consist
of annual and longer-term incentive compensation which are variable and closely tied to corporate, business unit
and individual performance. For Fiscal 2005, more than half of the executive officers’ total compensation was
paid as incentive compensation. As a result, much of an executive officer’s total compensation was “at risk” and
dependent on performance during the prior fiscal year.

Incentive Compensation - An executive officer’s incentive compensation may consist of cash, fully vested
stock, vesting stock, options, stock units or a combination of these components. Generally, an annual bonus is
given after the end of the fiscal year based on individual, corporate and business unit performance for such fiscal
year and an executive officer’s respective responsibilities, strategic and operational goals and levels of historic
and anticipated performance. By awarding bonuses of vesting stock and vesting stock options, the Company
seeks to encourage individuals to remain with the Company and continue to focus on the long-term technical and
financial performance of the Company and on increasing stockholder value. Further, the exercise price of all
stock options granted is equal to the stock price of the Class A common stock on the date of grant. Therefore,
such options only have value to the extent that the stock price of the Company’s Class A common stock increases
during the term of the stock option.

Personal Benefits - The Company does not provide substantial personal benefits to its executive officers
that are not available to other employees. We do not have programs for providing personal-benefit perquisites to
executive officers, such as company cars, permanent lodging or defraying the cost of personal entertainment or
family travel (except for a country club membership provided to our Chief Executive Officer and two other
executive officers, as disclosed in our proxy statement). Our health care and other insurance programs are the
same for all eligible employees, including officers. Our loan programs, although modest in nature, are not
available to executive officers. There are no outstanding loans by the Company to executive officers, and since
2002, federal law has prohibited any new company loans to executive officers.

Company Performance

In evaluating the performance and establishing the incentive compensation of the Chief Executive Officer
and the Company’s other executive officers, the Compensation Committee recognized that the Company
exceeded the performance objectives in four of the five key performance objectives. During the past fiscal year,
the Company continued to sustain and grow its revenue and profitability. It exceeded its planned objectives in the
areas of revenue, operating cash flow, contract awards and Segment Operating Income After Tax (SOIAT). The
Company achieved 98% of its EBITDA objective. In analyzing the Company’s performance, the Committee
observed that management had initiated substantial long-term investments in the Company’s employees and
infrastructure that reduced short-term profitability but were designed to enhance the long-term value of the
Company.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation

Mr. Dahlberg serves as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and receives an annual base salary of
$1,000,000 pursuant to an employment agreement. Mellon has concluded that Mr, Dahlberg’s base salary is
competitive with the market median in its compensation survey database for chief executive officers for
comparable companies of similar size.

Mr. Dahlberg received a short-term incentive bonus of $1,500,000 for Fiscal Year 2005 consisting of
$1,094,500 in cash and 10,000 shares of fully vested SAIC Class A common stock having a market value on the
date of grant of $405,500. Mr. Dahlberg’s FYO05 short-term incentive target was $1,250,000 as established by the
Compensation Committee at its meeting in March 2004. Mr. Dahlberg also received a long-term incentive bonus
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of 7,398 vesting shares of SAIC Class A common stock having a market value on the date of grant of $299,989
and an option to purchase 200,000 shares at an exercise price of $40.55 per share. The vesting stock bonus and
options both vest at the rate of 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the
grant date.

The Compensation Committee believes that Mr. Dahlberg’s incentive compensation was well warranted in
that he exceeded the expectations of the Board in virtually all areas. During fiscal year 2005, Mr. Dahlberg
demonstrated strong leadership, high integrity and ethical behavior, achieved excellent financial performance
(106% of planned performance) and established a well formulated strategic business plan.

Executive Officer Compensation Review

Mellon has reviewed the compensation for each of the other four highest paid executive officers of the
Company during its last fiscal year and has reported to the Compensation Committee that, based on industry
survey data collected by Mellon, the compensation of these executive officers was within an acceptable range of
competitive market levels for individuals with comparable duties and responsibilities.

Deductibility of Compensation under Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m)

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, generally limits the deductibility of
certain compensation in excess of $1 million paid in any one year to the chief executive officer and the other four
highest paid executive officers. In order to maintain maximum tax deductibility of executive compensation, the
Company obtained stockholder approval of the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan and the amendment and restatement of
the 1984 Bonus Compensation Plan. The Compensation Committee will continue to monitor compensation
programs in light of Section 162(m); however, the Compensation Committee considers it important to retain the
flexibility to design compensation programs that are in the best long-term interests of the Company and its
stockholders.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

The Company’s general philosophy is to encourage employees to have significant stockholdings in the
Company so that they have sufficient economic incentive to maximize the Company’s long-term performance
and stock value. Under the Company’s stock ownership guidelines for its officers, all officers are expected to
acquire and maintain stockholdings in the Company in amounts expressed as a multiple of base salary. The
guidelines provide for various window periods within which the stock ownership levels are to be achieved. These
guidelines establish a clear link between stock ownership, long-term strategic thinking and compensation
programs that are tied to corporate performance and the interests of the stockholders.

Conclusion

The Committee believes that the caliber and motivation of all our employees, and especially our executive
leadership, are essential to the Company’s performance. We also believe that the compensation policies, plans
and programs the Company has implemented have encouraged management to increase its focus on the long-
term financial performance of the Company and contributed to achieving the Company’s technical and financial
success. We will continue to evolve and administer the Company’s compensation programs in a manner that we
believe will be in stockholders’ interests.

E.J. Sanderson, Jr. (Chair)
W.H. Demisch
A K. Jones

March 29, 2005
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Stockholder Return Performance Presentation

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total return on the
Class A common stock against the cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Stock Index
and the cumulative total return of the Goldman Sachs Technology Services Index for the five (5) fiscal years
ending January 31, 2005. The comparison of total return shows the change in year-end stock price, assuming the
immediate reinvestment of all dividends for each of the periods.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return—SAIC Class A Common Stock vs. S&P 500 and
Goldman Sachs Technology Services Index

SAIC Stock Price Growth vs. S&P 500 and Goldman Sachs Technology Services Index
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in providing oversight of: (i) the
integrity of the Company’s financial statements, including the financial reporting process, system of internal
control and audit process, (ii) compliance by the Company with legal and regulatory requirements, (iii) the
registered public accountant’s qualifications and independence, (iv) the performance of the Company’s internal
audit function and registered public accountants and (v) financial reporting risk assessment and mitigation. The
Audit Committee’s job is one of oversight and it recognizes that the' Company’s management is responsible for
the preparation and certification of the Company’s financial statements and that the registered public accountants
are responsible for auditing those financial statements. Additionally; the Sarbanes-Oxley Act recognizes that
financial management, including the internal audit staff, and the registered public accountants, have more time,
knowledge, and detailed information on the Company than do Audit Committee members. Consequently, in
carrying out its oversight responsibilities, the Audit Committee is not providing any expert or special assurance
as to the Company’s financial statements or any professional certification as to the registered public accountant’s
work.

The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee have been set forth in a written charter since 1975.
As set forth in more detail in the Audit Committee Charter which is-attached to the Company’s proxy statement
as Annex I, the Audit Committee’s primary responsibilities fall into the following categories.

s Internal Controls and Disclosure Controls — review and make recommendations on the
internal control assessment performed by management and the report and attestation of the
registered public accountants on management’s assessment of internal controls; review the
internal control assessment with the registered public accountant, the internal auditor, and
management; review the disclosure controls and procedures of the Company designed to
ensure timely collection and evaluation of information required to be disclosed in the
Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission or posted on the Company’s
website and review the registered public accountant’s procedures and management of the
audit relating to internal control.

* Independent Audit — Retain the registered public accountant to audit the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, preapprove the compensation and fees to be paid to the
registered public accountant, preapprove all audit and non-audit services to be performed by
the registered public accountant in advance and evaluate the qualifications, performance and
independence of the registered public accountant; ensure the objectivity of the registered
public accountant by reviewing and discussing with the registered public accountant all
significant relationships which the auditor has with the Company and its affiliates; review the
proposed audit scope and procedures to be utilized and obtain and review a post audit report
from the registered public accountant. :

* Internal Audit — Review the qualifications, organizational structure and performance of the
internal audit function; review, approve and update the rolling three year internal audit plan;
receive periodic summaries of findings from completed internal audits and the status of major
audits in process and receive timely notification of any issues or concerns identified during the
course of internal audits.

*  Financial Reporting — Review with management and the registered public accountant the
Company’s annual and quarterly consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures
under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” that will be contained in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K and
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q; discuss with the registered public accountant the auditor’s
judgments about the quality and not just the acceptability of accounting principles used to
prepare the Company’s consolidated financial statements and discuss earnings press releases,
as well as financial information and earnings guidance, provided to analysts and rating
agencies.
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Ethical and Legal Compliance — Review the effectiveness of the Company’s system for
monitoring compliance with laws and regulations; establish procedures for the receipt,
retention and treatment of complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or
auditing matters (including procedures for receiving and handling complaints on a confidential
and anonymous basis); review and monitor compliance with the code of ethics for senior
financial officers and the chief executive officer; review the code of ethical conduct and
reporting applicable to the Company’s in-house and outside attorneys and receive, evaluate
and handle any complaints submitted to or reported to the Audit Committee.

Other Responsibilities — Discuss and evaluate the Company’s policies regarding internal
controls and financial reporting risk assessment and mitigation and review the Company’s
litigation, government investigation and legal compliance matters for the purpose of
determining the adequacy and appropriateness of the Company’s financial reserves and
control processes.

In the course of fulfilling its responsibilities, the Audit Committee has:

met with the internal auditor and/or the registered public accountant to discuss any matters
that the auditors or the Committee believed should be discussed privately without members of
management present;

met with management of the Company to discuss any matters management or the Committee
believed should be discussed privately without the internal auditor and/or the registered public
accountant present;

reviewed and discussed with management and Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company’s
independent auditors, the audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2005;

discussed with Deloitte & Touche LLP the matters required to be discussed by Statement of
Accounting Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit Committees) and

received the written disclosures and the letter required by Independence Standards Board
Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees).

Based on the reviews and discussions summarized in this Report and subject to the limitations on our role
and responsibilities referred to above and contained in the Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board of Directors that the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements referred to
above be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2005 for
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

April 26, 2005

C.B. Malone (Chairperson)
W.H. Demisch

J.A. Drummond

A K. Jones

H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr.
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AUDIT MATTERS
Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has selected Deloitte & Touche LLP to serve as its
independent auditors for the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending January 31,
2006. Representatives of Deloitte & Touche LLP will be at the Annual Meeting to respond to appropriate
questions and will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so.

Audit and Non-Audit Fees

Aggregate fees billed to the Company for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2005 and January 31, 2004 by
the Company’s principal accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu and their respective affiliates (collectively, the “Deloitte Entities”):

005 2004

AUdit Fees (@) ...t e $3,339,000 $2,644,000
Audit-Related Fees (b) ... .. oo e 1,889,000 320,000
TaX Fees (C) o v ittt e e e e e e 499,000 652,000
All Other Fees . ... i e e e e — —
Total Fees ... $5,727,000 $3,616,000

(a) Audit fees include audit of consolidated financial statements, required statutory audits, quarterly reviews
and consents related to SEC filings.

(b) Includes fees for consultation and planning related to the Company’s Sarbanes-Oxley 404-readiness
activities of $130,000 and $92,000 for the years ended January 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, audits of
employee benefit plans of $218,000 and $127,000, for the years ended January 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, accounting consultation of $17,000 and $14,000, for the years ended January 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively, other stand alone audits of $170,000 and' $87,000 for the years ended January 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively, and a three year stand alone audit, review of interim result and issuance of
comfort letter in connection with an offering memorandum issued by the buyer in connection with the
sale of the Telcordia business of $1,291,000 for the year ended January 31, 2005.

() Represents fees for tax services related to preparation and/or review of various statutory tax filings
including U.S., foreign, state, benefit plans and other including research and discussions related to tax
compliance matters.

The Audit Committee has considered whether the above services provided by the Deloitte Entities are
compatible to maintaining the independence of the Deloitte Entities. The Audit Committee has the responsibility
to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services to be performed by the registered public accountant in advance.
Further, the Chair of the Audit Committee has the authority to pre-approve audit and non-audit services as
necessary between regular meetings of the Audit Committee; provided that any such services so pre-approved
shall be disclosed to the full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting. 100% of Audit, Audit-Related and
Tax Fees were pre-approved by one of these means.
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BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
Class A Common Stock

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as of the Record Date, no person (other than Vanguard Fiduciary
Trust Company (‘“Vanguard™) in its capacity as trustee of the Retirement Plans) beneficially owned more than
5% of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock. The following table sets forth, as of the Record Date, to
the best of the Company’s knowledge, the number of shares of Class A common stock beneficially owned by
each Director, each nominee for Director, the Named Executive Officers and all executive officers and Directors
as a group:

Amount and

Nature of

Beneficial Percent of
Name of Beneficial Owner Ownership(1) Class(2)
D P, ANdrews ... 406,489 *
K.C.Dahlberg . ... e 87,434 *
T E. DarCy ..ot e e e 297,905 *
W.H. Demisch . ....... .. e 132,509 *
WE. DOWNING ...ttt e e 66,589 *
JA. Drummond . ... e e 3,400 *
D H. FOley ..ot 171,851 *
JE . GIanCy .. .o e 399,908 *
J I Hamre . ... e e e 0 *
A K JONES oo e e e e 58,724 *
HM. T Kraemer, Jr. .. i i e e e e 71,561 *
C B. Malone ... e 110,618 *
WA Roper, Jr. . 264,640 *
E.J. Sanderson, Jr. .. ... e e 8,837 *
TP WalKush ... e e 269,514 *
JH. Wammer, Jr. o e 350,066 *
AT YoUng . .o 51,921 *
Vanguard Fiduciary Trust Company, as trustee
400 Vanguard Boulevard
Malvern, PA 10355 . e e 78,231,669  44.8%(3)
All executive officers and Directors as a group (23 persons) . ................. 3,810,076 2.2%(4)
* Less than 1% of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock and less than 1% of the voting power of

the Common Stock.

(D The beneficial ownership depicted in the table includes: (i) the approximate number of shares allocated to
the account of the individual by the Trustee of the Company’s ESRP and 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan as
follows: D.P. Andrews (15,195 shares), K.C. Dahlberg (434 shares), T.E. Darcy (587 shares),

W.E. Downing (2,913 shares), D.H. Foley (9,869 shares), J.E. Glancy (83,557 shares), W.A. Roper, Ir.
(23,640 shares), J.P. Walkush (23,660 shares), J.H. Warner, Jr. (110,598 shares) and all executive officers
and Directors as a group (379,435 shares); (ii) shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days
following the Record Date as follows: D.P. Andrews (210,000 shares), K.C. Dahlberg (57,000 shares),
T.E. Darcy (274,334 shares), W.H. Demisch (25,200 shares), W.E. Downing (10,800 shares),

J.A. Drummond (2,400 shares), D.H. Foley (135,000 shares), J.LE. Glancy (30,000 shares), A.K. Jones
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(25,200 shares), H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr. (25,200 shares), C.B. Malone (25,200 shares), W.A. Roper, Jr.
(216,000 shares), E.J. Sanderson, Jr. (6,000 shares), J.P. Walkush (74,000 shares), J.H. Warmner, Jr.
(119,000 shares), A.T. Young (25,200 shares) and all executive officers and Directors as a group
(1,660,534 shares); (iii) shares held by spouses, minor children or other relatives sharing a household with
the individual as follows: all executive officers and Directors as a group (5,900 shares) and (iv) shares
held by certain trusts established by the individual as follows: W.H. Demisch (93,309 shares), W.E.
Downing (49,889 shares), J.E. Glancy (286,351 shares), C.B. Malone (85,418 shares), J.H. Warner, Jr.
(117,106 shares) and all executive officers and Directors as a group (925,981 shares). The beneficial
ownership depicted in the table does not include the following shares held in a rabbi trust in the form of
share units for the account of the individual in the Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan or the Management
Stock Compensation, which shares are not deemed to be beneficially owned by the individual as follows:
D.P. Andrews (39,091 shares), K.C. Dahlberg (91,943 shares), T.E. Darcy (22,624 shares),

W.H. Demisch (20,256 shares), J.A. Drummond (1,404 shares), D .H. Foley (14,511 shares), I.E. Glancy
(63,330 shares), A.K. Jones (352 shares), H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr. (16,459 shares), W.A. Roper, Jr. (182,403
shares), I.P Walkush (46,492 shares), J.H. Warner, Ir. (43,837 shares), A.T Young (27,097 shares) and all
executive officers and Directors as a group (665,536 shares).

(2) Based on 174,753,404 shares of Class A common stock outstanding as of the Record Date.

3) At the Record Date, Vanguard, as Trustee for the Retirement Plans, beneficially owned the following
percentage of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock and voting
power of the common stock under the following plans for the benefit of plan participants: ESRP: 27.0%
Class A common stock, 7.1% Class B common stock and 26.5% of the voting power of the Common
Stock; 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan: 14.2% Class A common stock and 13.8% of the voting power of the
Common Stock; Telcordia Plan: 3.2% Class A common stock and 3.1% of the voting power of the
Common Stock and AMSEC Plan: 0.5% Class A common stock and 0.4% of the voting power of the
Common Stock. The shares beneficially owned by Vanguard are also included in the amounts held by
individuals and the group set forth in this table.

(4)  Represents 2.1% of the voting power of the Common Stock.
Class B Common Stock

The following table sets forth, as of the Record Date, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, those
persons who were beneficial owners of 5% or more of the outstanding shares of Class B common stock. None of
the Directors, nominees for Director, the Named Executive Officers or executive officers of the Company own
any shares of Class B common stock.

Amount and

Nature of

Beneficial Percent of
Name and Address of Beneficial Ownership Ownership Class(1)
I.L. Griggs, Jr.
1516 Sagebrush Trail, S.E.
Albuquerque, NM 87123 .. ... ... . ... e 20,267(2) 9.4%(3)
Vanguard Fiduciary Trust Company, as trustee
400 Vanguard Boulevard

Malvern, PA 19355 ... ... ... SN 15,385(4) 7.1%(3)

N Based on 216,593 shares of Class B common stock outstanding as of the Record Date.
2 Includes 803 shares held for the account of the individual by the Trustee of the Company’s ESRP.
3) Less than 1% of the voting power of the Common Stock.

4) Represents shares of Class B common stock beneficially owned by Vanguard in its capacity as Trustee for
the ESRP. Vanguard’s total ownership of Common Stock is set forth in Note (3) to the previous table above.
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OTHER INFORMATION
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

In conjunction with the retirement of J.R. Beyster from the Board of Directors, in Fiscal 2005, the Company
made a $4 million cash donation in the name of J.R. Beyster, former Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and President of the Company, to the UC San Diego Foundation for the benefit of the Beyster Institute, a
part of the Rady School of Management at the University of California, San Diego. The Beyster Institute at the
Rady School of Management engages in teaching, research, public education and outreach related to advancing
and encouraging others in the field of employee ownership and entrepreneurship. The Beyster Institute was
previously a part of the Foundation for Enterprise Development, a non-profit organization established by J.R.
Beyster, which is engaged in a broad range of research and education activities (the “Foundation”). In addition,
in Fiscal 2005, the Company donated $150,000 in cash to the Foundation and committed to donate $150,000 per
year for four more years. J.R. Beyster is the President and a member of the Board of Trustees of the Foundation
and M.A. Walkush, sister of J.P. Walkush, an Executive Vice President and a Director of the Company, and a
consulting employee of the Company, is a consultant and a Senior Fellow for the Foundation.

On July 9, 2004, the Company and J.R. Beyster entered into a letter agreement in conjunction with
J.R. Beyster’s retirement from the Board of Directors. Pursuant to this letter, in Fiscal 2005, the Company
(i) paid J.R. Beyster $104,000 as compensation for providing consuiting services, (ii) provided J.R. Beyster and
his spouse with medical, dental, vision and life insurance benefits equivalent to those generally provided to
employees of the Company, (iii) transferred ownership of the company car utilized by J.R. Beyster and
(iv) provided certain other benefits to J.R. Beyster and his spouse.

J.R. Beyster, as Trustee of the Beyster Family Trust, entered into a Rule 10b3-1 trading plan with Bull, Inc.,
a wholly-owned broker-dealer subsidiary of the Company. The Rule 10b5-1 trading plan, dated June 15, 2004,
directed Bull, Inc. to sell on behalf of the Beyster Family Trust 190,639 shares of SAIC Class A common stock
in SAIC’s limited market in the July 2004 trade and 190,639 shares of SAIC Class A common stock in SAIC’s
limited market in the October 2004 trade, provided the sale price was at or above $25.00 per share. Pursuant to
this trading plan, the Beyster Family Trust sold 190,639 shares of SAIC Class A common stock in SAIC’s
limited market in the July 2004 trade and 190,639 shares of SAIC Class A common stock in SAIC’s limited
market in the October 2004 trade.

D.M. Albero, son of C.M. Albero, Group President and Chairman of the Board of AMSEC LLC, is an
employee of AMSEC LLC. For services rendered during Fiscal 2005, D.M. Albero received a salary of
$103,061, a cash bonus of $8,000 and 65 vesting shares of Class A common stock which had a market value on
the date of grant of $2,479. Such vesting shares of Class A common stock vest as to 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% on
the first, second, third and fourth year anniversaries of the date of grant, respectively. D.M. Albero is a Senior
Consulting Analyst.

J.F. Beyster, son of J.R. Beyster, is an employee of the Company. For services rendered during Fiscal 2005,
LF. Beyster received a salary of $70,162. J.F. Beyster is a Mechanical Engineer.

M.A. Beyster, daughter of I.R. Beyster, is an employee of the Company. For services rendered during Fiscal
2005, M.A. Beyster received a salary of $146,332 and a cash bonus of $9,000. M.A. Beyster is a Business
Development Manager in the Company’s Life Science Office developing business in pharmaceutical and
biotechnology firms.

B.D. Rockwood, son of Stephen D. Rockwood, former Executive Vice President and Chief Technology
Officer and Director of the Company, is an employee of the Company. For services rendered during Fiscal 2005,
B.D. Rockwood received a salary of $185,000, a cash bonus of $14,000, 148 shares of Class A common stock
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which had a market value on the date of grant of $6,001, 123 vesting shares of Class A common stock which had
a market value on the date of grant of $4,988 and options to acquire 1,250 shares of Class A common stock at
$40.55 per share (which was the stock price on the date of grant). Such vesting shares of Class A common stock
and options both vest as to 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% on the first, second, third and fourth year anniversaries of
the date of grant, respectively. B.D. Rockwood is a Director of Business Operations in the Security and
Transportation Technology business unit.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission thereunder require the Company’s Directors and executive officers to file reports of their ownership
and changes in ownership of Class A common stock with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Personnel of
the Company generally prepare and file these reports on the basis of information obtained from each Director and
officer and pursuant to a Power of Attorney. Based on such information provided to the Company, the Company
believes that all reports required by Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to be filed by its
Directors and executive officers during the last fiscal year were filed on time, except that a report covering one
transaction for C.M. Albero was filed five days late as a result of an administrative error.

Stockholder Proposals for the 2006 Annual Meeting

Any stockholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must be
received by the Company no later than January 13, 2006 in order to be considered for inclusion in the Company’s
Proxy Statement and form of proxy relating to that meeting. In addition, Section 2.07 of the Company’s Bylaws
provides that in order for a stockholder to propose any matter for consideration at an annual meeting of the
Company (other than by inclusion in the Company’s Proxy Statement), such stockholder must have given timely
prior written notice to the Secretary of the Company of his or her intention to bring such business before the
meeting. To be timely, notice must be received by the Company not less than 50 days nor more than 75 days
prior to the meeting (or if fewer than 65 days’ notice or prior public disclosure of the meeting date is given or
made to stockholders, not later than the 15th day following the day on which the notice of the date of the meeting
was mailed or such public disclosure was made). Such notice must contain certain information, including a brief
description of the business the stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting, the reasons for conducting such
business at the annual meeting, the name and record address of the stockholder proposing such business, the class
and number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by such stockholder and any material interest of
such stockholder in the business so proposed.

Annual Report On Form 10-K

The Company will provide without charge to any stockholder, upon written or oral request, a copy of its
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2005 (without exhibits) as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, within one business day of such request. Requests should be directed to Science
Applications International Corporation, 10260 Campus Point Drive, San Diego, California 92121, Attention:
Secretary, 1-858-826-6000.

By Order of the Board of Directors

TE Sttt

D.E. Scott
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

May 12, 2005
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ANNEX1
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
Statement of Purpose

The purpose of the Audit Committee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Science
Applications International Corporation (“SAIC” or the “Company”) is to assist the Board in providing oversight
of: (i) the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, including the financial reporting process, system of
internal control and audit process; (ii) compliance by the Company with legal and regulatory requirements; (iii)
the registered public accountant’s qualifications and independence; (iv) the performance of the Company’s
internal audit function and registered public accountant; and (v) financial reporting risk assessment and
mitigation. In performing its duties, the Committee will maintain effective working relationships with and open
communication between the Board, management, the internal auditors and registered public accountant.

Composition, Membership and Operation

1 Composition of Committee. The Committee will be composed of three or more directors, none of
whom may (i) as determined by the Board of Directors, have any relationship to SAIC that may interfere with the
exercise of his or her “independence” from management and the Company, as such term is defined in the
Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines; (ii) accept any consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee
from the Company other than in his or her capacity as a director or member of the Audit or other Board
committee; or (iii) be an affiliated person of the Company other than in his or her capacity as a director or
member of the Audit or other Board commiittee. All members of the Committee will be financially literate, or
will become financially literate within a reasonable period of time after appointment to the Committee, and at
least one member of the Committee will be a “financial expert,” as such term is interpreted under the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Members of the Committee, including the Committee Chair, shall be
elected by the Board at the annual organizational meeting of the Board and shall serve until their successors have
been duly elected and qualified.

2. Operation of Committee. A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum
for doing business. All actions of the Committee shall be taken by a majority vote of the members of the
Committee present at a meeting at which a quorum is present or by unanimous written consent. The Committee
Chair shall be responsible for leadership of the Committee, including preparation of meeting agendas.

3. Meetings. The Committee will have regularly scheduled meetings each year, with additional
meetings to be held as circumstances require. The Committee will keep minutes of its meetings, and the
Committee Chair will regularly report to the Board on its activities, making recommendations as appropriate.

Duties and Responsibilities

The Committee’s job is one of oversight and it recognizes that the Company’s management is responsible
for the preparation and certification of the Company’s financial statements and that the registered public
accountants are responsible for auditing those financial statements. Additionally, the Committee recognizes that
financial management, including the internal audit staff, and the registered public accountants, have more time,
knowledge, and detailed information on the Company than do Committee members. Consequently, in carrying
out its oversight responsibilities, the Committee is not providing any expert or special assurance as to the
Company’s financial statements or any professional certification as to the registered public accountant’s work.
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The following functions shall be the common recurring activities of the Committee in carrying out its
oversight function. These functions are set forth as a guide with the understanding that the Committee may
diverge from this guide as appropriate given the circumstances.

1. Internal Controls and Disclosure Controls

Review and provide feedback as deemed appropriate on (i) the internal control assessment
performed by management for inclusion in the Company’s annual report with respect to
quality, adequacy, and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control structure and
procedures for financial reporting; and (ii) the report and attestation of the registered public
accountants on management’s assessment of internal controls.

Review the internal control assessment with the registered public accountant, the internal
auditor, and management, including all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the
design or operation of internal controls and any fraud involving management or others with a
significant role in the internal controls; receive réecommendations for the improvement of such
controls, review whether any such previously approved recommendations have been
implemented and any other significant changes in internal controls made since the last
evaluation.

Review the disclosure controls and procedures of the Company designed to ensure timely
collection and evaluation of information required to be disclosed in the Company’s filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission or posted on the Company’s website.

Review the registered public accountant’s procedures and management of the audit relating to
internal control.

2. Independent Audit

Retain the registered public accountant to audit the Company’s consolidated financial
statements, preapprove the compensation and fees to be paid to the registered public
accountant, preapprove all audit and non-audit services to be performed by the registered
public accountant in advance and evaluate the qualifications, performance and independence
of the registered public accountant. The Committee shall have sole authority and
responsibility to select, evaluate, and, where appropriate, replace the registered public
accountant and/or the lead audit partner, and the registered public accountant shall be
ultimately accountable to the Committee. The Committee Chair shall have authority to
preapprove audit and non-audit services as necessary between regular meetings of the
Committee; provided that any such services so preapproved shall be disclosed to the full
Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

Ensure the objectivity of the registered public accountant by reviewing and discussing with
the registered public accountant all significant relationships which the auditor has with the
Company and its affiliates, including: (i) requesting, receiving, and reviewing, on an annual
basis, a formal written statement from the registered public accountant under Independence
Standards Board Standard No. 1 that (a) delineates all relationships which may reasonably be
thought to bear on the independence of the registered public accountant with respect to the
Company in accordance with professional standards governing such independence; (b) any
material issues raised by the most recent internal quality-control procedures, (c) any material
issues raised by the most recent internal or peer quality control review of the registered public
accountant, and (d) any inquiry or investigation by governmental or professional authorities
within the last five years respecting one or more independent audits carried out by the firm,
and any actions taken to address such issues; (ii) discussing with the registered public
accountant any disclosed relationships or services that may impact the objectivity and
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independence of the registered public accountant; (iii) taking appropriate action in response to
the registered public accountant’s report; and (iv) establishing clear policies regarding the
employment of current or former employees of the registered public accountant.

Meet separately and on a periodic basis with the registered public accountant and management
to review the proposed audit scope and procedures to be utilized.

At the conclusion of each annual audit, (i) review with the registered public accountant any
audit problems or difficulties and management’s response, (ii) review such matters related to
the conduct of the audit that are to be communicated to the Committee under generally
accepted auditing standards, and (iii) other comments or recommendations made by the
registered public accountant.

The registered public accountant’s post-audit report to the Committee should contain
discussion of (i) all critical accounting policies and practices to be used; (ii) each alternative
treatment of financial information within generally accepted accounting principles that has
been discussed with management, ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and
treatments, and the treatment preferred by the registered public accountant; and (iii) other
material written communications between the registered public accountant and management.

Internal Audit

Review the qualifications, organizational structure and performance of the internal audit
function and give prior approval to any decision to appoint, replace, reassign, or dismiss the
Director of the Company’s Internal Audit Department. The Committee, through its Chair,
shall also be required to concur in the total compensation being provided to the Director of the
Internal Audit Department and sign off on his/her annual performance appraisal.

Review and approve the three year audit plan of the Internal Audit Department (the “internal
audit plan”), which plan should be designed to systematically focus on the Company’s risks
and vulnerabilities.

Review and update on an annual basis the internal audit plan, including the independence and
authority of the internal auditor’s reporting obligations, the adequacy of internal audit
resources, and the coordination and completeness of coverage between the internal auditors
and registered public accountants.

Receive periodic summaries of findings from completed internal audits and, as appropriate,
the status of major audits in process. Receive progress reports on the completion of the current
year’s internal audit plan, including explanations for any significant deviations from the plan.

Receive timely notification of any issues or concerns identified during the course of internal
audits.

Meet separately and on a periodic basis with the Company’s internal auditors.

Financial Reporting

Review with management and the registered public accountant the Company’s consolidated
financial statements that will be contained in its Annual Report to Shareholders and Form
10-K, including the disclosures under “Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” and whether the registered public accountant has
opined on the disclosure and content of the financial statements. Based on such review,
recommend to the Board, in a written report to be included in the Company’s proxy statement,
whether the consolidated financial statements of the Company be included in its Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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* Review with management, the registered public accountant, and the internal auditor the
quarterly consolidated financial statements of the Company, including the disclosures under
“Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
and the results of the registered public accountant’s review of those statements. This review
shall occur prior to the Company’s filing of each Form 10-Q with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and may be performed by the Committee Chairperson with as many other
members as are able to participate.

* Discuss with the registered public accountant the auditor’s judgments about the quality and
not just the acceptability of accounting principles used to prepare the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. Review the impact on the annual financial statements of any significant
accounting and reporting issues, including recent professional and regulatory pronouncements
and any newly adopted or proposed changes in accounting principles that would significantly
affect the Company or its consolidated financial statements.

» Discuss earnings press releases, as well as financial information and earnings guidance
provided to analysts and rating agencies.

Ethical and Legal Compliance

+ Review the effectiveness of the Company’s system for monitoring compliance with laws and
regulations, including receiving reports from management on the results of management’s
review of compliance with the Company’s policies and any investigations by management
related to fraudulent acts or irregularities.

» Review with the Chairs of the Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee of the Board
and the Company’s Employee Ethics Committee, any concerns they may have with respect to
management’s having adequately communicated to the Company’s employees the importance
of the Company’s ethical and business practices standards, including the importance of
internal accounting controls.

» Establish procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints (including
procedures for receiving and handling complaints on a confidential and anonymous basis)
regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, including employee
concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

* Review the code of ethics for senior financial officers and the chief executive officer (the
“Code of Ethics™), any changes to or waivers from it, and the compliance of the Company’s
senior financial officers and the chief executive officer with the Code of Ethics.

* Review the code of ethical conduct and reporting applicable to the Company’s in-house and
outside attorneys and receive, evaluate and handle any complaints submitted to or reported to
the Committee.

Other Responsibilities

¢ Meet with the internal auditor and/or the registered public accountant as necessary but no less
frequently than required to discuss any matters that the auditors or the Committee believe
should be discussed privately without members of management present.

*  Meet with management of the Company to discuss any matters management or the Committee

believe should be discussed privately without the internal auditor and/or the registered public
accountant present.
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* Review and discuss the adequacy of the Audit Committee Charter on an annual basis or more
frequently upon changes to the membership of the Committee or as otherwise needed.

» Discuss and evaluate the Company’s policies regarding internal controls and financial
reporting risk assessment and mitigation.

* Review the Company’s litigation, government investigation and legal compliance matters for
the purpose of determining the adequacy and appropriateness of the Company’s financial
reserves and control processes.

7. Committee Self-Evaluation. Conduct an annual self-evaluation of the performance of the Committee
and report the results of the evaluation to the Board of Directors.

Adyvisors

The Committee shall have the authority to retain and obtain advice and assistance from internal or external
legal, accounting or other advisors without seeking Board or management approval. The Committee shall have
the authority to approve such advisor’s fees, expenses and the other terms of its retention. The Company shall
provide appropriate funding, as determined by the Committee, for paying the fees and expenses of any advisors
retained by the Committee.

Additional Duties and Responsibilities

The Committee shall undertake such additional duties and responsibilities as the Board of Directors may
from time to time prescribe.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Science Applications International Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Science Applications International
Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of January 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended January 31, 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have,
nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
incJudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of January 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective February 1, 2002, the Company

changed its method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Diego, California
March 29, 2005
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003

(In millions, except per
share amounts)

REVENUES . ...ttt $7,187 $5,833 $4.835
Costs and expenses:
GOt Of FEVEIIUES . . vttt ettt et e e e e 6,337 5,100 4,211
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses . . ................covuneun .. 364 331 305
Goodwill impairment . ....... ... e 7 13
Gain on sale of business units, net . ......... ... .. 2) (&)
Operating iMCOIME . . . ... i ettt et e et e e e e e e i e e e 488 395 311

Non-operating income (expense):
Net (loss) gain on marketable securities and other investments, including

IMPAIrMENt IOSSES . . . ..ottt e e (16) 5 (134)
I ereSt INCOMIE . .. .ot e e 45 49 37
Interest eXpense . ..... ... . i (88) (80) 45)
Other (expense) INCOME, NEt . ... .. ...ttt e eaenen (12) 5 6
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries ................... (14) (10) €))]
Income from continuing operations before income taxes . ...................... 403 364 168
Provision for INCOME taXES . . . .\ vttt et it e e e 131 140 61
Income from continuing OPErations . .. ... oot vttt ittt i, 272 224 107

Discontinued operations (Note 21):
Income from discontinued operations of Telcordia, net of income tax expense of
$16 million, $19 million and $37 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003,

TeSPECHIVELY . L . L e 133 127 152
Gain from discontinued operations of INTESA joint venture, net of income tax
expense of $2 million and $3 million in 2005 and 2003, respectively ....... 4
NELIICOME .\ttt ettt e et e et e e e e e et $ 409 $ 351 $ 259
Earnings per share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations .................ouiiiinriiiinaennn $149 $122 § 55
Discontinued operations, net of tax .............c.. it 74 .68 T7
$223 $190 $ 132
Diluted:
Income from continuing Operations .. ............covveeeiirinernnnen... $145 $119 $§ 53
Discontinued operations, netof tax ........... ... ... . ... .. ... 73 67 15

$218 $ 18 $ 128

Common equivalent shares:
BasiC .o e e e 183 185 196

Diluted ... .. . 188 189 203

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

January 31

2005 2004

(In millions)

ASSETS

Current assets;

Cash and cash equivalents ... ... ittt e $ 983 $1,099

Investments in marketable securities . ........ ... .. e 1,367 1,265

Receivables, Met . ..o e 1,563 1,282

Prepaid expenses and other current assets ..............oo i 173 158

Assets of discontinued Operations .. .......... . e 900 849

Total CUITENE ASSBES . vttt ettt e et e 4986 4,653
Property, plant and eqUIPMENt .. ........ ... i 339 343
Intangible assets .. ... e 50 36
Goodwill ... ... FE 468 301
Deferred inCOME tAXES . . . . ...ttt e e e 69 83
O ASSBES o . vt vttt e e e 98 124

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............ ... . i $ 864 5 692
Accrued payroll and employee benefits ......... ... .. . 433 401
Income taxespayable .......... .. ... ... ... . ... e 200 178
Notes payable and current portion of long-term debt . ... ... e 70 50
Deferred inCOME taXES . . .« ..ttt et e e e 52 1
Liabilities of discontinued Operations .. .......... ...t 680 659
Total current liabilities ....... ... ... ... .. ... ... . ... e e e e 2,299 1,981
Long-term debt, net of current portion .. .................... [ 1,215 1,232
Other long-term liabilities ........ ... .. ... .. . 99 86
Commitments and contingencies (Note 22)
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries . . .......... ... ... ... i 46 38
Stockholders’ equity: ‘
Common stock (NOte 1) .. ... i e e e e e 2 2
Additional paid-incapital .......... ... 2,278 1,962
Retainedearnings . ......... .. ... ... ... ... ... .. e 212 361
Other stockholders’ equity . ........ it (105) (92)
Accumulated other comprehensive 10ss .. ... .. . (36) €l)
Total stockholders’ equity ... ... ... . 2,351 2,203
$6,010 $5,540

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other  Accumulated

_______Common Stock Agg;g-oillllal Retained hi)tltace):'-s’ com:rtzllf:nsive Comprehensive
Shares Amount capital  earnings equity income (loss) Income
(In millions)

Balance at February 1, 2002 ...... 205 $2 $1,551 $956 $ (56) $ 71
Netincome .................. 259 $259
Other comprehensive loss . ... .. (85) (85)
Issuances of common stock .. ... 16 237
Repurchases of common stock ..  (34) (205) (80D
Income tax benefit from

employee stock transactions . . 108
Unearned stock compensation,
net of amortization .......... L an L

Balance at January 31,2003 ...... 187 2 1,691 414 73 (14) $174
Netincome .................. 351 $351
Other comprehensive loss ... ... (16) (16)
Issuances of common stock . . ... 15 322
Repurchases of common stock ..  (16) (108) (404)

Income tax benefit from
employee stock transactions . . 56
Stock compensation . .......... 1
Unearned stock compensation,
net of amortization .......... (19)

Balance at January 31,2004 ...... 186 2 1,962 361 92) (30) $335
Netincome ..............o.... 409 $409
Other comprehensive loss . ... .. (6) (6)
Issuances of common stock . .. .. 15 410
Repurchases of common stock ..  (19) (162)  (558)

Income tax benefit from
employee stock transactions . . 67
Stock compensation ........... 1
Unearned stock compensation,
net of amortization .......... (13)
Balance at January 31,2005 ...... 182 $2 $2,278 $212  $(105) $(36) $403

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:

NEUINCOME L L\t vttt e ettt e $ 409 $ 351 $ 259
Income from discontinued operations, netoftax .......... ... .. ... ... .. . ... .. ..., (137) 27 (152)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by continuing operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ... ........... . ittt e 56 37 31
Non-cash COMPEnsation . ....... ...t e e e ae s 123 99 77
Impairment losses on marketable securities .............. i i 20 19 108
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment . ................ ... ......... (16) 2 4
Gain on sale of marketable securities and otherinvestments . ......................... 4) (24) 22)
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries .......................... ... 14 10 7
Other NnON-Cash ITeMS . . . ..o e e 11 (C)) (5)
Loss on derivative INSEIUMENTS . .. .. .ot it eaee s 48
Goodwill impairment . ....... ... ... . o i S 7 13
(Decrease) increase in cash, excluding effects of acquisitions and divestitures, resulting from
changes in:
Receivables . ... ... i PN (219) (1el) (68)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ... ...t n i s 1 (65) (22)
Deferred inCOME taXes . . . ..o\ttt e e e e 59 13 (107)
1011 115 g 1€ P 3 (1) 12
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ...... ... . . . e e 158 169 47
Accrued payroll and employee benefits ....................... e 30 45 35
Income taxes payable ... ... . ... e 77 34 99
Other long-term liabilities . ... ... ... . . 7 37 7
Total cash flows from operating activities .. ..........c.. i in i 592 367 371
Cash flows from investing activities:
Expenditures for property, plantand equipment . ............. ... i i 42) (115 (30)
Acquisitions of business units, netof cashacquired . ............... ... . ... ... ... (212) (193) ©
Payments for businesses acquired in previous years . ........... .. . . . iiiii . 20y
Purchases of debt and equity securities available-for-sale ............................ (229) (175) (720)
Proceeds from sale of investments in marketable securities and other investments .. . ... ... 132 32 984
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment ............................ 33
Investments in affiliates ... ........ .. . .. ©) 9) (12)
ORET . o e @ (§))
Total cash flows (used in) from investing activities . ... ....... ... ... i eiinrninnnn.. (349) 461) 213
Cash flows from financing activities: ‘
Proceeds from notes payable and issuance of long-termdebt ......................... 27 351 794
Payments on settlement of treasury lock contracts . .............. ... ... .., ()] )
Payments on notes payable, long-term debt and capital lease obligations ................ (24) 3) )
Dividends paid to minority interest stockholders ................ e @) 3 &)}
Sales of commON StOCK .. ... oo 75 40 26
Repurchases of common stock . ... . e (552) (406) (911)
Total cash flows used in financing activities . ........... .. i i (478) (26) (104)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations . .. .......... (235) (120) 480
Cash from discontinued operations .. ........ ... . . . 119 125 172
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year . .............. .. ... ... .. .. 1,099 1,094 442
Cash and cash equivalentsatend of year .......... ... .. .. .. . i i $ 983 $1,099 $1,094
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock exchanged upon exercise of stock options . ...............cooviinn.. $ 168 $ 107 § 96
Capital lease obligations for property and equipment ... ........... .. ... .. ... ..... $ 9 % 1
Fair value of assets acquired in acquisitions . .......... .. ... .. ... ... $ 284 § 345 § 23
Cash paid in acquisSitions . .. .. .. ... i e (212) (193) ()
Issuance of common stock in acquisitions and other consideration of $2 million in 2004 . . . . ) (49) (6)
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions ............. . .. e $ 68 $ 103 $ 8

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Science Applications International
Corporation and all majority-owned and wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Company”).
Unless otherwise noted, references to the years are for fiscal years ended January 31, not calendar years. All
significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. Qutside investors’
interests in the majority-owned subsidiaries are reflected as minority interest.

Certain majority-owned and wholly-owned subsidiaries have fiscal years ended December 31. The financial
position and results of operations of these subsidiaries are included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the years ended January 31. There were no material intervening events for these subsidiaries from
December 31 through January 31 and for each of the years presented that would materially affect the
consolidated financial position or results of operations,

Investments in affiliates and corporate joint ventures where the Company has an ownership interest
representing between 20% and 50%, or over which the Company exercises significant influence, are accounted
for under the equity method whereby the Company recognizes its proportionate share of net income or loss and
does not consolidate the affiliates’ individual assets and liabilities. Equity investments in affiliates over which the
Company does not exercise significant influence and whose securities do not have a readily determinable fair
market value as defined in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” are generally carried at cost.

Discontinued Operations

Assets and liabilities to be disposed of that meet all of the criteria to be classified as held for sale as set forth
in SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” are reported at the lower
of their carrying amounts or fair values less costs to sell. Assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are
classified as held for sale. Assets and liabilities held for sale that have operations and cash flow that can be
clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes from the rest of our assets and liabilities
are reported in discontinued operations when (a) it is determined that the operations and cash flows will be
eliminated from our continuing operations and (b) we will not have any significant continuing involvement in the
operations of the assets and liabilities after the disposal transaction.

As of January 31, 2005, the operations of the Company’s subsidiary, Telcordia Technologies, Inc.
(“Telcordia”) were classified as discontinued operations (Note 21). The consolidated financial statements for
2004 and 2003 have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 discontinued operations presentation. In addition,
the Company’s joint venture, Informdtica, Negocios y Tecnologia, S.A. (“INTESA”) was classified as
discontinued operations in 2003 (Note 21).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”), requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial
statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Management
evaluates these estimates and assumptions on an on-going basis including those relating to allowances for
doubtful accounts, inventories, fair value and impairment of investments, fair value and impairment of intangible
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

assets and goodwill, income taxes, realignment charges, estimated jprofitabi]ity of long-term contracts, pensions
benefits, contingencies and litigation. Estimates have been prepared on the basis of the most current information
and actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties and is determined based on quoted market prices, if available, or
management’s best estimate. It is management’s belief that the carrying amounts shown for the Company’s
financial instruments, which include cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments in marketable securities,
long-term investments in marketable securities and long term investments in private equity securities, are
reasonable estimates of their related fair values. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments in marketable securities approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.
The fair value of short-term and long-term investments in marketable securities is based upon quoted market
prices. The fair value of long term investments in private equity securities is estimated using various valuation
techniques and factors, such as discounted cash flow models, market prices of comparable companies and recent
capital transactions of portfolio companies. The fair value of long-term debt (Note 13) is estimated based on
quoted market prices for similar instruments and current rates offered to the Company for similar debt with the
same remaining maturities.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenues result primarily from contracts with the U.S. Government, commercial customers,
and various international, state and local governments or from subcontracts with other contractors engaged in
work with such customers. The Company performs under a variety of contracts, some of which provide for
reimbursement of cost plus fees, or target cost and fee with risk sharing, and others which are fixed-price or time-
and-materials type contracts. Revenues and fees on these contracts are primarily recognized using the
percentage-of-completion method of accounting, most often based on contract costs incurred to date compared
with total estimated costs at completion (“cost-to-cost method”). The Company also uses efforts-expended
methods of percentage-of-completion (using measures such as labor dollars) for measuring progress towards
completion in situations in which this approach is more representative of the progress on the contract than the
cost-to-cost method. The efforts-expended method is utilized when there are significant amounts of materials or
hardware on a contract for which procurement of materials does not represent significant progress on the
contract. Additionally, the Company utilizes the units-of-delivery method under percentage-of-completion on
contracts where separate units of output are produced. Under the units-of-delivery method, revenue is recognized
when the units are delivered to the customer, providing that all other requirements for revenue recognition have
been met. On contracts that provide for incentive or award fees, the Company includes an estimate of the
ultimate incentive or award fee to be received on the contract in the estimated contract revenues for purposes of
applying the percentage-of-completion method of accounting.

Revenues from services and maintenance contracts are recognized over the term of the respective contracts as the
services are performed and revenue is earned. Revenues from unit-priced contracts are recognized as transactions are
processed based on objective measures of output. Revenues from the sale of manufactured products are recorded upon
passage of title and risk of loss to the customer, which is generally upon delivery, providing that all other requirements
for revenue recognition have been met. The Company evaluates its contracts for multiple deliverables which may
require the segmentation of the contract into separate units of accounting for proper revenue recognition.

The Company provides for anticipated losses on contracts by a charge to income during the period in which
the losses are first identified. Amounts billed but not yet recognized as revenue under certain types of contracts
are deferred. Unbilled receivables are stated at estimated realizable value. Contract costs on U.S. Government
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contracts, including indirect costs, are subject to audit and adjustment by negotiations between the Company and
government representatives. Substantially all of the Company’s indirect contract costs have been agreed upon
through 2003. Contract revenues on U.S. Government contracts have been recorded in amounts that are expected
to be realized upon final settlement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less.
Cash and cash equivalents at January 31, 2005 and 2004 include $968 million and $1 billion, respectively,
invested in commercial paper and institutional money market funds.

Investments in Marketable and Private Equity Securities

Marketable debt and equity securities are classified as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity at the
time of purchase. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value and held-to-maturity debt securities are
carried at amortized cost. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recorded net of related
tax effects in accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses on the
sale of available-for-sale securities are determined using the adjusted cost of the specific securities sold.

At each balance sheet date, management assesses whether an impairment loss on its marketable and private
equity securities has occurred due to declines in fair value and other market conditions. If management
determines that a decline in the fair value has occurred and is deemed to be other-than-temporary in nature, an
impairment loss is recognized to reduce the marketable security to its estimated fair value (Note 19).

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the average cost and first-in,
first-out methods.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation and amortization of buildings and related improvements are provided using the straight-line
method over estimated useful lives of ten to forty years and the shorter of the lease term or ten years,
respectively. Depreciation of equipment is provided using the straight-line method or the declining-balance
method over their estimated useful lives of three to ten years.

Additions to property and equipment together with major renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals and betterments are charged to expense. When assets are sold or
otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized. In 2005, the Company sold land and buildings at two
different locations and recognized a gain before income taxes of $18 million.

The Company assesses potential impairments to its long-lived assets when there is evidence that events or
changes in circumstances have made recovery of the asset’s carrying value unlikely and the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds the estimated future undiscounted cash flows. When the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
the estimated future undiscounted cash flows, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the asset’s carrying
amount to its estimated fair value based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill, which represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net amounts assigned to
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, is assessed for impairment under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (Note 7). Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized using a method that best reflects how
their economic benefits are utilized or, if a pattern of economic benefits cannot be reliably determined, on a
straight-line basis over their useful lives of one to sixteen years. Intangible assets are evaluated for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable under
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”

Under SFAS No. 142, the goodwill impairment test is a two-step process. The first step consists of
estimating the fair values of each of the reporting units based on a discounted cash flow model using revenue and
profit forecasts and comparing those estimated fair values with the carrying values, which includes the allocated
goodwill. If the fair value is less than the carrying value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of
the impairment by determining an implied fair value of goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is the
residual fair value derived by deducting the fair value of a reporting unit’s assets and liabilities from its estimated
fair value calculated in step one. The impairment charge represents the excess of the carrying amount of the
reporting units’ goodwill over the implied fair value of their goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires goodwill to be
tested annually at the same time every year and when an event occurs or circumstances change such that it is
reasonably possible that an impairment may exist. The Company selected January 31 as its annual testing date.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided utilizing the liability method. The liability method requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Additionally, under the liability method, changes in tax
rates and laws will be reflected in income in the period such changes are enacted.

The provisions for federal, state, foreign and local income taxes are calculated on reported financial
statement income before income taxes based on current tax law and also include the cumulative effect of any
changes in tax rates from those used previously in determining deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such provisions
differ from the amounts currently payable because certain items of income and expense are recognized in
different time periods for financial reporting purposes than for income tax purposes.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has a number of stock-based employee compensation plans, including stock options, stock
purchase and restricted stock plans, which are described in Note 10. The Company accounts for employee stock-
based compensation using the intrinsic value method for each period presented under the recognition and
measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
interpretations. Under the intrinsic value method, no compensation expense is reflected in net income for options
granted to employees, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the fair market value
of the underlying common stock on the date of grant, and no compensation expense is recognized for the
employee stock purchase plan. The Company accounts for stock options granted to non-employees using the fair
value method under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” The following table illustrates
the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions
of SFAS No. 123 to the employee stock options and employee stock purchase plan:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003

(In millions, except per
share amounts)

Netincome, asreported . ...... ... ... ... iiiiiiiiiiiiiii i $409 $351 $259
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effect . .. €2)) (36) 39
Pro forma netincome .. ... ... . . $378 $315 $220
Earnings per share:
Basic—asreported ....... ... ... $223  $1.90 $1.32
Basic—proforma ....... ... e $2.07 $1.70  $1.12
Diluted—as reported . ..........vtiiiit $2.18 $1.86 $1.28
Diluted—proforma ........... .. ... i, $2.01 $1.67 $1.08

The pro forma compensation costs were determined using weighted-average per share fair values of options
granted in 2005, 2004 and 2003 of $5.20, $4.12 and $6.61, respectively. The fair value for these options was
estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions for
2005, 2004 and 2003: no dividend yield, no volatility, risk-free interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 5.0% and
expected lives of five years.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require
the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. The Company meets the
definition of a non-public company for the purposes of calculating fair value and, therefore, assumes no volatility
in the fair value calculation. Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics significantly
different from those of traded options and because changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimates, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of its employee stock-based compensation plans.

Common Stock and Earnings Per Share

The Company is authorized to issue 1 billion shares of Class A common stock, par value $.01 and 5 million
shares of Class B common stock, par value $.05. As of January 31, 2005 and 2004, 177,369,000 shares and
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181,221,000 shares of Class A common stock, respectively, and 217,000 shares and 226,000 shares of Class B
common stock, respectively, were issued and outstanding. Pursuant to the Company’s Certificate of
Incorporation, no additional shares of Class B common stock may be issued. Each share of Class B common
stock is convertible into 20 shares of Class A common stock. Class A common stock and Class B common stock
are collectively referred to as common stock in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements and are shown assuming that the Class B common stock was converted into Class A
common stock. The Class A common stock and Class B common stock have identical rights with respect to
voting, dividends, liquidation and other rights except that the Class B common stock has 20 votes per share and
shall receive 20 times the per share dividend declared and paid on the Class A common stock, and 20 times the
assets and funds distributed upon liquidation as the Class A common stock. Pursuant to the Company’s
Certificate of Incorporation, the Class A common stock is subject to certain restrictions, including the
Company’s right to repurchase shares held by a stockholder upon termination of the stockholder’s affiliation with
the Company, the Company’s right of first refusal with respect to sales of Class A common stock by a
stockholder other than in the Company’s limited market and certain other restrictions on transfer of Class A
common stock. The shares of Class B common stock are generally subject to similar contractual restrictions.
Repurchases of the Company’s common stock reduce the amount of retained earnings in the stockholders’ equity
section of the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

Although there has never been a general public market for the Company’s common stock, the Company has
maintained a limited market through its wholly-owned broker-dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc. Determinations of the
price of the common stock are made by the Board of Directors pursuant to a valuation process that includes
valuation input from an independent appraiser and a stock price formula. The Board of Directors believes that the
valuation process results in a value which represents a fair market value for the Class A common stock within a
broad range of financial criteria. The Board of Directors reserves the right to alter the formula and valuation
process.

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding. Diluted EPS is computed similar to basic EPS,
except the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding is increased to include the effect of
dilutive common stock equivalents, which is comprised of stock options and other stock awards granted to
employees under stock-based compensation plans that were outstanding during the period.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term investments in marketable securities, and foreign
currency forward exchange contracts.

The Company invests its available cash principally in U.S. Government and agency securities, corporate
obligations, asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities, municipal debt and commercial paper and has
established guidelines relative to diversification and maturities in an effort to maintain safety and liquidity. These
guidelines are periodically reviewed and modified to take advantage of trends in yields and interest rates.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivables have been limited because the Company’s principal
customers are the various agencies of the U.S. Government and commercial customers engaged in work for the
U.S. Government.

Foreign Currency

Financial statements of international subsidiaries, for which the functional currency is the local currency, are
translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at each balance sheet date for assets and liabilities and a
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weighted average exchange rate for revenues, expenses, gains and losses. Translation adjustments are recorded as
accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss and Other Comprehensive Loss

The Company’s accumulated other comprehensive loss is comprised of foreign currency translation
adjustments, unrealized gains or losses on the Company’s available-for-sale marketable securities, unrealized
gains and losses on derivative instruments and minimum pension liability adjustments as follows:

January 31
2005 2004
(In millions)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:

Foreign currency translation adjustments ...................... $ @
Unrealized net (loss) gain on marketable securities .............. $ @ 2
Unrealized net loss on derivative instruments . ................. (13) (16)
Minimum pension liability adjustments ....................... (19) (14)

$ 36) $ (30

As of January 31, 2003, approximately $2 million of the unrealized net loss on derivative instruments is
expected to be reclassified into expense within the next twelve months.

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive loss. Other comprehensive loss
refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that under GAAP are included in comprehensive income but are
excluded from net income. These amounts are recorded directly as an adjustment to stockholders’ equity, net of
tax, and are as follows:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Other comprehensive loss:

Foreign currency translation adjustments .. ................. $ 2 $2 s 7

Deferred taxes . . ... ot (1) 3)
Net foreign currency translation adjustments .. .............. 2 1 4

Unrealized (loss) gain on marketable securities . ............. (10) 7 431)
Reclassification of net realized loss (gain) .................. 2 (19) 324

Deferred tAXeS . . .. vt e e e e 2 5 39

Net unrealized loss on marketable securities ................ 6) @) (68)
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments .................. 12 (18)
Reclassification of net realized gain on derivative

INSIUMENLS . . oot it e et e e 4 2

Deferred taxes . . .. ..ot e (D 4 7

Net unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives ................... 3 (6) (11}
Minimum pension liability adjustments, netoftax ........... %) “4) (10)
Other comprehensive loss . ...................o L, $® 316 $ (85
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-
Based Payment,” which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and
supercedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its related implementation
guidance. SFAS No. 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which share-based awards are
granted to employees in exchange for services and requires recognition of compensation expense over the vesting
period in an amount equal to the fair value of share-based payments, including stock options, granted to
employees. SFAS No.123(R) retained the guidance from SFAS No. 123 for share-based payment transactions to
non-employees. The Company meets the definition of a non-public entity per SFAS No. 123(R) and has used the
minimum value method in its pro forma disclosures. Therefore, the Company is required to adopt the provisions
of the standard prospectively for any newly issued, modified or settled award after the date of initial adoption,
which is February 1, 2006. Upon adoption, restatement of earlier periods is not permitted. The Company is
currently evaluating the effect that adoption of this statement will have on its consolidated financial position and
results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4,” to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and
wasted material (spoilage). SFAS No. 151 requires that those items be recognized as current-period charges
regardless of whether they meet the criterion of “so abnormal,” as defined in the statement. In addition, this
statement requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005, which is February 1, 2006 for the Company. The Company is currently
evaluating the effect that adoption of this statement will have on its consolidated financial position and results of
operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 109-1, “Application of FASB
Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, to the Tax Deduction on Qualified Production Activities
Provided by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004” (“the Act”). The FSP provides guidance on the application
of SFAS No. 109 to the provisions of the tax deduction on qualified production activities contained within the
Act. FSP 109-1 states that the manufacturers’ deduction should be accounted for as a special deduction in
accordance with SFAS No. 109 and not as a tax rate reduction. The Company is currently evaluating the effect
that adoption of this statement will have on its taxes in 2006 as the tax deduction is not effective for the
Company until 2006.

Gains on Issuance of Stock by Subsidiary

Gains on issuances of shares of stock by a subsidiary are reflected as equity transactions and recorded
directly to additional paid-in capital.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts from previous years have been reclassified in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements to conform to the 2005 presentation.

Accounting Change

Effective February 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, which changed the accounting for
goodwill from an amortization approach to an impairment-only approach. Upon adoption, the Company did not
have a transitional goodwill impairment charge and, therefore, the Company did not have a cumulative effect of
an accounting change.
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Note 2—Business Segment Information:

The Company provides diversified professional and technical services involving the application of
scientific, engineering and management expertise to solve complex technical problems for a broad range of
government and commercial customers in the U.S. and abroad. These services frequently involve computer and
systems technology. The Company also designs and develops high-technology products. These products include
customized and standard hardware and software, such as automatic equipment identification technology, sensors
and nondestructive imaging and security instruments. Product revenues represented 2% of consolidated revenues
in 2005, 2004 and 2003.

The Company defines its reporting segments using the management approach, which is based on the way
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) manages the operations within the Company for allocation of
resources, decision making and performance assessment.

Using the management approach, the Company has three reportable segments: Government, Commercial,
and Corporate and Other. The Company’s operating business units are aggregated into the Government or
Commercial segments, depending on the nature of the customers, the contractual requirements and the regulatory
environment governing the business unit’s services. The Corporate and Other segment includes the Company’s
broker-dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc., and its real estate subsidiary, Campus Point Realty Corporation. In addition,
in certain circumstances, for management purposes as determined by the CODM, certain revenue and expense
items related to operating business units are excluded from the evaluation of a business unit’s operating
performance and reflected in the Corporate and Other segment.

Business units in the Government segment provide technical services and products through contractual
arrangements as either a prime contractor or subcontractor to other contractors, primarily for departments and
agencies of the U.S. Government. Operations in the Government segment are subject to specific regulatory
accounting and contracting guidelines such as Cost Accounting Standards and Federal Acquisition Regulations.
Business units in the Commercial segment provide technical services and products primarily to customers in
commercial markets and, generally, their operations are not subject to specific regulatory accounting or
contracting guidelines.

The internal measure of operating income before income taxes (“segment operating income”) excludes
losses on impaired intangible assets, non-recurring gains or losses on sales of business units, subsidiary common
stock and similar items, and includes equity in the income or loss of unconsolidated affiliates and the minority
interest in income or loss of consolidated subsidiaries. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as those described in Note 1. Certain corporate expenses are reflected in segment operating income based
on agreed-upon allocations to the segments or as required by Government Cost Accounting Standards. Corporate
expense variances to these allocations and an internal interest charge or credit (“Cost of Capital”) are retained in
the Corporate and Other segment. Elimination of intersegment revenues is also reflected in the Corporate and
Other segment. Sales between segments were $45 million, $25 million and $21 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, and were recorded at cost. Asset information by segment is not a key measure of performance.
However, the Company does use asset information to calculate an internal interest charge or credit and allocates
this Cost of Capital to the business units, which is included in segment operating income. The Company also
monitors capital expenditures by the business units. Interest expense, as reported in the consolidated financial
statements, is not part of segment operating income and is primarily recorded at the corporate level.

The Company formed SAIC Venture Capital Corporation to manage its investments in publicly traded and
private technology companies. The Company may also spin off technologies that are considered non-strategic but
may bring future value from an investment perspective. These activities are of an investment nature and are not
reported to the CODM as part of the core operating segments of the Company and, therefore are shown as
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“Investment activities” in the reconciliation of segment financial information to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

As discussed in Note 21, prior year segment information has been conformed to the 2005 presentation of
Telcordia as discontinued operations. Since Telcordia represented all of the Non-Regulated Telecommunications

segment, the Company no longer has continuing operations in this segment.

The following table summarizes segment information:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Revenues:

GOVEIMMENT . ..ottt e e T $6,738  $5426  $4,382

Commercial ... ... . . i 521 419 449

Corporateand Other . ........ ... .. ... .......... (72) (12) 4
Total reportable segment revenues .. ................ L $7,187 $5.,833  $4,835
Segment operating income (loss):

GOVEIMMENT .ottt et e et e $ 538 $ 457 $ 329

Commercial . ....... ... . . i 42 30 36

Corporateand Other .. ........................... (110) (86) (46)
Total reportable segment operating income . .............. $ 470 $ 401 $ 319
Capital expenditures:

GOVEIIMEIIL . .ot e ettt ettt e ... % 36 $§ 18 $ 17

Commercial ......... ... .. ... . . e 3 2 4

Corporateand Other . ............................ 3 95 9

Total reportable segment and consolidated capital
eXPENAItUres .. ..o ittt $ 42 §$ 115 $ 30

The following table is a summary of depreciation and amortization included in the calculation of reportable
segment operating income:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Depreciation and amortization:

GOVEIMIMENL . . oot ot et e e e e e s $40 $25 $21
Commercial ..., .. 6 4 4
Corporate andOther ............ ... . .. ... oviin. 10 8 6

Total reportable segment and consolidated depreciation and
AMOTHZALON L v\t ettt e e e et e e $56 $37 $31
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The following table reconciles total reportable segment operating income to the Company’s consolidated
operating income:

Year ended January 31

2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Total reportable segment operating income . ................ $470  $401 $319
Investment activities . .......... ... .. 3) 4) )
Loss on impaired goodwill ................... ... ... @) (13)
Net gain on sale of business units .................... 2 5
Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates ........... 5 (5) 2
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries . . . 14 10 7

Total consolidated operating income ...................... $488  $395  $311

The following tables summarize revenues and long-lived assets, which includes property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, deferred taxes and other assets, by geographic location of the entity that is
performing the services:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)
Revenues:
United States . ......ve e $6,980 $5.683  $4,675
United Kingdom .............. ... ... .o 161 137 146
Canada and all other international . ................. 46 13 14
Total consolidated revenues . ...........oviinennn. $7,187 $5,833  $4,835
January 31
2005 2004

(In millions)
Long-lived assets:

United SEAtES . .. oot $ 970 $839
United Kingdom . . ... ... 0 i e 26 24
Canada and all other international ............................ 28 24
Total consolidated long-lived assets ............. ... ..., $1,024  $887

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, approximately 86%, 85% and 84%, respectively, of the Company’s
consolidated revenues were attributable to prime contracts with the U.S. Government or to subcontracts with
other contractors engaged in work for the U.S. Government and are reflected in the Government segment
revenues. Revenues from customers with greater than 10% consolidated revenues were as follows:

Year ended January 31

2005 2004 2003
U.S Ay .o 13% 13% 13%
U S Navy o 13% 12% 12%
US AIrForce . ... .o i e e e 11% 11% 12%
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Note 3—Composition of Certain Financial Statement Captions:

Prepaid expenses and other current assets:
Prepaid eXpenses . ... ... e e
INVENLOTIES . o o .ottt e e e e
Income taxes receivable ....... ... . . L

Other

Property, plant and equipment at cost:
Computers and other equipment . ......... ... . it
Buildings and improvements . . .. ... .. i e
Leasehold improvements . . ... ... oo
Office furniture and fixtures ....... ... .. i i

Other assets:
Investments in affiliates (Note 6) .. ................ T

Other

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... ...

Other

accrued liabilities . ......... ... . o oL, e e

Collections in excess of revenues on uncompleted contracts .................

Accrued payroll and employee benefits:
Salaries, bonuses and amounts withheld from employees’ compensation . ... ...
Accrued Vacation .. . ...ttt e
Accrued contributions to employee benefitplans . .........................

Other long

-term liabilities:

Accrued pension liabilities . .......... .. e
Deferred compensation . ................. ... .. ... e

Other
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January 31

2005 2004
(In millions)
$51 $74

57 33
2 20
43 31
$173  $158
$191  $165
220 223
61 50
39 37
_45 56
556 531
217 188
$339  $343
$67 $101
31 23
$98 $124
$208  $238
417 352
149 102
$864  $692

$249
163
21

$433

$ 19
44
36

5 99

$222
141
38

$401

$ 13
44
29

5 86
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Note 4—Short-term and Long-term Investments in Marketable Securities:

The aggregate cost basis and market value of short-term and long-term available-for-sale investments by
major security type are as follows:

January 31, 2005 January 31, 2004

Cost Market Cost Market

basis Value  basis value

(In millions)

U.S. Government and agency securities ......... $ 280 $ 287 $ 296 $§ 297
Corporate obligations ....................... 452 451 422 423
Municipaldebt .. ....... ... .. ... oL 358 358 253 253
Asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities . . .. 258 257 256 256
Equity securities ............... ... ... .., 1 1 1 2
Other ...... . ... 17 17 38 38

$1,375  $1,371  $1,266  $1,269

At January 31, 2005, aggregate gross unrealized losses were $5 million and gross unrealized gains were $1
million. At January 31, 2004, aggregate gross unrealized losses were $1 million and gross unrealized gains were
$4 million. Substantially all of the unrealized losses at January 31, 2005 have been in a loss position for less than
twelve months.

At January 31, 2005, $837 million of investments in debt securities have maturities less than one year, and
$531 million of investments in debt securities have maturities of one to four years. Actual maturities may differ
from contractual maturities as a result of the Company’s intent to sell these securities prior to maturity date and
as a result of features of the securities that enable the Company, the issuer, or both to redeem these securities in
part or in full at an earlier date.

Gross realized gains and losses from sales of marketable securities are included in “Net (Joss) gain on
marketable securities and other investments, including impairment losses™ (Note 19), and are as follows:

Year ended January 31

2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Gross realized gains on sale of marketable securities ......... $2 $22 $27
Gross realized losses on sale of marketable securities .. ....... @) 2) an

Gain on sale of other investments ........................ _6 _4 6

$4 %4 522

Note 5—Receivables, Net:
Receivables consist of the following:
January 31
2005 2004

(In millions)
Receivables less allowance for doubtful accounts of $2 million and
$4 million at January 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively:

Billed . ... e $1,145 $ 902
Unbilled . ... .. e 398 362
Contract reteNtioNS . ..ottt e e 20 18

$1,563  $1,282
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Unbilled receivables at January 31, 2005 and 2004 include $43 million and $45 million, respectively, related
to costs incurred on projects for which the Company has been requested by the customer to begin work under a
new contract or extend work under an existing contract, and for which formal contracts or contract modifications
have not been executed at the end of the year. The Company records revenue, to the extent of costs, for these
anticipated contract modifications. The balance of unbilled receivables consists of costs and fees billable on
contract completion or other specified events, the majority of which is expected to be billed and collected within
one year. Contract retentions are billed when the Company has negotiated final indirect rates with the U.S.
Government and, once billed, are subject to audit and approval by outside third parties. Consequently, the timing
of collection of retention balances is outside the Company’s control. Based on the Company’s historical
experience, the majority of the retention balance is expected to be collected beyond one year.

Note 6—Acquisitions and Investments in Affiliates:

At January 31, 2005, the Company has nine equity investments, accounted for under the equity method as
described in Note 1, with the Company’s ownership ranging from 14% to 50%. The carrying value of the
Company’s equity method investments was $20 million and $28 million at January 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, which includes the excess of the Company’s equity investments over its equity in the underlying net
assets of $4 million in 2005 and 2004. The Company also has cost method investments of $47 million and $73
million at January 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. During 2005, the Company recorded an impairment loss of
$9 million on its investment in a 50% owned joint venture, Data Systems and Solutions, LLC (“DS&S™). The
impairment loss was primarily due to a significant business downturn at DS&S caused by a loss of business and
an ongoing government investigation, and is reflected in “Other (expense) income” in the consolidated
statements of income. The Company also maintains financial commitments related to DS&S as described in
Note 22.

The Company completed acquisitions of certain business assets and companies in 2005, 2004 and 2003,
which individually and in the aggregate were not considered material business combinations in the year acquired.
In some cases, the Company acquired all the issued and outstanding common stock of certain companies while in
other cases, the Company acquired certain specific assets and liabilities. All of these acquisitions have been
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and the operations of the companies acquired have been
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements from their respective dates of acquisition. The
aggregate purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated
fair values. The aggregate excess of the purchase price over the fair value of tangible assets acquired has been
allocated to other identifiable intangible assets and goodwill.

In 2005, the Company completed four acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $221
million, which consisted of approximately $212 million in cash (net of cash acquired), 107,209 shares of the
Company’s common stock that had a fair value of approximately $4 million on the date of issuance and future
acquisition payments of $5 million. The preliminary purchase price allocation resulted in identifiable intangible
assets of $37 million (amortizable over lives of one to sixteen years) and goodwill of $155 million. The
Company has not yet obtained all the information required to complete the purchase price allocation related to
three of the acquisitions that represented $206 million of the aggregate purchase price. The final allocations will
be completed once the information identified by the Company has been received, which should not be longer
than one year from the date of acquisition. The weighted average amortization period for the acquired intangible
assets is approximately six years, and approximately $34 million of the goodwill is tax deductible.

In 2004, the Company completed ten acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $278
million, which consisted of approximately $193 million in cash (net of cash received), approximately 1 million

shares of the Company’s common stock that had a fair value of approximately $47 million on the dates of
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issuance, other consideration of $2 million and future acquisition payments of $36 million. The amount of
purchase price assigned to identifiable intangible assets and goodwill was $41 million and $215 million,
respectively. Potential contingent payments related to these acquisitions were approximately $11 million, of
which $2 million has been paid as of January 31, 2005. The remaining contingent payments of $9 million are
payable through 2007, of which $7 million will be treated as incremental purchase price. The weighted average
amortization period for the acquired intangible assets is approximately three years, and approximately $57
million of the goodwill is tax deductible.

In 2003, the Company completed four acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $16
million, which consisted of approximately $9 million in cash, 202,105 shares of the Company’s common stock
that had a fair value of approximately $6 million on the date of issuance, and future acquisition payments of $1
million. The amount of purchase price assigned to identifiable intangible assets and goodwill was $1 million and
$14 million, respectively. Contingent payments related to these acquisitions were approximately $3 million, all
of which has been paid as of January 31, 2005. Approximately $1 million was treated as incremental purchase
price.

Note 7—Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment as of Janunary 31, 2005 are as follows:

Government Commercial Total

(In millions)

Goodwill at February 1,2003 ..................... $ 81 $10 $ 91
ACqUISItIONS . . ..ot 203 12 215
Impairments . ..........co i ) (7)
Foreign currency translation ...................... _2 2
Goodwill at January 31,2004 ..................... 277 24 301
ACQUISILIONS . . vttt e e 155 155
Adjustments . . . ... e 11 11
Foreign currency translation ...................... 1 1
Goodwill at January 31,2005 ..................... $443 $25 $468

In 2005, the Company did not recognize any impairments of goodwill since there were no circumstances or
events that indicated a possible impairment. In 2004, the Company determined that a portion of the goodwill
assigned to a reporting unit in the Government segment had become impaired as a result of the loss of certain
significant contracts and proposals related to that reporting unit. In 2003, the Company determined that goodwill
assigned to three reporting units in the Government segment had become impaired as a result of the loss of
certain significant contracts and proposals related to those reporting units. The impairment charges, representing
the excess of the reporting units’ carrying amount over their estimated fair value, were based on a discounted
cash flow model using revenue and profit forecasts for the next five years. Total goodwill impairment charges
were $7 million and $13 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Goodwill adjustments of $11 million in 2005
were a result of adjustments to net assets acquired from prior year acquisitions.
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Intangible assets consist of the following:

January 31, 2005 January 31, 2004
Gross ‘ Gross
carrying Accumulated carrying Accumulated
value amortization  Net value amortization  Net

(In millions)
Amortizable intangible assets:

Customer contracts ....... $31 $11 . $20 314 $3 $11
Non-compete agreements . . 32 13 19 27 3 24
Software and technology . .. 5 5 1 1
Other .................. 7 1 6 1 1

Total amortizable intangible ‘
ASSELS .. $75 $25 $50  $43 87 $36

Customer contracts and other intangible assets with a gross carrying value of $2 million became fully
amortized at January 31, 2004 and, therefore, are no longer reflected in the gross carrying value at January 31,
2005. In addition, customer contracts and non-complete agreements arising from prior year acquisitions were
reduced by $3 million as a result of post-acquisition adjustments. Amortization expense related to amortizable
intangible assets was $20 million, $6 million and $1 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Based on the
intangible assets as of January 31, 2005, the estimated annual amortization expense of intangible assets for the
years ending January 31 is as follows:

Year ending January 31 (In millions)
2006 .. e e e $22
2007 o e e e e 12
2008 . 4
2000 L 3
2000 e e e 2
Thereafter ... ... . e e _7
$50

Actual amortization expense to be reported in future periods could differ from these estimates as a result of
acquisitions, divestitures, impairments and other factors.

In 2005, impairment losses on intangible assets were not matérial. In 2004 and 2003, the Company did not
recognize an impairment loss on intangible assets since there were no circumstances or events that indicated a
possible impairment.

Note 8—Derivative Instruments:

The Company is exposed to certain market risks which are inherent in certain transactions entered into in
the normal course of business. They include sales contracts denominated in foreign currencies, investments in
equity securities and exposure to changing interest rates. The Company has a risk management policy in place
which is used to assess and manage cash flow and fair value exposures. The policy permits the use of derivative
instruments with certain restrictions and appropriate authorization. The Company presently uses derivative
instruments to manage exposures to foreign currency and interest rate risks and uses natural hedges to minimize
exposure for net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The Company does not hold derivative instruments for
trading or speculative purposes.
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Interest Rate Risk

In February 2004, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements (“2004 swap agreements”) to
convert the fixed interest payments on its $95 million 6.75% notes to a floating rate, based on the six-month
LIBOR plus a margin. This was done to better balance the fixed and floating rate long-term debt obligations.
These swap agreements are designated as fair value hedges of changes in the notes’ fair value and are fully
effective in offsetting the change in fair value of the underlying notes in 2005. The fair value of the 2004 swap
agreements at January 31, 2005 was a liability of $2 million and is reflected in long term debt.

In June 2003, the Company modified its prior plan for financing the $91 million purchase of land and
buildings under two operating leases and issued $300 million of fixed rate debt (Note 13). In anticipation of this
debt issuance, the Company entered into interest rate lock agreements on May 29, 2003 to lock in the effective
borrowing rate on portions of the anticipated debt financing. Due to declines in interest rates from the dates of
entering into the treasury lock contracts to the date of the debt issuance, the Company was required to pay $5
million to settle the treasury lock contracts upon the debt issvance. This loss of $5 million before income taxes is
being amortized to interest expense over the term of the related debt. The treasury lock contracts were designated
as cash flow hedges that were fully effective, therefore, the net of tax loss of $3 million was recorded as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity.

The Company entered into four forward starting interest rate swap agreements in January 2002 (“2002 swap
agreements”) pursuant to its previous plan to use five-year variable interest rate mortgage to finance the purchase
of the land and buildings noted above. The mortgage financing would have required payments to a third party
lender based on a variable interest rate. Under the terms of the 2002 swap agreements, the Company would either
pay to or receive from the swap agreements’ counterparty an amount which would effectively have made the net
cash outflow a fixed amount. The 2002 swap agreements were designated as cash flow hedges and were fully
effective through May 29, 2003 with cumulative net of tax losses of $9 million recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity. As of May 29, 2003, the 2002 swap agreements
were no longer designated in a cash flow hedging relationship and, therefore, all future changes in fair value are
recorded directly into income through August 2008. The cumulative loss before income taxes of $14 million on
the 2002 swap agreements is being amortized as additional interest expense over the contemplated five-year
mortgage term that would have ended in August 2008.

In conjunction with the modified financing plan which resulted in the issuance of fixed rate debt in June
2003, on May 29, 2003, the Company entered into additional interest rate swap agreements (“2003 swap
agreements”) to offset the effects of the 2002 swap agreements. The net change in the fair values of the 2002 and
2003 swap agreements since May 29, 2003 was not material and was recorded as additional interest expense. At
January 31, 2005, the combined fair value of the 2003 and 2002 swap agreements was $10 million, of which $3
million and $7 million are reflected in other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities, respectively. At
January 31, 2004, the fair value of the 2003 and 2002 swap agreements was $13 million, of which $3 million and
$10 million are reflected in other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities, respectively.

Foreign Currency Risk

Although the majority of the Company’s transactions are in U.S. dollars, some transactions are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Company’s objective in managing its exposure to foreign currency rate fluctuations is
to mitigate adverse fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations. The Company currently manages cash flow exposure of receivables, payables and anticipated
transactions through the use of natural hedges and foreign currency forward exchange contracts. Foreign
currency forward exchange contracts are contracts requiring the Company to exchange a stated quantity of
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foreign currency for a fixed amount of a second currency, typically U.S. dollars. At January 31, 2005, currencies
hedged were the British pound and the U.S. dollar. The Company has designated certain of its foreign currency
forward exchange contracts as cash flow hedges of transactions forecasted to occur by July 2006, primarily
related to sales contracts and receivables. The effective portion of the change in the fair value of these derivatives
is recorded in comprehensive income and recognized in the income statement when the related hedged item
affects earnings. Other foreign currency forward exchange contracts manage similar exposures but do not qualify
for hedge accounting due to changes in terms of the anticipated transactions. Contracts designated as cash flow
hedges were fully effective in 2005, 2004 and 2003. Net of tax gains and losses recognized as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity were not material.

Equity Securities Price Risk

At January 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company did not hold any derivative instruments related to equity
securities. In 2003, the Company held equity collars to mitigate the risk of significant price fluctuations of the
Company’s investment in VeriSign, Inc. (“VeriSign™) and Amdocs Limited (“Amdocs”), both of which were
liquidated at various dates throughout 2003. During 2003, these derivative instruments were designated as fair
value hedges of the underlying marketable equity securities and, therefore, the changes in fair value of the
derivative instruments and the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk were recorded in the statement of
income. The Company recorded a net loss before income taxes of $45 million in 2003 for the ineffective portion
of changes in the fair value of equity collars (Note 19).

Note 9—Revolving Credit Facilities:

The Company has two revolving credit facilities (“credit facilities”) totaling $750 million with a group of
financial institutions that provide for (i) a five-year revolving credit facility of up to $500 million, which allows
borrowings until July 2007 and (ii) a five-year revolving credit facility of up to $250 million, which allows
borrowings until July 2009. Borrowings under the credit facilities are unsecured and bear interest at a rate
determined, at the Company’s option, based on either LIBOR plus a margin or a defined base rate. The Company
pays a facility fee on the total commitment amount and a fee if utilization exceeds 50% of the total commitment
amount. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company did not borrow under either of its credit facilities.

The Company has a firm fixed-price contract with the Greek Government with bonding requirements,
approximately $117 million of which have been met through the issuance of standby letters of credit under the
$500 million five-year revolving credit facility. The standby letters of credit reduce the amount available for
borrowings under the $500 million five-year revolving credit facility. The Company pays fees for the standby
letters of credit issued under the five-year revolving credit facility, but the outstanding standby letters of credit
are not considered borrowings and the Company does not incur related interest cost. The terms of the standby
letters of credit require them to remain outstanding until the customer has formally accepted the system pursuant
to the contract. For further discussion of this contract, refer to Note 22. The Company does not expect to issue
any additional standby letters of credit for this contract under the $500 million five-year revolving credit facility.

As of January 31, 2005, the entire amount under the $250 million five-year revolving credit facility was
available and $383 million of the $500 million five-year revolving credit facility was available. These credit
facilities contain customary affirmative and negative covenants. The financial covenants contained in the credit
facilities require the Company to maintain a trailing four quarter interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.5 to 1.0
and a ratio of consolidated funded debt to a trailing four quarter earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA”™) of not more than 3.0 to 1.0 for each period of four consecutive fiscal quarters. These
covenants also restrict certain of the Company’s activities, including, among other things, the Company’s ability
to create liens, dispose of assets, merge or consolidate with other entities, and create guaranty obligations. The
credit facilities also contain customary events of default, including, among others, defaults based on certain
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bankruptcy and insolvency events; nonpayment; cross-defaults to other debt; breach of specified covenants;
change of control and material inaccuracy of representations and warranties. As of January 31, 2005, the
Company was in compliance with all the financial covenants under the credit facilities.

Note 10—Employee Benefit Plans:

The Company has one principal 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (“401(k)”), which is the result of the merger of
the Company’s Profit Sharing Retirement Plan with the Company’s Cash or Deferred Arrangement effective
November 28, 2003. The 401(k) allows eligible participants to defer a portion of their income through payroll
deductions. Such deferrals are fully vested, are not taxable to the participant until distributed from the 401(k)
upon termination, retirement, permanent disability or death and may be matched by the Company. In addition,
the Company may also provide a profit sharing contribution. Participants’ interests in the Company’s matching
and profit sharing contributions vest 20% per year in the first through fifth year of service. Participants also
become fully vested upon reaching age 59 V2, permanent disability or death. In December 2004, the Company
approved two plan changes, both effective January 1, 2005. The first change allows employee deferrals to be
eligible to receive the Company matching contribution immediately as opposed to the plan’s prior one-year
eligibility requirement. The second change revises the 401(k) Company matching contribution to a 50% match
for each dollar an employee contributes to the 401(k), up to 6% of the employee’s eligible compensation. The
Company’s contributions, including the matching contributions, charged to income under the 401(k) were $56
million, $48 million and $42 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company has an Employee Stock Retirement Plan (“ESRP”) in which eligible employees participate.
Cash or stock contributions to the ESRP are based upon amounts determined annually by the Board of Directors
and are allocated to participants’ accounts based on their annual eligible compensation. The Company recognizes
the fair value of the Company’s common stock or the amount of cash contributed in the year of contribution as
compensation expense. The vesting requirements for the ESRP are the same as the vesting requirements for the
Company’s contributions to the 401(k). Any participant who leaves the Company, whether by retirement or
otherwise, may be able to elect to receive either cash or shares of Company common stock as a distribution from
their account. Shares of Company common stock distributed from the ESRP bear a limited put option that, if
exercised, would require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of the shares at their then current fair value
during two specified 60-day periods following distribution. If the shares are not put to the Company during the
specified periods, the shares no longer bear a put option, and the Company will not be required to repurchase the
shares. Although it has no current intention to do so, if necessary, the Company believes it has the ability to
eliminate the limited put option feature on shares held by the ESRP. At January 31, 2004, shares distributed from
the ESRP with the limited put option represented a potential repurchase obligation of $19 million. During 2005,
none of the total outstanding potential repurchase amount at January 31, 2004 was actually put to the Company.
At January 31, 2005, shares distributed from the ESRP that bear a limited put option represented a potential
repurchase obligation of $41 million. The ESRP held 48 million shares of common stock at January 31, 2005 and
50 million shares of common stock at January 31, 2004 with a fair value of $1.9 billion and $1.8 billion,
respectively. Contributions charged to income under the ESRP were $39 million, $55 million and $52 million for
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company has a principal bonus compensation plan, which provides for bonuses to reward outstanding
performance. Bonuses are paid in the form of cash, fully vested or vesting shares of the Company’s common
stock. Awards of vesting shares of the Company’s common stock vest at the rate of 20%, 20%, 20% and 40%
after one, two, three and four years, respectively. The fair market value of these vesting shares awarded is
recorded as unearned compensation which is included in stockholders’ equity and amortized over the vesting
period. The amounts charged to income under these plans were $121 million, $106 million and $77 million for
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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The Company has a Stock Compensation Plan and Management Stock Compensation Plan, together referred
to as the “Stock Compensation Plans.” The Stock Compensation Plans provide for awards in share units to
eligible employees that generally correspond to shares of the Company’s common stock, held in trust for the
benefit of participants. Participants’ interests in these share units vest on a seven year schedule at the rate of one-
third at the end of each of the fifth, sixth and seventh years following the date of the award. The fair value of
shares awarded under these plans is recorded as unearned compensation which is included in stockholders’ equity
and amortized over the vesting period. The amount charged to income under these plans was $7 million in 2005,
and $6 million in 2004 and in 2003. ‘

The Company also has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) which allows eligible employees to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at a discount of 15% of the existing fair market value. There
are no charges to income under this plan because it is a non-compensatory plan. The pro forma effect on net
income and earnings per share of stock compensation expense under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation” is presented in Note 1. At January 31, 2005, 10 million shares of the Company’s common
stock were reserved for issuance under the ESPP.

The Company maintains two deferred compensation plans for the benefit of key executives and directors
and allows eligible participants to elect to defer all or a portion of their annual bonus compensation. The
Company makes no contributions under the Keystaff Deferral Plan but does credit participant accounts for
deferred compensation amounts and interest earned. Interest is accrued based on the Moody’s Seasoned
Corporate Bond Rate (6.03% in 2005). Deferred balances will generally be paid upon termination unless the
participant has met the 10 year service requirement to defer distribution to age 65. Under the Key Executive
Stock Deferral Plan, eligible participants may elect to defer all or a portion of their annual bonus compensation.
The Company makes no contributions to the accounts of participants, which generally correspond to shares of the
Company’s common stock held in a trust for the benefit of participants. Deferred balances will generally be paid
upon retirement or termination.

Note 11—Pension Plan:

The Company had four defined benefit pension plans and two postretirement benefit plans for employees
and retirees of the Company’s former Telcordia subsidiary. Three of the pension plans were unfunded, non-
qualified plans that provide benefits to certain members of management at Telcordia. All these plans were
assumed by the buyer of Telcordia (Note 21) and, therefore, the related disclosures are not included as the plans
are no longer reflected in continuing operations of the Company.
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The following tables set forth the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets
for the Company’s foreign defined benefit pension plan for certain employees in the United Kingdom. The plan
has a January 31 measurement date.

Year ended January 31
2005 2004
(In millions)

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginningof year . .................... $ 76 $ 60

SIVICE COSt . .ot e 3 2
Interest coSt ... ... .t e 4 3
Plan participants’ contributions . .. .......... .. .. ... ... 1 1
Actuarial oss . ... ... 8 4
Benefitspaid .........c.c i 09 (1)
Foreign currency translation ........... ... .. ... ... ..., 4 7
Benefit obligation atendof year .. ........ ... ... .. .. ... $95 $ 76
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year .. .............. $ 53 $ 34
Actual gainonplanassets ......... ... . i i 5 8
Company contributions . ........... ..., 3 6
Plan participants’ contributions . . ........... .. ... ... ..., 1 1
Benefitspaid ...... . ... .. ... . . e (1) nH
Foreign currency translation ........... ... ... ... ... .. ... _ 2 5
Fair value of plan assets atendof year ..................... $ 63 $ 53
Funded status atend of year ........... ... ..o iiiiiiinien... $(32) $(24)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss . . ........ ...t . 38 31
Net prepaid benefit Cost . . .. ..ottt $§ 6 7
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Accrued benefit cost .. ... .. ... i $(19) $(13)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (pre-tax) .......... 25 20
Net prepaid benefitcost .. ........ ..o $ 6 $ 7

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $82 million and $66 million at
January 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The fair value of the pension assets was less than the accumulated
benefit obligation at January 31, 2005 and 2004. As a result, a minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax,
of $3 million and $4 million was included in other comprehensive income in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Amounts for the defined benefit pension plan with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan
assets are as follows:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004
(In millions)
Projected benefit obligations . ............. . ... ., $95 $76
Accumulated benefit obligations . ............ ... ... ... £82 $66
Fair value of planassets ...............ccviiiinieinenenannn. $63 $53
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The components of net periodic benefit cost to the Company éf this plan are as follows:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
SEIVICE COSE . v vttt et $3 $2 $2
Interest CoSt . ... v it e 4 3 2
Expected returnon planassets ...............hv..n.. 4 3 3
Amortization of actuarial loss ....................... 1 2 1
Charges for special termination benefit ................ _ . _ 4
Net periodic benefit cost . ........ ..o, $4 $ 4 $6

Actuarial Assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used in determining the benefit obligations and the net periodic benefit
cost of pension were as follows:

Pension plan

2005 2004
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at the plan’s January
31 measurement date:
Discountrate .......... ... it 53% 55%
Rate of compensation increase . ..., 3.6% 3.5%
Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the year
ended January 31:
Discountrate . .......... ...t 55% 5.5%
Expectedreturnonplanassets . .............. ... .. .. ... 8.0% 8.0%
Rate of compensationincrease . ......... ... o i 3.5% 35%

The long-term rate of return assumption represents the expected average earnings on funds invested or to be
invested by the plans. This return is determined in consultation with investment advisors and is based on a
variety of factors including long-term historical market returns for the various asset classes in the plans and
review of peer data. A weighting of these asset class returns, based on the anticipated long-term allocation of the
asset classes in the plans, is performed to determine an overall average expected long-term rate of return.

Plan Assets
As of the measurement date, pension plan assets were allocated as follows:

Pension plan

2005 2004
International equity SECUIItIES . ....... ...t enn.. 75% 76%
Debt securities .. ...t e e e 19% 22%
Realestateandcash ...... ... ... ... . . i, _6% _2%

10%  100%

The Company’s overall investment strategy for all pension plan assets is to utilize a total return investment
approach whereby a mix of equities, fixed income, real estate and cash investments are used to maximize the
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long-term return of plan assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk tolerance is established through consideration of
plan demographics, plan liabilities, plan funded status and overall corporate financial condition. The investment
portfolio contains a diversified blend of international equity securities, fixed income securities, and real estate
investments. Target asset allocation as prescribed by the investment strategy is substantially similar to actual
allocation at measurement date.

Cash Flows

During 2006, the Company expects to contribute approximately $3 million to the defined benefit pension
plan. Estimated annual benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be
$1 million for each of the years in 2006 to 2010. Estimated benefit payments for 2011 through 2015 are expected
to be $17 million.

Other

The Company also makes contributions to a defined benefit pension plan for employees working on one
U.S. Government contract. As part of the contractual agreement, the customer reimburses the Company for
contributions made to the plan. If the Company were to cease to be the contractor as a result of a recompetition
process, this defined benefit pension plan would transfer to the new contractor. In addition, certain employees at
AMSEC LLC, a consolidated joint venture, continue to participate in a defined benefit pension and a retiree
medical and life insurance plan sponsored by the other joint venture participant. AMSEC LLC recorded expense
of $1 million, $1 million and $2 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for payments made to the other
joint venture partner for the cost of the benefits these plans provide.

Note 12—Income Taxes:

Income from continuing operations before income taxes includes the following:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
URIted STALES ...\ vttt oo et e e e $386 $354 $163
Foreign ...... ... . o 17 10 5

$403  $364  $168

The provision for income taxes includes the following:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Current
Federal .. ... ... $8 $95 §$220
At .. . e (18) 19 24
Foreign ... ... . 8 4 1
Deferred:
Federal ........ ... ... . 54 19 (176)
State . e 4 3 (8)

$131 S$140 § 61
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Deferred income taxes are provided for differences in the basis of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and tax reporting purposes. Deferred tax (liabilities) assets are comprised of the following:

January 31
2005 2004
" (in millions)
Accrued VACAON PAY . .. oottt i e vt $ 44 $39
Investmentin affiliates . ........ ... .. . 17 41
Deferred compensation ............... ...t 29 26
Vesting stock DOMUSES . ..o vttt 18 18
AL (XS .+ ottt e e e 6 . 2
Accrued Habilities . ... e 5 2
Unrealized net losses on marketable securities . ...................... 2
Other .. I
Total deferred tax assets . .................... e _1_2_1 134
Employee benefit contributions ........... .. ... .. e © a7
Deferred revenue ... ...... ...t e (84) 27
Depreciation and amortization .. ................... S P D @)
Unrealized net gains on marketable securities . ........ e (D
Other .. e (10) -
Total deferred tax liabilities .. .......... ... ... ... .. ......... (104) _Ez)
Net deferred tax assets . ........coiiininrine i, $ 17 82

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to the amount computed by applying the statutory federal
income tax (35%) to income from continuing operations before income taxes follows:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Amount computed at statitory rate .. ... ... ee e $141 $127 $ 58
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit . .. ............. €))] 14 10
Contribution of appreciated property ...................... (5)
Change intaxaccruals .......................... e (D) (D) 3)
Non-deductibleitems ........ ... ... ... ... it 1 1 1
Non-taxable interestincome .. ........... ... ... .. (O (1)

$131 $140 $ 61
Effective income tax rate ..............oiiiimrreriinann. 325% 384% 36.4%

Income taxes paid in 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounted to $34 million, $79 million and $173 million,
respectively.

The 2005 current state tax provision reflects the favorable settlement of state income tax audits and
approved refund claims for state taxes and credits.

The Company is subject to routine compliance reviews by the Internal Revenue Service, which is currently
auditing 2001 to 2003, and other taxing jurisdictions on various tax matters, including challenges to various

positions the Company has taken. The Company has recorded liabilities for tax contingencies for open years
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based upon its best estimate of the taxes ultimately expected to be paid. A significant portion of the Company’s
income taxes payable balance is comprised of tax accruals that have been recorded for tax contingencies. The
Company is currently undergoing several routine examinations. While the Company believes it has adequate

accruals for tax contingencies, there is no assurance that the tax authorities will not assert that the Company owes
taxes in excess of its accruals.

Note 13—Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt:

Notes payable and long-term debt consist of the following:

January 31

T2005 2004

" (nmillions)

5.5% notes due 2033 ... $ 296 $ 296
6.25% notes due 2012 ... .. ... 548 548
7.125% notes due 2032 .. ... 248 248
6.75% notes due 2008 ... .. ... ... 95 95
3-yearnote due 2006 . ... .. ... 30 45
Othernotespayable . ....... ... ... .. .. i i 68 50
1,285 1,282

Lesscurrent portion . . .......oviiniii i 70 50

$1215  $1,232

In conjunction with the acquisition of a business, in December 2003, the Company’s 55% owned joint
venture, AMSEC LLC, entered into a 3-year term note for $45 million (“*3-year note”) maturing December 1,
2006. The 3-year note is secured by certain assets of the joint venture. Principal is paid quarterly and interest is
paid monthly. The interest rate is adjusted monthly based on 30-day LIBOR plus 85 basis points and was 3.24%
at January 31, 2005.

In June 2003, the Company completed a private offering of $300 million of senior unsecured notes (“5.5%
notes”). The 5.5% notes are due on July 1, 2033 with interest payable on a semi-annual basis beginning January
1, 2004. The note discounts, issuance costs and the loss on the treasury lock contracts (Note 8) are amortized to
interest expense, using the effective interest method, which results in an effective interest rate of 5.8%. In
January 2004, the Company completed an exchange of substantially all the private notes for new notes registered
with the SEC. These new registered notes are identical in all material respects to the terms of the notes issued in
June 2003. The fair values of the 5.5% notes exceeded the carrying value by $400 thousand at January 31, 2005.

In June 2002, the Company issued $550 million of 6.25% senior unsecured notes (“6.25% notes™) and $250
million of 7.125% senior unsecured notes (“7.125% notes”). The 6.25% notes and the 7.125% notes are due on
July 1, 2012 and July 1, 2032, respectively, with interest payable semi-annually beginning January 1, 2003. The
note discounts, issuance costs and the loss on the treasury lock contracts (Note 8) are amortized to interest
expense, which results in an effective interest rate of 6.5% for the 6.25% notes and 7.43% for the 7.125% notes.
The fair values of the 6.25% notes and 7.125% notes exceeded the carrying value by $55 million and $52
million, respectively, at January 31, 2005.

In January 1998, the Company issued $100 million of 6.75% notes with a nominal discount (“6.75% notes”)
which are due February 1, 2008 with interest payable semi-annually beginning August 1, 1998. The 6.75% notes
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have an effective interest rate of 8.3%, due principally to the amortization of a loss on a forward treasury lock
agreement, the discount on issuance of the notes and underwriting fees associated with the offering. The fair
value of the 6.75% notes exceeded the carrying value by $14 million at January 31, 2003. During 2005, the
Company entered into interest rate swaps as described in Note 8.

The Company is subject to certain restrictions on the notes described above, such as limitations on liens,
sale and leaseback transactions and consolidation, merger and sale of assets. As of January 31, 2005, the
Company was in compliance with the restrictions.

The Company has various other notes payable with interest rates from 2.5% to 6.0% that are due on various
dates through 2016.

Maturities of notes payable and long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending January 31 (In millions)
2006 e e $ 70
200 o e e e 23
2008 e e 1
2009 L e e 1
2000 e 96
2011 and after .. ..o e 1,094
$1,285

Note 14—Earnings Per Share:

A summary of the elements included in the computation of basic and diluted EPS is as follows (in millions,
except per share amounts):

Year ended January 31

2005 2004 2003
Weighted Per - Weighted Per Weighted Per
Net average share Net average share Net average share
income shares amount income shares amount income shares amount
Netincome ............. $409 $351 $259
BasicEPS .............. 183 $2.23 185 $1.90 196 $1.32
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options . ....... 5 3 7
Other stock awards . .. . _1 .
Diluted EPS ............. 188 $2.18 189 $1.86 ECE $1.28
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Options to purchase 22 million shares of common stock at prices ranging from $28.90 to $33.06 per share
were outstanding during 2003, but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS at January 31, 2003
because the effect of such options would be antidilutive. Such options expire at various dates through January
2008.

Note 15—Common Stock and Options:

The Company has options outstanding under various stock option plans. Options are granted with exercise
prices not less than the fair market value at the date of grant and for terms not greater than ten years. Options
granted under these plans generally become exercisable 20%, 20%, 20%, and 40% after one, two, three and four
years, respectively.

A summary of changes in outstanding options under the plans during the three years ended January 31,
2003, is as follows:

Shares of
Shares of Weighted common stock
common stock average exercisable

under options  exercised price  under options

(In millions)

(In millions)

February 1,2002 ............... ... ....... 46 $20.13 17
Options granted ...................... 12 $32.20
Options canceled ..................... 2 $26.67
Options exercised .................... (12) $10.46

January 31,2003 ... ... ... .l 44 $25.54 15
Optionsgranted ...................... 10 $29.14
Options canceled ..................... 3) $28.60
Options exercised .................... @ $15.26

January 31,2004 ....... ... ... ... 42 $28.50 15
Options granted . ..................... 7 $36.68
Options canceled ..................... 2) $30.38
Options exercised .................... (10) $23.20

January 31,2005 ........... ... ... ... 37 $31.44 14

As of January 31, 2005, 63 million shares of common stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of
options which are outstanding or which may be granted. Included in this amount are 400 thousand shares of
common stock that the Company has made available for issuance, purchase or option grant to employees,
prospective employees and consultants, generally contingent upon commencement of employment or the
occurrence of certain events.
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A summary of options outstanding as of January 31, 2005 is as follows:

Weighted

Weighted average Weighted

average remaining average

Options exercise  contractual Options exercise

Range of exercise prices outstanding price life exercisable price
(In millions) (In years)  (In millions)
$259210%$3087 ............. 5 $27.56 2 5 $27.56
$3020t0$3227 ............. 7 $30.98 1.1 4 $30.98
$28.31t0%$3306 ............. 9 $32.18 2.1 3 $32.18
$28.60t0$31.79 ............. 9 $29.14 31 2 $29.15
$36.52t0$38.14 ... ... ..... 7 $36.68 4.1 . $36.67
37 14

Note 16—Leases:

The Company occupies most of its facilities under operating leases. Most of the leases require the Company
to pay maintenance and operating expenses such as taxes, insurance and utilities and also contain renewal options
extending the leases from one to twenty years. Certain of the leases contain purchase options and provisions for
periodic rate escalations to reflect cost-of-living increases. Certain equipment, primarily computer-related, is
leased under short-term or cancelable operating leases. Rental expenses for facilities and equipment were $109
million, $107 million and $114 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, which is net of sublease income of
$6 million, $5 million and $19 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In 2004, the Company was awarded a contract with the Greek Government (Note 22) that requires the
Company to lease certain equipment under an operating lease from a subcontractor for ten years. The lease term
commences as soon as the development and integration of the system under contract is completed and accepted
by the customer. The terms of the customer contract and lease agreement provide that if the customer defaults on
its payments to the Company to cover the future lease payments, then the Company is not required to make the
lease payments to the subcontractor. Accordingly, the maximum contingent lease liability of approximately $98
million at January 31, 2005 is not reflected in the future minimum lease commitments table below and such
amount has not been recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

Minimum lease commitments, primarily for facilities under all non-cancelable operating leases in effect at
January 31, 2005 are as follows:

Operating lease  Sublease

Year ending January 31 commitment income
(In millions)
2006 ... $100 $ 5
2007 o 67 (@)
2008 . oo 42 (@)
2000 29 (@)
2000 . 16 (2)
201Tandafter ....... ... . _ 9 .
$263 $(19)

As of January 31, 2005, the Company has capital lease obligations of approximately $6 million that are
payable over the next three years.
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Note 17—Supplementary Income Statement and Cash Flow Information:
Charges to costs and expenses for depreciation of property, plant and equipment and assets acquired under
capital leases were $36 million, $30 million and $30 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Included in selling, general and administrative expenses are independent research and development costs of
$25 million, $19 million and $19 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Total interest paid in 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounted to $87 million, $73 million and $34 million, respectively.

Note 18—Gain on Sale of Business Units, Net:

In 2005 and 2003, the Company recognized gains before income taxes of $2 million and $5 million,
respectively, from the sale of business units and settlement of contingent liabilities related to business units that
were sold in prior years.

Note 19—Net (Loss) Gain on Marketable Securities and Other Investments, Including Impairment Losses:

Net (loss) gain on marketable securities and other investments, including impairment losses, consists of the
following:

Year ended January 31

2005 2004 2003
(In millions)
Impairment I0SSES .. ..o\ttt $20)  $(19) $(108)
Net gain on sale of investments .......................... 4 24 22
Net loss on derivative instruments . ............ ... ........ (48)

$(16) §$ S $(134)

The Company recognized impairment losses on certain marketable and private equity securities due to
declines in fair value which were deemed to be other-than-temporary. Of the total impairment losses in 2005,
2004 and 2003, $20 million, $19 million and $87 million, respectively, were impairments related to the
Company’s private equity securities. In 2003, total impairment charges also included impairments on publicly
traded equity securities of $21 million. As of January 31, 2005, the Company held private equity securities with a
carrying value of $47 million.

In 2004, the primary component of the net gain before income taxes from the sale of investments was a gain
before income taxes of $17 million from the sale of the Company’s investment in publicly-traded equity
securities of Tellium, Inc. The remainder of the aggregate gain was related to sales of certain other investments.
In 2003, the net gain before income taxes from the sale of investments includes a net gain before income taxes of
$14 million related to the liquidation of all the Company’s remaining shares and related equity collars in
VeriSign and Amdocs. In 2003, the Company also recognized a net gain before income taxes of $8 million from
the sale of certain other investments.

As described in Note 8, as of January 31, 2003, the Company no longer held derivative instruments related
to its portfolio of publicly-traded equity securities. However, during 2003 the Company recognized a net loss
before income taxes of $48 million primarily from changes in the fair value of its equity collars and warrants as
described in Note 8.
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Note 20—Realignment Costs:

In January 2004, the Company undertook an organizational realignment, primarily in the Government
segment, to better align its operations with major customers and key markets and to create larger operating units.
As aresult, in 2004, the Company had involuntary workforce reductions of 260 employees and recorded related
charges of $8 million in selling, general and administrative expenses. The one-time termination benefits
consisted of severance benefits, extension of medical benefits and outplacement services aggregating $7 million
and accelerated vesting stock compensation of $1 million. As of January 31, 2005, the Company no longer has a
liability related to realignment activities as these liabilities were paid out during 2005.

Note 21-—Discontinued Operations:
Telcordia

On November 17, 2004, the Company entered into a definitive stock purchase agreement, as amended, to
sell its ownership in Telcordia to TTI Holding Corporation (“Buyer™), an affiliate of Warburg Pincus LLC and
Providence Equity Partners Inc., for cash of $1.35 billion. On March 15, 2005, the sale of Telcordia was
completed. The initial sales price of $1.35 billion is subject to a working capital adjustment, a reduction for the
net proceeds from a sale leaseback transaction of certain Telcordia-owned real estate between Telcordia and an
unrelated third party in conjunction with the closing of the sale of Telcordia, and other adjustments as agreed
upon between the Buyer and the Company. The preliminary cash proceeds from the sale were $1.02 billion after
reduction for an estimated working capital adjustment of $225 million, which includes $201 million related to
certain Telcordia customer contract prepayments that were received in December 2004 and January 2005 and a
reduction for proceeds of $110 million from the sale leaseback transaction. The Company received the contract
prepayments included in the working capital adjustment and the proceeds from the real estate transaction before
the close of the sale.

The preliminary purchase price is subject to final adjustment no earlier than 60 days from the closing date,
as the Buyer and Telcordia have 30 days to complete the final closing balance sheet for the final purchase price
adjustments and then the Company has 30 days to review the final closing balance sheet. In addition to the cash
purchase price received at closing, the Company is entitled to receive additional amounts as contingent purchase
price, including all of the net proceeds from any judgment or settlement of the litigation Telcordia initiated
against Telkom South Africa and 50% of the net proceeds Telcordia receives in connection with the prosecution
of certain patent rights of Telcordia, both described in Note 22. The Company has indemnified the Buyer for all
income tax obligations on and through the date of close. While the Company believes it has adequate accruals for
these tax contingencies, the ultimate resolution of these matters could differ from the amounts accrued. The
Company also has customary indemnification obligations owing to the Buyer, as well as an obligation to
indemnify the Buyer against any loss Telcordia may incur as a result of an adverse judgment in the Telkom South
Africa litigation.
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The consolidated financial statements for 2004 and 2003 have been reclassified to reflect Telcordia as an
asset held for sale and discontinued operations. Telcordia’s results of operations had previously been reported as
the Non-Regulated Telecommunications segment. The summary of operating results from Telcordia’s
discontinued operations is as follows:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

REVEINUES .\ttt $874 $887  $1,068
Costs and expenses:
Costofrevenues ...........couriiiiiinennnnnanns 489 484 604
Selling, general and administrative expenses . ............ 235 258 275
Operating INCOME . .. ... ... i 150 145 189
Other income (expense), Net . .. ........ccvvvervrnenen.. ) 1
Income before income taxes . ... 149 146 189
Provision for incometaxes ............ . .. o i 16 19 37
Income from discontinued operations ...................... $133  $127 § 152

Assets and liabilities of Telcordia that are held for sale are included in assets of discontinued operations and
liabilities of discontinued operations on the consolidated balance sheet and consisted of the following:

January 31
2005 2004
" (In millions)
Assets held for sale:

Cash ..t e $ 6 § 1
Receivables,net ........ ... ... .. . . 92 84
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .................. 10 4
Property, plant and equipment ........................... 125 129
Intangible assets . ........ ... i 44 24
Goodwill . ... . 91 45
Prepaid pension assets .............. ..o, 526 556
Other assets . ..o vv e i e 6 6
$900 3849
Liabilities held for sale:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................... $(371) $(322)
Accrued payroll and employee benefits . ................... (53 (56)
Other postretirement benefits ............................ (154)  (145)
Other long-term liabilities .............................. (35) (40)
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In addition, included in the liabilities of discontinued operations on the consolidated balance sheet are the
following current deferred tax balances related to the Telcordia discontinued operations:

January 31
2005 2004
™ (n millions)
Deferred tax asset related to excess tax basis in investment in

Telcordia over the financial reporting basis . .................. $ 32
Deferred tax asset related to discontinued operations ............. 28 % 36
Deferred tax liability related to discontinued operations ........... 127y (132)

Net deferred tax liabilities included in liabilities of discontinued
Operations . ............o0... S e $ 67) $ (96)

In 2005, prior to the announcement of the sale of Telcordia, Telcordia adopted and communicated to all its
defined benefit pension plan participants a plan to redesign pension benefits. Telcordia had planned to freeze its
four defined benefit pension plans such that there would be no future cost accruals under these plans for service
rendered after the effective date of January 1, 2005. The redesign of these pension benefits would have triggered
a curtailment of the benefit obligation and a remeasurement of the plans as of the date of adoption. Due to the
planned sale of Telcordia, in August 2004, Telcordia deferred indefinitely the implementation of the pension
benefit redesign. As a result of this decision, the Company did not recorded a curtailment of the benefit
obligation nor a reduction in the projected benefit obligation during 2005.

INTESA Joint Venture

In 2003, the Company’s foreign joint venture, INTESA, ceased operations and was classified as
discontinued operations. As described in Note 22, in 2005, the Company received an approximate $6 million
settlement of an insurance claim. This claim is considered a recovery of prior losses that were recorded as part of
the discontinued operations and, therefore, has been recorded as a gain on discontinued operations of $4 million,
net of income tax expense of approximately $2 million. INTESA and the Company are involved in various legal
proceedings relating to INTESA as described in Note 22.

Note 22—Commitments and Contingencies:

The Company has various commitments as of January 31, 2005, which include outstanding letters of credit
aggregating $278 million, principally related to guarantees on contracts with domestic commercial and foreign
government customers, and outstanding surety bonds aggregating $92 million, principally related to performance
and payment type bonds. Included in the outstanding letters of credit is $117 million issued under the Company’s
five year revolving credit facility (Note 9).

Telkom South Africa

Our former Telcordia subsidiary instituted arbitration proceedings before the International Chamber of
Commerce (“ICC”) against Telkom South Africa in March 2001 as a result of a contract dispute. Telcordia is
seeking to recover damages of approximately $130 million, plus interest at a rate of 15.5%. Telkom South Africa
counterclaimed, seeking substantial damages from Telcordia, including repayment of approximately $97 million
previously paid to Telcordia under the contract and the excess costs of reprocuring a replacement system,
estimated by Telkom South Africa to be $234 million. On September 27, 2002, Telcordia prevailed in the initial
phase of the arbitration. The arbitrator found that Telkom repudiated the contract and dismissed Telkom’s
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counterclaims against Telcordia. The damages to be recovered by Telcordia were to be determined in a second
phase of the arbitration. Telkom challenged the arbitration decision in the South African High Court (Transvaal
Provincial Division), and, on November 27, 2003, the High Court judge ordered that the arbitration decision be
set aside, that the arbitrator and the ICC be dismissed and that the case be re-arbitrated before a panel of three
retired South African judges. On November 29, 2004, the South African Supreme Court of Appeal granted
Telcordia’s motion for leave to appeal the judge’s ruling and will hear the appeal. In parallel proceedings in the
United States District Court (Northern District of New Jersey), Telcordia is seeking to have its ICC arbitration
award confirmed. On January 24, 2005, the District Court declined to confirm Telcordia’s award and in a
February 17, 2005 opinion concluded that the District Court does not have personal jurisdiction over Telkom
South Africa. Telcordia is currently reviewing the Court’s ruling and considering its further legal options,
including an appeal.

On March 15, 2005, the Company completed the sale of Telcordia (Note 21). Pursuant to the definitive
stock purchase agreement, the Company is entitled to receive all of the net proceeds from any judgment or
settlement with Telkom South Africa, and, if this dispute is settled or decided adversely against Telcordia, the
Company is obligated to indemnify the buyer of Telcordia against any loss that may result from such an
outcome.

Due to the complex nature of the legal and factual issues involved and the uncertainty of litigation in
general, the outcome of the arbitration and the related court actions are not presently determinable. The Company
does not have any assets or liabilities recorded related to this contract and the related legal proceedings as of
January 31, 2005 and 2004.

Firm Fixed-price Contract with the Greek Government

The Company has a firm fixed-price contract with the Greek Government, as represented by the Ministry of
Defense, to provide the security infrastructure that was used to support the 2004 Athens Summer Olympic
Games. Shortly before the start of the Olympic Games, on July 7, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Memorandum of Understanding”) with the Greek Government, as represented by the Coordination
Committee for Olympic Preparation, pursuant to which the parties (i) recognized that the delivery and acceptance
of the system had not been completed by the scheduled date, (ii) agreed on the delivery to the customer of the
system in its then current state for use at the Olympic games, (iii) agreed on a process for completing testing and
acceptance of the system after the Olympic Games with final acceptance to occur no later than October 1, 2004,
(iv) required the Greek Government to proceed with the necessary actions for the completion of a contract
modification as soon as possible, and (v) agreed that the Company would receive a milestone payment
immediately upon the execution of the contract modification. To date, the contract modification contemplated by
the Memorandum of Understanding has not been executed, and the customer has not formally accepted the
system under the terms of the contract.

As of January 31, 2005, the Company has net billed and unbilled receivables totaling $24 million. The
unbilled receivables cannot be billed until customer acceptance or a contract modification is executed. The
Company has been actively pursuing an amendment to the contract and the completion of testing and acceptance
of the system. The parties have had numerous disagreements concering the scope, duration and results of the
testing acceptance process required and other contractual issues.

The Company has subcontracted a significant amount of the customer requirements under the contract, and
payments to the subcontractors are generally required only if the Company receives payment from the customer,
unless the non-payment results from the Company’s failure to perform in accordance with the customer contract.
In addition, the contract required the Company to lease certain equipment under an operating lease from a
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subcontractor for ten years as further described in Note 16. This subcontractor recently advised the Company by
letter that it intends to suspend its services related to the leased equipment unless it receives an $8.7 million
payment. It requested that the Company forward its letter to the Company’s customer, which the Company did.
To date, the customer has not responded.

In connection with this contract, the Company entered into payment and performance bonding requirements
on the contract totaling $251 million. The bonding requirements have been met through the issuance of standby
letters of credit of which $117 million was issued under the Company’s credit facility (Note 9) and $134 million
was issued by certain other banks. Under the terms of these bonding arrangements, the customer could call these
standby letters of credit at any time.

The Company has been in discussions with the customer to attempt to resolve the contractual issues through
an appropriate contract amendment. The Greek Government recently advised the Company that it will not be able
to execute a contract amendment until an issue concerning the legality of the contract is resolved. The Company
has recorded the financial position of the contract based on its best estimate of the loss to be realized under the
contract. However, the situation is extremely complex and dynamic, involving multiple government agencies,
customer elements and government representatives having different roles and at times, expressing inconsistent
positions. During 2005, the Company recorded a $34 million loss on this contract, reflecting changes in
management’s estimate of the loss on this contract as a result of continued delays in the testing and acceptance
process and other recent developments. This loss also includes the effect of subcontractor liabilities that
management estimates will not be paid under the subcontract terms. In 2004, the contract loss was not material.

DS &S Joint Venture

The Company has guaranteed approximately $13 million of DS&S bank debt obligations, representing
approximately 50% of a $25 million credit facility. DS&S has utilized the entire credit facility with a term loan
and outstanding letters of credit related to bonding requirements for performance on contracts, and is currently in -
default of certain bank debt covenants. At January 31, 2005, the Company provided a loan of $1 million to
DS&S. The Company and the other joint venture partner have each guaranteed the payment of 50% of certain
legal and accounting fees incurred by DS&S in conjunction with an ongoing government investigation. As of
January 31, 2005, the fair value of the guarantee for legal and accounting fees is not material to the Company and
the Company has not had to perform on any of the guarantees.

INTESA Joint Venture

In January 1997, the Company formed and held 60% of the common stock of the INTESA joint venture,
which was to provide information technology services in Latin America. In 2003, due to the political and
economic environment in Venezuela, a general work stoppage in Venezuela affected the petroleum sector,
including INTESA and PDVSA the other joint venture partner. Due to the suspension of operations, general work
force strike and the Company’s relationship with PDVSA, the operations of INTESA did not resume and was
classified as discontinued operations in 2003. The Company had strongly recommended that INTESA file for
bankruptcy as required under Venezuelan law, but PDVSA had refused to support such a filing. INTESA is still
involved in various legal proceedings, including a criminal investigation of INTESA, initiated in 2003 by the
Attorney General of Venezuela, alleging unspecified sabotage by INTESA employees. In 2004, the SENIAT, the
Venezuelan tax authority, filed a claim against INTESA for approximately $30 million for alleged non-payment
of VAT taxes in 1998. In addition, the Company’s subsidiary SAIC Bermuda, in its capacity as a shareholder of
INTESA, has been added at the request of PDVSA as a defendant to a number of suits by INTESA employees
claiming unpaid severance and pension benefits. The Company’s Venezuelan counsel advises that the Company
does not have any legal obligation for these claims, but given the unsettled political environment in Venezuela,
their outcome is uncertain.
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In 2004, the Venezuelan Supreme Court granted PDVSA’s request for injunctive relief against INTESA on
the basis of public interest of Venezuela, which obligated INTESA to transfer to PDVSA all the information
technology and equipment that related to PDVSA. PDVSA took certain actions, including denying INTESA
access to certain of its facilities and assets, which the Company believed constituted expropriation without
compensation. On September 4, 2003, the Company filed a claim of approximately $10 million with the
Overseas Protection Insurance Company (“OPIC”), a U.S. governmental entity that provides insurance coverage
against expropriation of U.S. business interests by foreign governments and instrumentalities, on the basis that
PDVSA and the Venezuelan government’s conduct constituted the expropriation of the Company’s investment in
INTESA without compensation. On February 24, 2004, OPIC made a finding that expropriation had occurred and
on May 11, 2004, OPIC paid the Company approximately $6 million in settlement of the Company’s claim. On
July 12, 2004, OPIC issued its memorandum of decision and determined that PDVSA and the Venezuelan
government totally expropriated the Company’s interest in INTESA. OPIC also determined that INTESA did not
sabotage PDVSA’s infrastructure as alleged by PDVSA in a separate proceeding.

Under the 1997 outsourcing services agreement between INTESA and PDVSA, the Company guaranteed
INTESA’s obligations. Under the terms of the services agreement, the maximum liability for INTESA for all
claims made by PDVSA for damages brought in respect of the service agreement in any calendar year is limited
to $50 million. Therefore, the Company’s maximum obligation under the guarantee is $20 million based on
PDVSA’s 40% ownership percentage in INTESA. There currently is no liability recorded related to this
guarantee. The Company does not have any assets or liabilities recorded related to this discontinued operation as
of January 31, 2005 and 2004.

Other Joint Ventures

In one of the Company’s investments in affiliates accounted for under the equity method, the Company is an
investor in Danet Partnership GBR (“GBR”), a German partnership. GBR has an internal equity market similar to
the Company’s limited market. The Company is required to provide liquidity rights to the other GBR investors in
certain circumstances. These rights allow only the withdrawing investors in the absence of a change in control
and all GBR investors in the event of a change of control to put their GBR shares to the Company in exchange
for the current fair value of those shares. The Company may pay the put price in shares of its common stock or
cash. The Company does not currently record a liability for these rights because their exercise is contingent upon
the occurrence of future events which the Company cannot determine will occur with any certainty. The
maximum potential obligation, if the Company assumes all the current GBR employees are withdrawing from
GBR, would be $13 million as of January 31, 2005. If the Company were to incur the maximum obligation and
buy all the shares outstanding from the other investors, the Company would then own 100% of GBR.

The Company has a guarantee that relates only to claims brought by the sole customer of another of its joint
ventures, Bechtel SAIC Company, LLC, for specific contractual nonperformance of the joint venture. The
Company also has a cross-indemnity agreement with the joint venture partner, pursuant to which it will only be
ultimately responsible for the portion of any losses incurred under the guarantee equal to its ownership interest of
30%. Due to the nature of the guarantee, as of January 31, 2003, the Company is not able to project the maximum
potential amount of future payments it could be required to make under the guarantee but, based on current
conditions, the likelihood of having to make any payment is remote. There currently is no liability recorded
relating to this guarantee.

On September 15, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to form a joint venture with EG&G
Technical Services, Inc. (“EG&G”) and Parsons Infrastructure & Technology Group, Inc. (“Parsons”) to form
Research and Development Solutions, LLC (“RDS”), a Delaware limited liability company that will pursue
contracts offered by the Department of Energy’s National Energy Technical Laboratory. The Company, EG&G
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and Parsons, each have an equal joint venture interest of 33 ¥3%. In conjunction with a contract award to RDS,
each joint venture partner was required to sign a performance guarantee agreement with the U.S. Government.
Under this agreement, the Company unconditionally guarantees all of RDS’s obligations to the U.S. Government
under the contract award, which has an estimated total value of $218 million. The Company also has a cross-
indemnity agreement with each of the other two joint venture partners to protect it from liabilities for any U.S.
Government claims resulting from the actions of the other two joint venture partners and to limit the Company’s
liability to its share of the contract work. As of January 31, 2005, the fair value of the guarantee is not material to
the Company.

Gracian v. SAIC Class Action Lawsuit

On March 4, 2005, the Company was served with a class action lawsuit filed in California Superior Court
for the County of San Diego brought by a former employee on behalf of herself and others similarly situated that
alleged that the Company improperly required exempt salaried and professional employees in the State of
California to utilize their paid leave balances for partial day absences. The plaintiffs contend that the Company’s
policy violates California law and seeks, among other things, the unpaid vacation balance allegedly owed to
plaintiffs, overtime compensation, punitive damages and attorney fees. The Company is analyzing the lawsuit
and the underlying issues. The Company does not expect the ultimate resolution of this matter to have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Other

In the normal conduct of its business, the Company seeks to monetize its patent portfolio through licensing
agreements. The Company also has and will continue to defend its patent positions when it believes its patents
have been infringed and is involved in such litigation from time to time. During 2005, our former Telcordia
subsidiary settled a patent infringement case and recognized a gain, net of legal costs and before income taxes, of
$14 million. This gain was recorded as a reduction in selling, general and administrative expenses and is
reflected in discontinued operations. As described in Note 21, per the terms of the sale of Telcordia that was
completed on March 15, 2005, the Company will receive 50% of the net proceeds Telcordia receives in the future
in connection with the prosecution of certain patent rights.

The Company is also involved in various investigations, claims and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct

of its business, none of which, in the opinion of the Company’s management, will have a material adverse effect
on its consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows or ability to conduct business.
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Note 23—Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited):

M

)]

Selected unaudited financial data for each quarter of the last two years is as follows:

First Second + Third Fourth
Quarter(1) Quarter(1) Quarter(1) Quarter

(In millions, except per share amounts)

2005

Revenues .............cooiinieian... $1,706 $1,768 $1,837 $1.876
Operating income .. .................. $ 120 $ 114 $ 130 $ 124
Income from continuing operations ... ... $ 67 $ 52 $ 68 $ 85
Income from discontinued operations . . . .. $ 22 $ 29 $ 27 $ 59
Netincome ......................... $ 89 $ 8l $ 95 $ 144
Basic earnings per share(2) ............. $ 48 $ 44 $ .52 $ .80
Diluted earnings per share(2) ........... $ 47 $ 43 $ .51 $ 78
2004

ReVENUEs ......ccvvienen i, $1,271 $1,445 $1,529 $1,588
Operating income .................... $ 89 $ 98 $ 115 $ 93
Income from continuing operations . ..... $ 5t $ 60 $ 78 $ 35
Income from discontinued operations . . . . . $ 18 $ 31 $ 38 $ 40
Netincome ..................c...... $ 69 $ 9l $ 116 $ 75
Basic earnings per share(2) ............. $ .37 $ 49 $ 63 $ 41
Diluted earnings per share(2) ........... $ .37 $ 48 $ .61 $ 40

Amounts for the first, second and third quarters of 2005 and all quarters in 2004 have been reclassified to
conform to the presentation of Telcordia as discontinued operations at January 31, 2005.

Earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented and therefore may not
sum to the total for the year.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following data has been derived from the consolidated financial statements. This data should be read in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Year ended January 31
2005 2004(1)  2003(1)  2002(1)  2001(1)
(Amounts in millions, except per share data)

REVENUES . oottt et e $7,187 $5,833 $4,835 $4,374 $ 4,037
CoStOf TEVENULS . . v oot e e e e e e © 6,337 5,100 4211 3,826 3,488
Selling, general and administrative expenses ................. ‘ 364 331 305 312 354
Goodwill impairment ........... ... ... ... .. 7 13 5
Gain on sale of business units, net, and subsidiary common
SEOCK ot e 2) (5 (10) (73)
Operating iNnCOME . . ...ttt i i 488 395 311 246 263
Net (loss) gain on marketable securities and other investments,
including impairment losses(2) . ........ ... ... .. ... (16) 5 (134) (456) 2,656

Interest INCOME . ... ..ottt et i 45 49 37 50 108
Interest expense .. ........ . i (88) (80) 45 (14) (14)
Other (expense) inCOME, NEL . .. ... ...ovrnein e, (12) 5 6 10 25
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries ........ (14) (10) €)) %) 6)
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes ................... (131)  (140) (61) 80  (1,129)
Income (loss) from continuing operations . .................. 272 224 107 89) 1,903
Income from discontinued operations, netof tax(1) ............ 137 127 152 107 156
Cumulative effect of accounting change, netoftax ............ 1
NetinCome ...ttt ettt $ 409 §$ 351 $ 259 $§ 19 $2,059
Earnings per share:

Basic(3) ... ‘ $223 $190 $132 $ 09 $ 876

Diluted(3) ...t $218 $18 $128 § .08 § 811
Common equivalent shares:

BasiC ... e 183 185 196 215 235

Diluted . ... 0o 188 189 203 228 254

January 31

2005 2004(1)  2003(1) 2002(1) 2001(1)
(Amounts in millions)

TOtal ASSELS . . . oo $6,010 $5,540 $4,876 $4,678 $5,871
Working capital of continuing operations .................... $2,467 $2,482 $2,291 $1,258 $1,453
Long-termdebt . .......ooiiir $1,215 $1,232 $ 897 $ 100 $ 101
Other long-term liabilities ............ ... ... ... oeennn. $ 99 $ 86 $ 75 $ 48 § 44
Stockholders” equity . . v e vt e $2,351 $2,203 $2,020 $2,524 $3344

(1) Operations of Telcordia and INTESA are classified as discontinued operations and all prior period income
statement and balance sheet information presented has been conformed to this presentation.

(2) Includes impairment losses of $108 million, $467 million and $1.4 billion on marketable equity securities
and other private investments in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and gains of $4.1 billion from sales or
exchanges of marketable equity securities and other investments in 2001.

(3) The 2002 amount includes the cumulative effect of an accounting change for the adoption of newly released
SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and in “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk,” which follows, should be read
in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and contains forward-looking statements, including
statements regarding our intent, belief or current expectations with respect to, among other things, trends
affecting our financial condition or results of operations and the impact of competition. Such statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially
from those in the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors. Some of these factors include, but are
not limited to: a decrease in or the failure to increase business with the U.S. Government, particularly in the
defense and homeland security areas, and international and commercial customers; the risks associated with our
international business; our ability to continue to identify, consummate and integrate additional acquisitions; our
ability to competitively price our technical services and products; the risk of early termination of U.S.
Government contracts; the risk of losses or reduced profits on firm fixed-price and target cost and fee with risk
sharing contracts; a failure to obtain reimbursement for costs incurred prior to the execution of a contract or
contract modification; audits of our costs, including allocated indirect costs, by the U.S. Government; a downturn
in economic conditions; limited market trade activity; legislative proposals; litigation risks; and other
uncertainties, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control. Given these
uncertainties and risks, you are warned not to rely on such forward-looking statements. We are not undertaking
any obligation to update these factors or to publicly announce the results of any changes to our forward-looking
statements due to future events or developments. Additional information about potential factors that could affect
our business and financial results is included in the section titled “Risk Factors” on page 9 of our 2005 Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Unless otherwise noted, references to the years are for fiscal years ended January 31, not calendar years.

Discontinued Operations

During July 2004, we began to explore various strategic alternatives relating to our ownership in Telcordia.
On November 17, 2004, we entered into a definitive stock purchase agreement, as amended, to sell our
ownership in Telcordia to TTI Holding Corporation (“Buyer”), an affiliate of Warburg Pincus LLC and
Providence Equity Partners Inc., for cash of $1.35 billion. On March 15, 2003, the sale of Telcordia was
completed. The initial sales price of $1.35 billion is subject to a working capital adjustment, a reduction for the
net proceeds from a sale leaseback transaction of certain Telcordia-owned real estate between Telcordia and an
unrelated third party in conjunction with the closing of the sale of Telcordia, and other adjustments as agreed
upon between the Buyer and us. The preliminary cash proceeds from the sale were $1.02 billion after reduction
for an estimated working capital adjustment of $225 million, which includes $201 million related to certain
Telcordia customer contract prepayments that were received in December 2004 and January 2005 and a reduction
for proceeds of $110 million from the sale leaseback transaction. We received the contract prepayments included
in the working capital adjustment and the proceeds from the real estate transaction before the close of the sale.

The preliminary purchase price is subject to final adjustment no earlier than 60 days from the closing date,
as the Buyer and Telcordia have 30 days to complete the final closing balance sheet for the final purchase price
adjustments and then we have 30 days to review the final closing balance sheet. In addition to the cash purchase
price received at closing, we are entitled to receive additional amounts as a contingent purchase price, including
all of the net proceeds from any judgment or settlement of the litigation Telcordia initiated against Telkom South
Africa and 50% of the net proceeds Telcordia receives in connection with the prosecution of certain patent rights
of Telcordia, both described in Note 22 of the notes to consolidated financial statements. We have indemnified
the Buyer for all income tax obligations on and through the date of close. While we believe we have adequate
accruals for these tax contingencies, the ultimate resolution of these matters could differ from the amounts
accrued. We also have customary indemnification obligations owing to the Buyer, as well as an obligation to
indemnify the Buyer against any loss Telcordia may incur as a result of an adverse judgment in the Telkom South
Africa litigation.
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The consolidated financial statements for 2004 and 2003 have been reclassified to reflect Telcordia as an
asset held for sale and discontinued operations. Telcordia’s results of operations had previously been reported as
the Non-Regulated Telecommunications segment. The summary of operating results from Telcordia’s
discontinued operations is as follows:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
. (In millions)

REVENUES .o $874  $887  $1,068
Costs and expenses: :

COStOf TEVENUES . ..t e e e 489 484 604
Selling, general and administrative expenses . ................ 235 258 275
Operating inCOME . . ... vt 150 145 189
Other (expense) iIncome, M€t . . ... ..ottt ennennneen .. @))] 1

Income before incometaxes .. .............ooiiiiai... 149 146 189
Provision forincome taxes . .......... ... v, 16 19 37
Income from discontinued operations ............... RO $133  $127 $ 152

Overview of Continuing Operations

We have three reportable segments: Government, Commercial, and Corporate and Other. Business units in
our Government segment provide technical services and products primarily for departments and agencies of the
U.S. Government through contractual arrangements as either a prime contractor or subcontractor to other
contractors. Business units in the Commercial segment provide technical services and products primarily to
customers in commercial and international markets. Our Corporate and Other segment includes our broker-dealer
subsidiary, Bull, Inc., and our real estate subsidiary, Campus Point Realty Corporation. In addition, in certain
circumstances, for management purposes as determined by the chief operating decision maker, certain revenue
and expense items related to operating business units are excluded from the evaluation of a business unit’s
operating performance in the Government or Commercial segment and reflected in the Corporate and Other
segment. For further discussion of our segments, refer to Note 2 of the notes to consolidated financial statements
and for further discussion of segment operating income, refer to page 39 of our 2005 Annual Report on Form
10-K.

Year ended January 31

2005 2004
(In millions)
Consolidated FEVENUES . . . . oottt e e e e e e $7,187 $5,833
Consolidated segment operating income . ...ttt $ 470 $ 401
NEtINCOME . .ottt ettt e e $ 409 $ 351
Cash flows from operating activities . . .. ... .ttt e $ 592 $ 367
Cash used for acquisitions of business units .............c.civereeeii ... $ 212 $ 193
Cash used for repurchases of commonstock ............ ... ... ... .. ... ... ... $ 552 $ 406
January 31
2005 2004
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments ................. ... ....... $2,350 $2,364
Notes payable and long-termdebt .. ......... ... . . i $1,285 $1,282

Our consolidated revenues grew 23% in 2005 with most of the growth from our U.S. Government
customers. With the sale of Telcordia, our Government segment now represents 94% of our consolidated
revenues. For 2006, we expect our U.S. Government revenues to continue to grow.

Our consolidated segment operating income, as defined on page 39 of our 2005 Annual Report on Form
10-K, grew 17% and grew slower than our revenues primarily due to losses recognized on a firm fixed-price

(“FFP”) contract with the Greek Government, and lower margins realized on a higher level of material and
subcontract revenues.
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Our income from continuing operations before income taxes increased 11% and grew slower than segment
operating income due to an impairment loss we recorded in 2005 on our investment in a 50% owned joint
venture, Data Systems and Solutions, LLC (“DS&S”), and an increase in net interest expense that was caused by
the negative spread between interest rates earned on our cash and short-term investments and the interest rate
expense on our long-term debt. In addition, in 2004, we recognized a $17 million gain from the sale of certain
marketable equity securities we held, and in 2005, we did not have similar gains.

At the end of 2005, cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled $2.4 billion. In addition,
we had $633 million available under our revolving credit facilities. Notes payable and long-term debt totaled
$1.3 billion, with long-term debt maturities primarily between 2012 and 2033.

Cash flows from operating activities increased in 2005 primarily from an increase in net income and non-
cash charges and lower tax payments. Working capital and accounts receivable management remain significant
areas of focus as we continue to place emphasis on increasing cash from operations. We expect cash flows from
operating activities to decrease slightly in 2006, primarily because of the timing of tax payments.

We used $212 million of cash in 2005 in connection with business acquisitions. We intend to continue to
make acquisitions as part of our overall growth strategy and expect that the use of cash in connection with
acquisitions will increase in the future.

Repurchases of our common stock increased in 2005 as a result of an increase in the number of shares
offered for sale above the number of shares sought to be purchased in our limited market stock trades. This
increase includes the sale of approximately 1.1 million shares in the April 2004 trade, approximately 191,000
shares in each of the July 2004 and October 2004 trades, and approximately 52,000 shares in the January 2005
trade by our founder and former chairman whose term on our board of directors expired in July 2004. We have
the right, but are not obligated, to purchase shares offered for sale in the limited market on any trade date. As a
result of the sale of Telcordia, repurchases of our common stock from 401(k) plans are expected to increase in
2006 as we intend to repurchase approximately 6 million shares held by the Telcordia Technologies 401(k)
Savings Plan (“Telcordia 401(k) Plan™). In accordance with the terms of the definitive stock purchase agreement
between the Buyer and us, the participants in the Telcordia 401(k) Plan must offer for sale their shares of our
common stock held in the Telcordia 401(k) Plan no later than the date of the scheduled April 2006 limited
market trade, or any such later trade date as may be agreed by the Buyer and us.

We intend the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations to
provide information that will assist in understanding our consolidated financial statements, the changes in certain
key items in those financial statements from year to year, and the primary factors that accounted for those
changes, as well as how certain accounting principles, policies and estimates affect our financial statements. In
addition, the following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations focuses on our
continuing operations; it, therefore, excludes amounts related to Telcordia and our INTESA joint venture, which
are reflected as discontinued operations for all years presented. For further background explanation on Telcordia
and INTESA, refer to Note 21 of the notes to consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”). The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Management evaluates these estimates and assumptions on an on-going
basis including those relating to allowances for doubtful accounts, inventories, fair value and impairment of
investments, fair value and impairment of intangible assets and goodwill, income taxes, warranty obligations,
realignment charges, estimated profitability of long-term contracts, pension benefits, contingencies and litigation.
Qur estimates and assumptions have been prepared on the basis of the most current available information. The
results of these estimates form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
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that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

We have several critical accounting policies that are both important to the portrayal of our financial
condition and results of operations and require management’s most difficult, subjective and complex judgments.
Typically, the circumstances that make these judgments complex and difficult have to do with making estimates
about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Our critical accounting policies are as follows:

* Revenue recognition—As described under “Revenue Recognition” in Note 1 of the notes to consolidated
financial statements, our revenues are primarily recognized using the percentage-of-completion method
as discussed in Statement of Position 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and
Certain Production-Type Contracts.” Under the percentage-of-completion method, revenues are
recognized based on progress towards completion, with performance measured by the cost-to-cost
method, efforts-expended method or units-of-delivery method, all of which require estimating total costs
at completion. Estimating costs at completion on these long-term contracts is complex and involves
significant judgments about uncertain matters due to the long-term nature of the contracts and the
technical nature of our services. We have procedures and processes in place to monitor the actual
progress of a project against estimates. Should the estimates indicate that we will experience a loss on
the contract, we will be required to recognize the estimated loss at the time it is determined. Additional
information may subsequently indicate that the loss is more or less than initially recognized which
would require further adjustment in our financial statements. Any adjustment as a result of a change in
estimate, whether it is a loss or an adjustment to revenue, is made on a prospective basis when events or
estimates warrant an adjustment. Estimates are updated quarterly or more frequently if circumstances
warrant it. Although, our primary revenue recognition policy is the percentage-of-completion method, as
described in our revenue recognition policy, we do have contracts under which we use alternative
methods to record revenue. Selecting the appropriate revenue recognition method involves judgment
based on the contract and can be complex depending upon the structure of the contract.

* Income taxes—As described under “Income Taxes” in Note 1 of the notes to consolidated financial
statements, income taxes are provided utilizing the liability method which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. In addition, the provisions for
federal, state, foreign and local income taxes are calculated on reported financial statement income
before income taxes based on current tax law and also include the cumulative effect of any changes in
tax rates from those used previously in determining deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such provisions
differ from the amounts currently payable because certain items of income and expense are recognized
in different time periods for financial reporting purposes than for income tax purposes. We also have
recorded liabilities for tax contingencies for open years based upon our best estimate of the taxes
ultimately expected to be paid. A significant portion of our income taxes payable balance is comprised
of tax accruals that have been recorded for tax contingencies.

Recording our provision for income taxes requires management to make significant judgments and
estimates for matters whose ultimate resolution may not become known until final resolution of an
examination by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or State agencies. Additionally, recording
liabilities for tax contingencies involves significant judgment in evaluating our tax positions and
developing our best estimate of the taxes ultimately expected to be paid.

Pension plan—As described in Note 11 of the notes to consolidated financial statements, we provide
retiree benefits under a defined benefit pension plan for certain employees in the United Kingdom that
are accounted for under SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions.” In the past, the Telcordia
qualified pension plan was our most significant pension plan with the largest number of participants. We
have sold Telcordia and the plan has been assumed by the buyer, therefore, we will no longer have a
significant pension plan. However, the accounting for the existing foreign pension plan is still
considered a critical accounting policy because of the estimates and management judgments involved.
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The actuarial calculations involve significant assumptions about a number of factors including the
expected cost of the benefits and the expected return on the plan assets, if any. Note 11 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements discloses the most important assumptions, which include the discount
rate used to value the future obligation, the rate of future compensation increases and the expected
return on plan assets. We select these assumptions based on current and long-term views of many
factors and make our best effort to select the appropriate assumptions. Changes in these key
assumptions can have a significant impact on the amount of our liability to retirees, the amount we are
required to fund and the amount of cost recognized in the consolidated financial statements. If the
performance of our defined benefit pension plan assets is below our expectations, we may have to
contribute funds in excess of our current funding obligations.

At January 31, 2005, the accumulated benefit obligation of our foreign pension plan was still greater
than the fair value of the pension assets, which means the pension plan remains underfunded. Therefore,
we recorded a minimum pension liability of $19 million and an after-tax non-cash reduction to
stockholders’ equity and other comprehensive income of $5 million on our foreign pension plan.

In conjunction with management’s 2005 update of the assumptions used in the actuarial valuations that
are performed on the plan’s measurement date, we lowered the discount rate, which is used to value the
future pension obligation, to 5.3%, increased the rate of inflation to 2.6%, increased the rate of
compensation increases to 3.6% and reduced the rate of return on assets to 7.6%. At January 31, 2005,
we had unrecognized actuarial losses on the pension plan of $38 million compared to $31 million at
January 31, 2004. As a result of reducing the discount rate, increasing the inflation and compensation
rate, reducing the expected rate of return on assets and the increased amortization of unrecognized
actuarial losses, absent other changes, pension expense for 2006 would increase by $1 million, which
includes $0.4 million of additional amortization of unrecognized actuarial losses over the prior year.

Investments in marketable and private equity securities—As described under “Investments In
Marketable and Private Equity Securities” in Note 1 of the notes to consolidated financial statements,
our marketable debt and equity securities are carried on the balance sheet at fair value, with changes in
fair value recorded through equity. When the fair value of a security falls below its cost basis and the
decline is deemed to be other-than-temporary, we record the difference between cost and fair value as a
realized loss. Similarly, other private equity investments accounted for on the cost method or equity
method must be marked down to estimated fair value if an other-than-temporary decline occurs. In
determining whether a decline is other-than-temporary, management considers a wide range of factors
that may vary depending upon whether the investment is a marketable debt or equity security or a
private investment. These factors include the duration and extent to which the fair value of the security
or investment has been below its cost, recent financing rounds at a value that is below our carrying
value, the operating performance of the entity, its liquidity and our investment intent. The private equity
investments involve more judgment than the marketable equity securities because there is no readily
available fair market value of a private equity security. Therefore, management, in addition to
considering a wide range of other factors, must also use valuation methods to estimate the fair value of a
private equity investment. Management judgments about these factors may impact the timing of when
an other-than-temporary loss is recognized, and management’s use of valuation methods to estimate fair
value may also impact the amount of the impairment loss.

Goodwill impairment—As described under “Goodwill and Intangible Assets” in Note 1 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements, we account for our goodwill, which represents 46% of our
consolidated long-term assets and 8% of consolidated total assets at January 31, 2005, under Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS
No. 142 changed the accounting for goodwill from an amortization approach to an impairment-only
approach. Goodwill is tested annually at the same time every year and when an event occurs or
circumstances change such that it is reasonably possible that an impairment may exist. The goodwill
impairment test is a two-step process which requires management to make judgments in determining
what assumptions to use in the calculation. The first step of the process consists of estimating the fair
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value of each of the reporting units based on a discounted cash flow model vusing revenue and profit
forecasts and comparing those estimated fair values with the carrying values, which includes the
allocated goodwill. If the fair value is less than the carrying value, a second step is performed to
compute the amount of the impairment by determining an implied fair value of goodwill. The implied
fair value of goodwill is the residual fair value derived by deducting the fair value of a reporting unit’s
assets and liabilities from its estimated fair value calculated in step one. The impairment charge
represents the excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value
of their goodwill. The revenue and profit forecasts used in step one are based on management’s best
estimate of future revenues and operating costs. Changes in these forecasts could cause a particular
reporting unit to either pass or fail the first step in the impairment test, which could significantly change
the amount of the impairment recorded from step two. In addition, the estimated future cash flows are
adjusted to present value by applying a discount rate. Changes in the discount rate impact the
impairment by affecting the calculation of the fair value of the reporting unit in step one.

.

Derivative instruments—While our 2005 and 2004 derivative instruments are not material compared to
2003 when we held equity collars, we consider our accounting policy on derivative instruments to be
critical because of the nature of derivative instruments and the difficulty of determining their fair value.
As described in Note 8 of the notes to consolidated financial statements, we use derivative instruments
for risk management purposes. GAAP requires all derivative instruments to be recorded on the balance
sheet as either assets or liabilities measured at fair value. In some cases, quoted market prices are not
available, so we are required to estimate the fair value of the instruments. Fair value estimates might be
provided by the counterparty to the instrument or we may use cash flow or other models to determine a
fair value. In all cases, estimates and assumptions as of a specific point in time, often about future
financial prices and rates that are truly continuous in nature, are required to arrive at a fair value. The
estimated fair value of the derivative instruments does not necessarily reflect the future settlement
amount since the fair value is calculated at various points in time using estimates, assumptions and
factors relevant to that particular point in time. Because of the factors used to estimate fair value, the
ultimate gain or loss on the derivative could differ from the amount recorded in the prior financial
statements. ‘

Review of Continuing Operations

Revenues

The following table summarizes changes in consolidated and segment revenues on an absolute basis and
segment revenues as a percentage of consolidated revenues for the last three years:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
($ in millions)

Consolidated TeVenuUes .. ... ...cvvriin i $7,187  $5.833  $4,835

Increase overprioryear ........... .. ... o i 23% 21%
Government SEZMENt TEVENUES ... ...oouerernnnnnnn.... $6,738  $5426  $4,382

Increase over prior year ........................ L 24% 24%

As a percentage of consolidated revenues .............. 94% 93% 91%
Commercial segment revenues ........................ $ 521 % 419 $ 449

Increase (decrease) over prioryear ................... 24% (M %

As a percentage of consolidated revenues .............. 7% 7% 9%
Corporate and Other segment revenues .................. $ 72) $§ (1) $ 4

Consolidated revenues increased in 2005 and 2004 primarily due to growth in revenues from our U.S.
Government customers in our Government segment. The growth in our Government segment in 2004 more than
offset the decline in revenue from our customers in the Commercial segment.
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The growth in our Government segment revenues in 2005 and 2004 was the result of growth in our
traditional business areas with departments and agencies of the U.S. Government and reflects increased contract
awards from the U.S. Government. Our growth also reflects the increased budgets of our customers in the
national security business area. Revenues from U.S. Government customers with greater than 10% of
consolidated revenues were as follows:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003

U S A . oottt e 13% 13% 13%
U S NaVY o 13% 12% 12%
U.S. AITFOrce ..o e e 1% 11% 12%

Approximately 4% of the 2005 growth in the Government segment revenues was a result of acquisitions
made in 2005, while the remaining 20% represented internal growth. We derive a substantial portion of our
revenues from the U.S. Government as either a prime contractor or subcontractor, and therefore, our revenues
could be adversely impacted by a reduction in the overall level of U.S. Government spending and by changes in
its spending priorities from year to year. In general, obtaining U.S. Government contracts remains a highly
competitive process. We continue to increase revenues with the U.S. Government in the service type contracts
which are competitively priced utilizing lower cost structures. This constant growth reflects the increasingly
competitive business environment in our traditional business areas, as well as our increased success in the
engineering and field services markets, which typically involve these lower cost service type contracts.

The increase in our Commercial segment revenues in 2005 was attributable to higher revenues in our
transportation and security systems business area, including revenues from a Canadian security system business
acquired late in 2004. In addition, revenues increased because of exchange rate changes between the U.S. dollar
and the British pound, which caused a relatively constant level of local United Kingdom revenues to be translated
into a higher level of U.S. dollars. Our revenues from our United Kingdom subsidiary represented 31% of the
Commercial segment revenues.

The Corporate and Other segment includes the elimination of intersegment revenues of $45 million, $25
million and $21 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The remaining balance for each of the years
represents the net effect of certain revenue and expense items related to operating business units that are
excluded from the evaluation of a business unit’s operating performance in the Government or Commercial
segment and instead are reflected in the Corporate and Other segment.

Revenues from our contracts are generated from the efforts of our technical staff as well as the pass-through
of costs for material and subcontract (“M&S”) efforts, which primarily occur on large, multi-year systems
integration type contracts. M&S revenues generally have lower fees than our labor-related revenues. At the end
of 2005, we had approximately 42,400 full-time and part-time employees compared to 39,300 and 34,700 at the
end of 2004 and 2003, respectively. M&S revenues were $2.6 billion in 2005, $1.9 billion in 2004 and $1.4
billion in 2003. M&S revenues as a percentage of consolidated revenues increased to 37% in 2005 from 33% in
2004 and 30% in 2003. M&S revenues as a percentage of consolidated revenues increased in 2005 as certain
systems engineering and integration contracts in the Government segment had significant quantities of materials
delivered and integrated during 2005.

Contract types—This discussion relates to the types of contracts we enter into and the financial risk
associated with each type. The following table summarizes revenues by contract type for the last three years:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003

Cost-reimbursement . .............oiiiiiiiiiii i 44% 45% 48%
Time-and-materials and fixed-price level-of-effort ............... 38% 38% 33%
Firmfixed-price . . ... ... e 16% 15% 14%
Target cost and fee withrisk sharing .......................... 2% 2% 5%

Total .. ..o 100% 100% 100%



Cost-reimbursement contracts provide for the reimbursement of direct costs and allowable indirect costs,
plus a fee or profit component. Time-and-materials (“T&M”) contracts typically provide for the payment of
negotiated fixed hourly rates for labor hours incurred plus reimbursement of other allowable direct costs at actual
cost plus allocable indirect costs. Fixed-price level-of-effort contracts are similar to T&M contracts since
ultimately revenues are based upon the labor hours provided to the customer. FFP contracts require us to provide
stipulated products, systems or services for a fixed price. We assume greater performance risk on FFP contracts
and our failure to accurately estimate ultimate costs or to control costs during performance of the work could
result, and in some instances has resulted, in reduced profits or losses for particular contracts. During 2005, we
recorded a loss of $34 million on a FFP contract with the Greek Government as described in “Commitments and
Contingencies” on page 45 of our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Target cost and fee with risk sharing
contracts provide for the customer to reimburse our costs plus a specified or target fee or profit, if our actual
costs equal a negotiated target cost. If actual costs fall below the target cost, we receive a portion of the cost
underrun as additional fee or profit. If actual costs exceed the target cost, our target fee and cost reimbursement
are reduced by a portion of the overrun. Our commercial information technology outsourcing business frequently
contracts on this basis. ‘

Volume—The growth of our business is directly related to the receipt of contract awards and contract
performance. We performed on 907 contracts with annual revenues greater than $1 million in 2005 compared to
752 and 676 such contracts in 2004 and 2003, respectively. These larger contracts represented 87% of our
revenues in 2005, 86% in 2004 and 84% in 2003. Of these contracts, 104 contracts had individual revenues
greater than $10 million in 2005 compared to 88 such contracts in 2004 and 81 in 2003. The remainder of our
revenues is derived from a large number of individual contracts with revenues of less than $1 million. Although
we have committed substantial resources and personnel needed to pursue and perform larger contracts, we
believe we also maintain a suitable environment for the performance of smaller, highly technical research and
development contracts. These smaller programs often provide the foundation for our success on larger
procurements.

Cost of Revenues

The following table summarizes cost of revenues as a percentage of revenues:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003

Consolidated cost of revenues as a percentage of consolidated

TEVENUES . o\ vvv ettt e et N 88.2% 87.4% 87.1%
Segment cost of revenues as a percentage of its revenues:

GOVEITHTIENT . ..ottt et e e e e et 87.9% 87.1% 87.3%

Commercial . ... .. 75.5% 75.3% 76.0%

Cost of revenues as a percentage of revenues for the Government segment increased in 2005 and 2004
primarily due to lower margins realized on the high level of M&S revenues described earlier and FFP contract
overruns, primarily related to the FFP contract with the Greek Government as described in “Commitments and
Contingencies” on page 45 of our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Commercial segment cost of revenues as a percentage of its revenues did not change significantly.

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses

SG&A expenses are comprised of general and administrative, bid and proposal (“B&P”) and independent
research and development (“IR&D”) expenses. The following table summarizes SG&A as a percentage of
revenues:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003

Consolidated SG&A as a percentage of consolidated revenues ... .. 50% 57% 63%
Segment SG&A as a percentage of its revenues:
GOVEIMMENT . .. vttt it ettt e e et e e 42% 47% 52%
Commercial ... ... . 16.1% 18.1% 16.3%




The decrease in SG&A as a percentage of consolidated revenues was attributable to decreases in our
Government and Commercial segment and an $18 million gain on the sale of land and buildings in our Corporate
and Other segment.

SG&A as a percentage of revenues in the Government segment decreased in 2005 and 2004 primarily
because we have been able to largely maintain our existing administrative infrastructure to support the revenue
growth. Included in SG&A for 2004 are organizational realignment costs, which are further discussed below in
“Realignment Charges.” The levels of B&P and IR&D activities and costs have not significantly fluctuated and
have remained relatively consistent with the revenue growth.

SG&A as a percentage of revenues in the Commercial segment was higher in 2004 primarily due to
increased marketing efforts in that year.

Realignment Charges

Included in cost of revenues and SG&A in 2004 are costs related to realignment activities. In January 2004,
we undertook an organizational realignment to better align our operations with our major customers and key
markets, and to create larger operating units. As a result, in 2004, we had involuntary workforce reductions of
260 employees and recorded total realignment charges of $8 million in SG&A, primarily in the Government
segment. The one-time termination benefits consisted of severance benefits, extension of medical benefits and
outplacement services of $7 million and accelerated vesting stock compensation of $1 million. At January 31,
2004, we had $7 million in accrued liabilities related to the realignment activities. These liabilities were paid out
during 2005. Therefore, as of January 31, 2005, we no longer have a liability related to realignment activities.

Segment Operating Income (“SOI”)

SOI, which is presented in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information,” is considered a non-GAAP financial measure. We use SOI as our internal measure of
operating performance. It is calculated as operating income before income taxes less losses on impaired
intangible and goodwill assets, less non-recurring gains or losses on sales of business units, subsidiary stock and
similar items, plus equity in the income or loss of unconsolidated affiliates, plus minority interest in income or
loss of consolidated subsidiaries. We use SOI as our internal performance measure because we believe it
provides a more comprehensive view of our ongoing business operations and, therefore, is more useful in
understanding our operating results. Unlike operating income, SOI includes only our ownership interest in
income or loss from our majority-owned subsidiaries and our partially-owned unconsolidated affiliates. In
addition, SOI excludes the effects of transactions that are not part of on-going operations such as gains or losses
from the sale of business units or other operating assets as well as investment activities of our subsidiary, SAIC
Venture Capital Corporation. In accordance with SFAS No. 131, for 2005, 2004 and 2003, the reconciliation of
consolidated SOI of $470 million, $401 million and $319 million, respectively, to consolidated operating income
of $488 million, $395 million and $311 million, respectively, is shown in Note 2 of the notes to consolidated
financial statements. The following table summarizes changes in SOIL:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
($ in millions)

Consolidated SOI .. ... e $470 $401  $319
Increase overprioryear ........... ... ... ... ... 17%  26%
As a percentage of consolidated revenues . ................. 65% 69% 6.6%
Government SOI ... ... ..ot i $538 $457 %329
Increase OVEr Prior Year . .........oviunniiunnnanneennnen 18%  39%
As a percentage of itsrevenues . ........... ... ... 80% 84% 75%
Commercial SOL ...\ttt $ 42 $30 336
Increase (decrease) over prior year ....................... 40% (1N%
As apercentage of itsrevenues ............ ... ... ... 81% 72% 8.0%
Corporate and Other segment operating loss . ................. $(110) $(86) $@46)




The 2005 increase in Government SOI, on an absolute basis, reflects the increase in revenues and lower
SG&A expenses. However, the decrease as a percentage of consolidated revenues reflects lower margins earned
on the high level of M&S revenues and a $34 million FFP contract overrun on a contract with the Greek
Government as described in “Commitments and Contingencies” on page 45 of our 2005 Annual Report on Form
10-K. The 2004 increase in Government SOI, on an absolute basis and as a percentage of its revenues, reflects
higher revenues, increased overall negotiated contract margins, lower FFP contract losses and lower SG&A
expenses.

The 2005 increase in our Commercial SOI, on an absolute basis and as percentage of revenues, was
primarily attributable to growth in revenues and lower SG&A expenses. The decrease in 2004, on an absolute
basis and as a percentage of revenues, was primarily attributable to a decline in revenues without a proportional
decrease in SG&A expenses.

The increase in our Corporate and Other segment operating loss is primarily related to a higher internal
interest charge primarily related to our Government segment, which earned a corresponding higher interest credit
due to improved management of their capital resources, higher unallocated accrued incentive compensation costs
as a result of improved SOI in our Government segment and an increase in certain revenue and expense items
recorded at Corporate and Other and excluded from the business units’ operating performance. Partially
offsetting the 2005 increase in Corporate and Other segment operating loss is an $18 million gain on the sale of
land and buildings at two different locations. The increase in 2004 was also primarily due to a higher internal
interest charge primarily related to our Government segment, which earned a corresponding higher interest credit
due to improved management of their capital resources, higher unallocated accrued incentive compensation costs
as a result of improved SOI in our Government segment.

Other Income Statement Items
Goodwill Impairment

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis or between annual tests if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit, which includes
the goodwill, below its carrying value. During 2005, we did not record any impairment on goodwill. During
2004, as a result of the loss of certain significant contracts and proposals related to a reporting unit, we
determined that goodwill assigned to that reporting unit had become impaired. Accordingly, we recorded
goodwill impairment charges of $7 million in 2004 compared to $13 million in 2003. The impairment charges
represent the excess of the carrying amount of the reporting units’ goodwill over the implied fair value of their
goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is the residual fair value derived by deducting the fair value of a
reporting unit’s assets and liabilities from its estimated fair value based on a discounted cash flow model using
revenue and profit forecasts. Impairment losses on intangible assets were not material in 2005 and we did not
record any impairment charges on intangible assets in 2004 and 2003 because there were no circumstances or
events that occurred which would have indicated a possible impairment.

Interest Income and Interest Expense

During 2005, average interest rates increased slightly while our average cash balances remained relatively
consistent with 2004 and 2003. In 2004, interest income increased primarily as a result of interest received from a
favorable audit settlement with the IRS for a refund of research tax credits.

Interest expense increased in 2005 primarily as a result of interest on $300 million of new long-term debt
that was issued in June 2003 and outstanding for a full year in 2005. Interest expense increased in 2004 as a
result of recognizing a full year of interest on the $800 million debt that was issued in June 2002 and interest on
the $300 million debt issuance in June 2003. Interest expense also reflects interest on our other outstanding
public debt securities that were issued in 1998, a building mortgage, deferred compensation arrangements and
other notes payable.

Net (Loss) Gain on Marketable Securities and Other Investments, Including Impairment Losses

Gains or losses related to transactions from our investments that are accounted for as marketable equity or
debt securities, or as cost method investments are recorded as “Net (loss) gain on marketable securities and other
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investments, including impairment losses” and are part of non-operating income or expense. Impairment losses
on marketable equity securities and private equity investments resulting from declines in fair values that are
deemed to be other-than-temporary are also recorded in this financial statement line item. Due to the non-routine
nature of the transactions that are recorded in this financial statement line item, significant fluctuations from year
to year are not unusual. In 2004, we recognized a net gain from these transactions compared to net losses in 2005
and 2003. :

We recorded impairment losses totaling $20 million in 2005 compared to $19 million in 2004 and $108
million in 2003. Substantially all of the impairment losses in 2005 and 2004 and $87 million in 2003 were related
to our private equity securities. In 2003, impairment losses also included impairments on our publicly traded
equity securities of $21 million. Taking into account these impairments in 2005, as of January 31, 2005, we hold
private equity securities with a carrying value of $47 million.

During 2004, we recognized a net gain before income taxes of $24 million from the sale of certain
investments, primarily from the sale of our investment in publicly-traded equity securities of Tellium, Inc., which
resulted in a gain before income taxes of $17 million. In 2003, we recognized a net gain before income taxes of
$22 million from the sale of certain investments. The largest component of the net gain in 2003 was the
liquidation of all our remaining shares of VeriSign, Inc. (“VeriSign™) and Amdocs Limited (“Amdocs™) and
related equity collars that resulted in a gain before income taxes of $14 million.

As more fully described in Note 8 of the notes to consolidated financial statements, we are currently
exposed to interest rate risks, foreign currency risks and equity price risks which are inherent in the financial
instruments arising from transactions entered into in the normal course of business. We will from time to time
use derivative instruments to manage this risk. As a result of the liquidation in 2003 of all of our remaining
VeriSign and Amdocs shares and the equity collars that hedged those shares, the remaining derivative
instruments we currently hold have not had a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations. Net losses from derivative instruments in 2005 and 2004 were not material. As described in Note 19
of the notes to consolidated financial statements, a net loss before income taxes of $48 million in 2003 was
related to the equity collars previously held.

Other (Expense) Income

In 2005, other expense includes an impairment loss of $9 million on our investment in DS&S. The
impairment loss was primarily due to a significant business downturn at DS&S caused by a loss of business and
an ongoing government investigation. In addition, we also recognized equity losses in DS&S of $5 million in
2005 and also maintain financial commitments related to DS&S as described in “Commitments and
Contingencies” on page 45 of our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our total equity losses of all our equity
investments were $6 million in 2005 compared to equity income of $5 million and $2 million in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. For 2005, 2004 and 2003, there were no other significant items to note in “Other (Expense)
Income.”

Provision For Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes as a percentage of income before income taxes was 32.5% in 2005, 38.4% in
2004 and 36.4% in 2003. The tax rate in 2005 was lower than in 2004 primarily as a result of the favorable
closure of state tax audit matters. The tax rate in 2004 reflects higher state taxes and lower charitable
contributions of appreciated property than in 2003, offset by a favorable federal audit settlement for 1997 to 2000
and a favorable federal audit settlement for 1988 to 1993 involving a claim for refund of research tax credits. The
tax rate in 2003 was the result of charitable contributions of appreciated property and the favorable resolution of
certain tax positions with state and federal tax authorities, as well as a lower effective state tax rate.

As aresult of the sale of Telcordia and presentation of Telcordia as discontinued operations, the provision
for income taxes as a percentage of income before income taxes for continuing operations was higher than it
would have been with Telcordia included in continuing operations. Telcordia had contributed to most of the
incremental research spending that provided qualification for federal research credits and it had significant
charitable contributions of appreciated property, both of which had the impact of reducing our overall tax rate.
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On October 4, 2004, the “Working Families Tax Relief Act of 2004” was signed into law. As a result, the
research and experimentation tax credit was retroactively reinstated to June 30, 2004 and extended through
December 31, 2005. On October 22, 2004, the “American Jobs Creation Act of 2004” was signed into law. As a
result, limitations on charitable contributions were enacted effective after June 3, 2004, which make it unlikely
for us to obtain future benefits for such contributions. Therefore, the tax rate for 2006 and subsequent years will
be higher than it would have been if future contributions were made and the law had not changed. Other elements
of the new legislation are not expected to have a material impact on our future effective tax rate.

We are subject to routine compliance reviews by the IRS and other taxing jurisdictions on various tax
matters, which may include challenges to various tax positions we have taken. We have recorded liabilities for
tax contingencies for open years based upon our best estimate of the taxes ultimately expected to be paid. A
significant portion of our income taxes payable balance is comprised of tax accruals that have been recorded for
tax contingencies. We are currently undergoing several routine examinations. While we believe we have
adequate accruals for tax contingencies, there is no assurance that the tax authorities will not assert that we owe
taxes in excess of our accruals.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments in marketable securities totaled $2.4 billion at
January 31, 2005 and 2004. Our primary sources of liquidity during 2005 were funds provided by operations and
existing cash and cash equivalents. We also have two revolving credit facilities (“credit facilities”) totaling $750
million with a group of financial institutions that provide for (i) a five-year revolving credit facility of up to $500
million that was amended and restated on July 28, 2004, which allows borrowings until July 2007, and (ii) a five-
year revolving credit facility of up to $250 million that was entered into as of July 28, 2004, which allows
borrowings until July 2009. The $250 million five-year revolving credit facility, which replaced a 364-day $250
million revolving credit facility that expired in July 2004, is on terms substantially similar to the $500 million
five-year revolving credit facility.

Borrowings under the credit facilities are unsecured and bear interest at a rate determined, at our option,
based on either LIBOR plus a margin or a defined base rate. We pay a facility fee on the total commitment
amount and a fee if utilization exceeds 50% of the total commitment amount. During 2005 and 2004, we did not
borrow under either of our credit facilities, however, the amount available for borrowings on our $500 million
five-year revolving credit facility was reduced due to a FFP contract with the Greek Government with bonding
requirements, approximately $117 million of which have been met through the issuance of standby letters of
credit under our $500 million five-year revolving credit facility. The terms of the standby letters of credit require
them to remain outstanding until the customer has formally accepted the system pursuant to the contract. We do
not expect to issue any additional standby letters of credit for this contract under the $500 million five-year
revolving credit facility. For additional information on this contract, refer to Note 22 of the notes to condensed
consolidated financial statements or “Commitments and Contingencies” on page 45 of our 2005 Annual Report
on Form 10-K. As of January 31, 2005, the entire amount under our new $250 million five-year revolving credit
facility was available and $383 million of the $500 million five-year revolving credit facility was available. Our
credit facilities contain customary affirmative and negative covenants. The financial covenants contained in the
credit facilities require us to maintain a trailing four quarter interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.5 to 1.0 and
a ratio of consolidated funded debt to a trailing four quarter earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA”) of not more than 3.0 to 1.0. These covenants also restrict certain of our activities,
including, among other things, our ability to create liens, dispose of assets, merge or consolidate with other
entities, and create guaranty obligations. The credit facilities also contain customary events of default, including,
among others, defaults based on certain bankruptcy and insolvency events; nonpayment; cross-defaults to other
debt; breach of specified covenants; change of control and material inaccuracy of representations and warranties.
As of January 31, 2005, we were in compliance with all the financial covenants under the credit facilities.

In 2004, we modified our prior plan for financing the $91 million purchase of land and buildings in
McLean, Virginia, which we leased under two operating leases. Rather than use the five-year variable rate
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mortgage financing previously planned, we issued fixed rate debt by completing a private offering of $300
million of senior unsecured notes (“5.5% notes™) and used $91 million of the proceeds to acquire the land and
buildings. The 5.5% notes are due on July 1, 2033 and pay interest on a semi-annual basis beginning January 1,
2004. In anticipation of this debt issuance, we entered into interest rate lock agreements to lock in the effective
borrowing rate on portions of the anticipated debt financing. Due to declines in interest rates from the dates of
entering into the treasury lock contracts to the date of the debt issuance, we were required to pay $5 million to
settle the treasury lock contracts upon the debt issuance. This loss of $5 million before income taxes is being
amortized to interest expense over the term of the related debt.

In 2004, we entered into swap agreements to manage our overall interest rate risk and cash flow related to
our outstanding debt. In conjunction with our modified financing plan discussed above, on May 29, 2003, we
also entered into additional interest rate swap agreements (“2003 swap agreements”) to offset the effects of the
swap agreements entered into in January 2002 (“2002 swap agreements”), as described in Note 8 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements. As of May 29, 2003, the 2002 swap agreements were no longer designated in a
cash flow hedging relationship and, therefore, all future changes in fair value are being recorded directly into
income through August 2008. The cumulative loss of $14 million before income taxes on the 2002 swap
agreements through May 29, 2003 is being amortized as additional interest expense over the contemplated five-
year mortgage term that would have ended in August 2008.

Cash flows generated from operating activities were $592 million in 2005 compared to $367 million in 2004
and $371 million in 2003, Net cash provided by operating activities in 2005 consisted primarily of net income of
$409 million reduced for income from discontinued operations of $137 million, increased for non-cash charges to
income of $224 million, and $47 million from working capital. The increase in 2005 was primarily generated by
an increase in net income and non-cash charges and lower tax payments. We continue to place emphasis and
management focus on contract billing and collection processes.

We used cash of $349 million for investing activities in 2005 compared to $461 million used in 2004. In
2005, we used less cash for investing activities because we did not purchase any land or buildings as we did in
2004, and our purchases of debt and equity securities, net of proceeds from sales of investments, decreased. In
2004, we used cash to purchase land and buildings in McLean, Virginia that had previously been leased. In 2005
and 2004, we continued to acquire businesses, which is part of our overall growth strategy. In 2003, we generated
net cash of $213 million from investing activities. This net cash was generated primarily from the liquidation of
all our remaining shares in VeriSign and Amdocs and the related equity collars, which resulted in $631 million of
proceeds.

Our net cash used for financing activities was $478 million, $26 million and $104 million in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. We used more cash in 2005 than in 2004 for financing activities because we did not generate
cash proceeds from any debt offerings. In 2004 and 2003, our primary sources of cash from financing activities
were the net proceeds from the debt offerings in June 2003 and June 2002, respectively. Our primary use of cash
for financing activities continues to be for the repurchase of our common stock, as described below:

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003
(In millions)

Repurchases of common stock:

Limited market stock trades ............................. $358  $220  $482
401(k) and retirementplans . ........ ... .. ... ... .. ... 75 74 188
Upon employee terminations . ........................... 68 56 143
Other stock transactions ............c.ooviuvinenvnennenn. 51 56 98
Total .. $552  $406 %911

In 2005, repurchases in the limited market stock trades increased and was primarily attributable to an
increase in the number of shares offered for sale above the number of shares sought to be purchased in our stock
trades. This increase includes the sale of approximately 1.1 million shares in the April 2004 trade, approximately
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191,000 shares in each of the July 2004 and October 2004 trades, and approximately 52,000 shares in the January
2005 trade by our founder and former chairman whose term on our board of directors expired in July 2004. In
2004, stock repurchases declined in all areas, most notably in the stock trades. Although we have no obligation to
make such repurchases in the stock trades, we have repurchased the excess of the shares offered for sale above
the number of shares sought to be purchased by authorized buyers in the 2005, 2004 and 2003 stock trades. The
number of shares we may purchase in the limited market on any given trade date is subject to legal and
contractual restrictions. As a result of the sale of Telcordia, our common stock will no longer be an investment
choice in the Telcordia 401(k) Plan. We intend to repurchase approximately 6 million shares of common stock
held by the Plan, which had a fair value of $243 million at January 31, 2005. These shares would be repurchased
by us at the stock price in effect at the time of repurchase. In accordance with the terms of the definitive stock
purchase agreement between the Buyer and us, the participants in the Telcordia 401(k) Plan must offer for sale
their shares of our common stock held in the Telcordia 401(k) Plan no later than the date of the scheduled April
2006 limited market trade, or any such later trade date as may be agreed by the Buyer and us. Repurchases of our
shares reduce the amount of retained earnings in the stockholders’ equity section of our consolidated balance
sheet. If we continue to experience net share repurchases in stock trades and other repurchase activities, as
described above, in excess of our cumulative earnings, our retained earnings will be reduced and could result in
an accumulated deficit within our stockholders’ equity.

There is no public market for our Class A common stock. As more fully described in the “Limited Market”
discussion on page 22 of our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K, a limited market is maintained by our wholly-
owned broker-dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc. that permits existing stockholders to offer for sale shares of Class A
common stock on predetermined days which we call a “trade date.” Generally, there are four trade dates each
year; however, a scheduled trade date could be postponed or cancelled. All sales in the limited market are made
at the prevailing price of the Class A common stock determined by the board of directors or its stock policy
committee pursuant to the valuation process described on page 24 of our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K. If
the number of shares offered for sale by stockholders exceeds the number of shares sought to be purchased by
authorized buyers in any trade, our stockholders who requested to sell stock may not be able to sell all such stock
in that trade. Although we are currently authorized, we are not obligated to purchase shares of stock in the
limited market on any trade date. There is no assurance that we will continue to purchase such excess shares in
the future. Accordingly, if we elect not to participate in a trade or otherwise limit our participation in a trade, our
stockholders may be unable to sell all the shares they desire to sell.

Cash Flow Expectations for 2006

Managing our cash flow continues to be a key area of focus. We expect our cash flows from operating
activities to decrease slightly in 2006, primarily because of the timing of tax payments, and we plan to continue
our investing activities. The proceeds from the sale of Telcordia will be a significant source of cash from
investing activities in 2006. We expect to make $77 million of capital expenditures, including $6 million for real
estate transactions. We are also planning to increase our level of business acquisitions. We expect to spend cash
resources for repurchases of shares in 2006 as we did in 2005. While we cannot predict how much we will spend
for such repurchases, it is possible that in 2006 we will spend as much or more than we spent for repurchases in
2005. We expect repurchases of our common stock from 401(k) plans to increase in 2006 as a result of the sale of
Telcordia, as previously discussed above. Based on our existing cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments in
marketable securities, borrowing capacity and planned cash flows from operations, we expect to have sufficient
funds in 2006 for our operations, capital expenditures, stock repurchases, business acquisitions and equity
investments, and to meet our contractual obligations noted in the table above, including interest payments on our
outstanding debt. We also believe the risk is low that we would not be able to meet our contractual obligations
during 2006.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are party to certain off-balance sheet arrangements including certain guarantees, indemnifications and
lease obligations. We have outstanding performance guarantees and cross-indemnity agreements in conjunction
with our joint venture investments. See Note 16 of the notes to consolidated financial statements for detailed
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information about our lease commitments and “Commitments and Contingencies” on page 45 of our 2005
Annual Report on Form 10-K for detailed information about our guarantees associated with our joint ventures.

In connection with the sale of Telcordia, as described in Note 21 of the notes to consolidated financial
statements and “Commitments and Contingencies” on page 45 of our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K, we
retain the outcome of litigation associated with Telkom South Africa and certain patent rights as well as income
tax obligations on and through the date of close, which was March 15, 2005. We also have customary
indemnification obligations, expect to incur approximately $25 million of costs related to transition services and
certain employee stock related transactions, and intend to repurchase our common stock from the Telcordia
401(k) Plan as previously discussed.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our obligations to make future payments pursuant to certain contracts or
arrangements as of January 31, 2005, as well as an estimate of the timing in which these obligations are expected
to be satisfied.

Payments Due by Fiscal Year
Total 2006 2007-2008  2009-2010 2011 and After
(In millions)

Contractual obligations:

Long-termdebt(1) ................. $2,536  $143 $172 $242 $1,979

Operating lease obligations(2) ........ 361 107 128 65 61

Capital lease obligations ............ 6 3 3

Purchase obligations(3) ............. 3 2 1

Other long-term liabilities(4) ......... 99 15 48 25 11
Total contractual obligations ........... $3,005 $270 $352 $332 $2,051

(1) Includes interest payments on our outstanding debt of $77 million in 2006, $151 million in 2007-2008, $141
million in 2009-2010 and $875 million in 2011 and after.

(2) Includes $98 million related to an operating lease on a contract with the Greek Government, whereby we are
not obligated to make the lease payments to the lessee if our customer defaults on payments to us, as
described in Note 16 of the notes to consolidated financial statements.

(3) Includes obligations to transfer funds under legally enforceable agreements for fixed or minimum amounts
or quantities of goods or services at fixed or minimum prices. Excludes purchase orders for products or
services to be delivered under government contracts under which we have full recourse under normal
contract termination clauses.

(4) Includes estimated payments to settle the 2002 and 2003 swap agreements, contractually required payments
to the foreign defined benefit pension plan and deferred compensation arrangements. Because payments
under the deferred compensation arrangements are based upon the participant’s termination, we are unable
to determine when such amounts will become due. Therefore, for purpose of this table we assumed equal
payments over the next six years.

Commitments and Contingencies
Telkom South Africa

As described in Note 22 of the notes to consolidated financial statements, our former Telcordia subsidiary
initiated arbitration proceedings against Telkom South Africa in March 2001 as a result of a contract dispute. At
January 31, 2005, we continue to pursue our dispute through the courts. As described in Note 21 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements, per the terms of the sale of Telcordia that was completed on March 15, 2005,
we are entitled to receive all of the net proceeds from any judgment or settlement with Telkom South Africa, and
if this dispute is settled or decided adversely against us, we are obligated to indemnnify the buyer of Telcordia
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against any loss that may result from such an outcome. Due to the complex nature of the legal and factual issues
involved and the uncertainty of litigation in general, the outcome of the arbitration and the related court actions
are not presently determinable. We do not have any assets or liabilities recorded related to this contract and the
related legal proceedings as of January 31, 2005 and 2004.

FFP Contract with the Greek Government

We have a firm fixed-price contract with the Greek Government, as represented by the Ministry of Defense,
to provide the security infrastructure that was used to support the 2004 Athens Summer Olympic Games. Shortly
before the start of the Olympic Games, on July 7, 2004, we entered into an agreement (““the Memorandum of
Understanding”) with the Greek Government, as represented by the Coordination Committee for Olympic
Preparation, pursuant to which the parties (i) recognized that the delivery and acceptance of the system had not
been completed by the scheduled date, (ii) agreed on the delivery to the customer of the system in its then current
state for use at the Olympic games, (iii) agreed on a process for completing testing and acceptance of the system
after the Olympic Games with final acceptance to occur no later than October 1, 2004, (iv) required the Greek
Government to proceed with the necessary actions for the completion of a contract modification as soon as
possible, and (v) agreed that we would receive a milestone paymerit immediately upon the execution of the
contract modification. To date, the contract modification contemplated by the Memorandum of Understanding
has not been executed, and the customer has not formally accepted the system under the terms of the contract.

As of January 31, 2005, we have net billed and unbilled receivables totaling $24 million. The unbilled
receivables cannot be billed until customer acceptance or a contract modification is executed. We have been
actively pursuing an amendment to the contract and the completion of testing and acceptance of the system. The
parties have had numerous disagreements concerning the scope, duration and results of the testing, acceptance
process required and other contractual issues.

We have subcontracted a significant amount of the customer requirements under the contract, and payments
to the subcontractors are generally required only if we receive payment from the customer, unless the
nonpayment results from our failure to perform in accordance with the customer contract. In addition, the
contract required us to lease certain equipment under an operating lease from a subcontractor for ten years as
further described in Note 16 of the notes to consolidated financial statements. This subcontractor recently advised
us by letter that it intends to suspend its services related to the leased equipment unless it receives an $8.7 million
payment. It requested that we forward its letter to our customer, which we did. To date, the customer has not
responded.

In connection with this contract, we entered into payment and performance bonding requirements on the
contract totaling $251 million. The bonding requirements have been met through the issuance of standby letters
of credit of which $117 million was issued under our credit facility as previously discussed, and $134 million
was issued by certain other banks. Under the terms of these bonding arrangements, the customer could call these
standby letters of credit at any time.

We have been in discussions with the customer to attempt to resolve the contractual issues through an
appropriate contract amendment. The Greek Government recently advised us that it will not be able to execute a
contract amendment until an issue concerning the legality of the contract is resolved. We have recorded the
financial position of the contract based on our best estimate of the loss to be realized under the contract.
However, the situation is extremely complex and dynamic, involving multiple government agencies, customer
elements and government representatives having different roles and at times, expressing inconsistent positions.
During 2005, we recorded a $34 million loss on this contract, reflecting changes in management’s estimate of the
loss on this contract as a result of continued delays in the testing and acceptance process and other recent
developments. This loss also includes the effect of subcontractor liabilities that management estimates will not be
paid under the subcontract terms. In 2004, the contract loss was not material.

DS&S Joint Venture

We have guaranteed approximately $13 million of DS&S bank debt obligations, representing approximately
50% of a $25 million credit facility. DS&S has utilized the entire credit facility with a term loan and outstanding

101




letters of credit related to bonding requirements for performance on contracts, and is currently in default of
certain bank debt covenants. At January 31, 2005, we provided a loan of $1 million to DS&S. We and the other
joint venture partner have each guaranteed the payment of 50% of certain legal and accounting fees incurred by
DS&S in conjunction with an ongoing government investigation. As of January 31, 20035, the fair value of the
guarantee for legal and accounting fees is not material to us and we have not had to perform on any of the
guarantees.

INTESA Joint Venture

In January 1997, we formed and held 60% of the common stock of the INTESA joint venture, which was to
provide information technology services in Latin America. In 2003, due to the political and economic
environment in Venezuela, a general work stoppage in Venezuela affected the petroleum sector, including
INTESA and PDVSA the other joint venture partner. Due to the suspension of operations, general work force
strike and our relationship with PDVSA, the operations of INTESA did not resume and was classified as
discontinued operations in 2003 as described in Note 21 of the notes to consolidated financial statements. At that
time, we strongly recommended that INTESA file for bankruptcy as required under Venezuelan law, but PDVSA
refused to support such a filing. INTESA is still involved in various legal proceedings, including a criminal
investigation of INTESA, initiated in 2003 by the Attorney General of Venezuela, alleging unspecified sabotage
by INTESA employees. In 2004, the SENIAT, the Venezuelan tax authority, filed a claim against INTESA for
approximately $30 million for alleged non-payment of VAT taxes in 1998. In addition, our subsidiary SAIC
Bermuda, in its capacity as a shareholder of INTESA, has been added at the request of PDVSA as a defendant to
a number of suits by INTESA employees claiming unpaid severance and pension benefits. Our Venezuelan
counsel advises that we do not have any legal obligation for these claims, but given the unsettled political
environment in Venezuela, their outcome is uncertain.

In 2004, the Venezuelan Supreme Court granted PDVSA’s request for injunctive relief against INTESA on
the basis of public interest of Venezuela, which obligated INTESA to transfer to PDVSA all the information
technology and equipment that related to PDVSA. PDVSA took certain actions, including denying INTESA
access to certain of its facilities and assets, which we believed constituted expropriation without compensation.
On September 4, 2003, we filed a claim of approximately $10 million with the Overseas Protection Insurance
Company (“OPIC”), a U.S. governmental entity that provides insurance coverage against expropriation of U.S.
business interests by foreign governments and instrumentalities, on the basis that PDVSA and the Venezuelan
government’s conduct constituted the expropriation of our investment in INTESA without compensation. On
February 24, 2004, OPIC made a finding that expropriation had occurred and on May 11, 2004, OPIC paid us
approximately $6 million in settlement of our claim. On July 12, 2004, OPIC issued its memorandum of decision
and determined that PDVSA and the Venezuelan government totally expropriated our interest in INTESA. OPIC
also determined that INTESA did not sabotage PDVSA’s infrastructure as alleged by PDVSA in a separate
proceeding.

Under the 1997 outsourcing services agreement between INTESA and PDVSA, we guaranteed INTESA’s
obligations. Under the terms of the services agreement, the maximum liability for INTESA for all claims made
by PDVSA for damages brought in respect of the service agreement in any calendar year is limited to $50
million. Therefore, our maximum obligation under the guarantee is $20 million based on PDVSA’s 40%
ownership percentage in INTESA. There currently is no liability recorded related to this guarantee. We do not
have any assets or liabilities recorded related to this discontinued operation as of January 31, 2005 and 2004.

Other Joint Ventures

In one of our investments in affiliates accounted for under the equity method, we are an investor in Danet
Partnership GBR (“GBR”), a German partnership. GBR has an internal equity market similar to our limited
market. We are required to provide liquidity rights to the other GBR investors in certain circumstances. These
rights allow only the withdrawing investors in the absence of a change in control and all GBR investors in the
event of a change of contro! to put their GBR shares to us in exchange for the current fair value of those shares.
We may pay the put price in shares of our common stock or cash. We do not currently record a liability for these
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rights because their exercise is contingent upon the occurrence of future events which we cannot determine will
occur with any certainty. The maximum potential obligation, if we assume all the current GBR employees are
withdrawing from GBR, would be $13 million as of January 31, 2005. If we were to incur the maximum
obligation and buy all the shares outstanding from the other investors, we would then own 100% of GBR.

We have a guarantee that relates only to claims brought by the sole customer of another of our joint
ventures, Bechtel SAIC Company, LLC, for specific contractual nonperformance of the joint venture. We also
have a cross-indemnity agreement with the joint venture partner, pursuant to which we will only be ultimately
responsible for the portion of any losses incurred under the guarantee equal to our ownership interest of 30%.
Due to the nature of the guarantee, as of January 31, 2005, we are not able to project the maximum potential
amount of future payments it could be required to make under the guarantee but, based on current conditions, the
likelihood of having to make any payment is remote. There currently is no liability recorded relating to this
guarantee.

On September 15, 2004, we entered into an agreement to form a joint venture with EG&G Technical
Services, Inc. (“EG&G”) and Parsons Infrastructure & Technology Group, Inc. (“Parsons”) to form Research and
Development Solutions, LLC (“RDS”), a Delaware limited liability. company that will pursue contracts offered
by the Department of Energy’s National Energy Technical Laboratory. We, EG&G and Parsons each have an
equal joint venture interest of 33 ¥3%. In conjunction with a contract award to RDS, each joint venture partner
was required to sign a performance guarantee agreement with the U.S. Government. Under this agreement, we
unconditionally guarantee all of RDS’s obligations to the U.S. Govérnment under the contract award, which has
an estimated total value of $218 million. We also have a cross-indemnity agreement with each of the other two
joint venture partners to protect us from liabilities for any U.S. Government claims resulting from the actions of
the other two joint venture partners and to limit our liability to our share of the contract work. As of January 31,
2005, the fair value of the guarantee is not material to us.

Gracian v. SAIC Class Action Lawsuit

On March 4, 2005, we were served with a class action lawsuit filed in California Superior Court for the
County of San Diego brought by a former employee on behalf of herself and others similarly situated that alleged
that we improperly required exempt salaried and professional employees in the State of California to utilize their
paid leave balances for partial day absences. The plaintiffs contend that our policy violates California law and
seeks, among other things, the unpaid vacation balance allegedly owed to plaintiffs, overtime compensation,
punitive damages and attorney fees. We are analyzing the lawsuit and the underlying issues. We do not expect
the ultimate resolution of this matter to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Other

In the normal conduct of our business, we seek to monetize our patent portfolio through licensing
agreements. We also have and will continue to defend our patent positions when we believe our patents have
been infringed and are involved in such litigation from time to time. During 2005, our former Telcordia
subsidiary settled a patent infringement case and recognized a gain, net of legal costs and before income taxes, of
$14 million. This gain was recorded as a reduction in selling, general and administrative expenses and is
reflected in discontinued operations. As described in Note 21 of the notes to consolidated financial statements,
per the terms of the sale of Telcordia that was completed on March 15, 2005, we will receive 50% of the net
proceeds Telcordia receives in the future in connection with the prosecution of certain patent rights.

We are also involved in various investigations, claims and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct of our
business, none of which, in our opinion, will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations, cash flows or our ability to conduct business.

Accounting Change

Effective February 1, 2002, we implemented SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which
changed the accounting for goodwill from an amortization approach to an impairment-only approach. Upon
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adoption, we did not have a transitional goodwill impairment charge and, therefore, we did not have a cumulative
effect of an accounting change.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-
Based Payment,” which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and
supercedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its related implementation
guidance. SFAS No. 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which share-based awards are
granted to employees in exchange for services and requires recognition of compensation expense over the vesting
period in an amount equal to the fair value of share-based payments, including stock options, granted to
employees. SFAS No.123(R) retained the guidance from SFAS No. 123 for share-based payment transactions to
non-employees. We meet the definition of a non-public entity per SFAS No. 123(R) and have used the minimum
value method in our pro forma disclosures. Therefore, we are required to adopt the provisions of the standard
prospectively for any newly issued, modified or settled award after the date of initial adoption, which is February
1, 2006. Upon adoption, restatement of earlier periods is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect
that adoption of this statement will have on our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4,” 1o clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and
wasted material (spoilage). SFAS No. 151 requires that those items be recognized as current-period charges
regardless of whether they meet the criterion of “so abnormal,” as defined in the statement. In addition, this
statement requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005, which is February 1, 2006. We are currently evaluating the effect that
adoption of this statement will have on our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 109-1, “Application of FASB
Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, to the Tax Deduction on Qualified Production Activities
Provided by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004” (“the Act”). The FSP provides guidance on the application
of SFAS No. 109 to the provisions of the tax deduction on qualified production activities contained within the
Act. FSP 109-1 states that the manufacturers’ deduction should be accounted for as a special deduction in
accordance with SFAS No. 109 and not as a tax rate reduction. We are currently evaluating the effect that
adoption of this statement will have on our taxes in 2006 as the tax deduction is not effective for us until 2006.

Effects of Inflation

Our cost-reimbursement type contracts are generally completed within one year. As a result, we have
generally been able to anticipate increases in costs when pricing our contracts. Bids for longer-term FFP and
T&M type contracts typically include sufficient labor and other cost escalations in amounts expected to cover
cost increases over the period of performance. Consequently, because costs and revenues include an inflationary
increase commensurate with the general economy, net income as a percentage of revenues has not been
significantly impacted by inflation. As we expand our business into international markets, movements in foreign
currency exchange rates may impact our results of operations. Currency exchange rate fluctuations may also
affect our competitive position in international markets as a result of their impact on our profitability and the
pricing offered to our non-U.S. customers.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risks which are inherent in our financial instruments arising from
transactions entered into in the normal course of business. Our current market risk exposures are primarily in the
interest rate and foreign currency areas. The following information about our market sensitive financial
instruments contains forward-looking statements.

Interest Rate Risk—Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our cash
equivalents, investments in marketable securities and long-term debt obligations.

We have established investment policies to protect the safety, liquidity and after-tax yield of invested funds.
These policies establish guidelines on acceptable instruments in which to invest and maximum maturity dates.
They also require diversification in the investment portfolios by establishing maximum amounts that may be
invested in designated instruments. We do not authorize the use of derivative financial instruments in our
managed short-term investment portfolios. Our policy requires that all investments mature in four years or less.
Strategic investments may have characteristics that differ from those described above. Our derivative policy
authorizes the limited use of derivative instruments to hedge interest rate risks.

At January 31, 2005, our holdings of cash equivalents and managed portfolio investments were
approximately $12 million higher than January 31, 2004. Interest rates rose approximately 125 basis points
during 2005 in line with Federal Reserve interest rate increases. If rates continue to rise, the fair values of
existing marketable securities bearing fixed interest rates would decrease, while the cash flow from interest
earned on existing variable rate instruments would increase.

The table below provides information about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in
interest rates. For debt obligations and short-term investments, the table presents principal cash flows in U.S.
dollars and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates. As described in Note 8 of the
notes to consolidated financial statements, the 2003 swap agreements we entered into in May 2003 are expected
to substantially offset interest rate exposures related to the 2002 swap agreements previously entered into in
January 2002. As a result, on a combined basis, these swaps are no longer exposed to changing interest rates and
we have excluded the swap agreements from the table below:

Estimated

Fair Value
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total January 31, 2005

(In millions)

Assets:
Cash equivalents . ... ... $ 968 $ 968 $ 968
Average interest
rate(1) ............. 2.37%
Investment in marketable
securities:
Fixedrate .......... $399 §$217 $113 § 52 $ 781 $ 781
Average interest
rate ...l 248% 3.04% 3.56% 3.34%
Variablerate ..... ... $438 $102 $ 45 § 1 $ 586 $ 586
Average interest
rate ...l 271% 266% 2.74% 2.34%
Liabilities:
Short-term and long-term
debt:
Variable interest
rate(2) ......... .. $ 66 $ 20 $ 1 $ 4 $ 9 $ 91
Average interest
rate ...l 290% 3.24% 324% 3.24%
Fixedrate .......... $101 . $1,100  $1,201 $1,308
Average interest
rateé ... 6.75% 6.24%

105



(1) Includes $24 million denominated in British pounds

(2) The 2006 amount includes $38 million denominated in Euros and $18 million denominated in Canadian
dollars

Foreign Currency Risk—Although the majority of our transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars, some
transactions are based in various foreign currencies. Our objective in managing our exposure to foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations is to mitigate adverse fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations. Our policy allows us to actively manage cash flows, anticipated transactions
and firm commitments through the use of natural hedges and forward foreign exchange contracts. As of January
31, 2005, we had six open forward foreign exchange contracts, none of which are significant in size. The
currencies hedged as of January 31, 2005 are the British pound and U.S. dollar. We do not use foreign currency
derivative instruments for trading purposes.

We assess the risk of loss in fair values from the impact of hypothetical changes in foreign currency
exchange rates on market sensitive instruments by performing sensitivity analysis. The fair values for foreign
exchange forward contracts are estimated using spot rates in effect on January 31, 2005. The differences that
result from comparing hypothetical foreign exchange rates and actual spot rates as of January 31, 2005 are the
hypothetical gains and losses associated with foreign currency risk. As of January 31, 2005, holding all other
variables constant, a 10% weakening of the U.S. dollar against each hedged currency would decrease the fair
values of the forward foreign exchange contracts by an immaterial amount.

Equity Price Risk—We are exposed to equity price risks on our strategic investments in publicly-traded
equity securities, which are primarily in the high technology market. At January 31, 2005, the quoted fair value
of our publicly-traded equity securities was $1 million and the associated risk of loss was not significant.
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BUSINESS

The Company

We provide diversified professional and technical services involving the application of scientific,
engineering and management expertise to solve complex technical problems for government and commercial
customers in the United States and abroad. These services frequently involve computer and systems technology.

Our technical services consist of basic and applied research services; design and development of computer
software; systems integration; systems engineering; technical operational and management support services;
environmental engineering; design and integration of network systems; technical engineering, analysis and
consulting support services; and development of systems, policies, concepts and programs. Our high-technology
products, which we design and develop, include customized and standard hardware and software, such as
automatic equipment identification technology, sensors, nondestructive imaging and security instruments.

On November 17, 2004, we entered into a definitive stock purchase agreement, as amended, to sell our
ownership in our subsidiary, Telcordia Technologies, Inc. (which we refer to as “Telcordia”) to TTI Holding
Corporation, an affiliate of Warburg Pincus LLC and Providence Equity Partners Inc. On March 15, 2003, the
sale of Telcordia was completed. As of January 31, 2005, the operations of Telcordia were classified as
discontinued operations in the statements of income and cash flows and the notes to consolidated financial
statements, and its assets and liabilities classified as “held for sale.” The consolidated financial statements for
fiscal years 2004 and 2003 have been reclassified to conform to the fiscal year 2005 discontinued operations
presentation. Telcordia’s results of operations had been previously reported as our Non-Regulated
Telecommunications segment. For further discussion related to Telcordia, see “Management Discussion &
Analysis—Discontinued Operations and—Commitments and Contingencies;” “Legal Proceedings—Telkom
South Africa;” in our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K and Note 21 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

We have three reportable segments: Government, Commercial, and Corporate and Other. The major
customers of our services are in the market segments of government and commercial. Our operating business
units, on which performance is assessed, are aggregated into the Government or Commercial segments,
depending on the nature of the customers, the contractual requirements and the regulatory environment
governing the business unit’s services. The Corporate and Other segment includes our broker-dealer subsidiary,
Bull, Inc., and our real estate subsidiary, Campus Point Realty Corporation.

Government Segment

Our business units in the Government segment provide a wide array of technical services primarily to our
federal, state and local government customers.

* Homeland Security. We provide a broad range of technical, information and security systems, products
and services to the Department of Homeland Security as well as related federal, state and local law
enforcement and emergency response agencies.

* Research, Development, Test and Evaluation and Intelligence. We provide systems engineering and
program consulting support; operational analysis; software and systems development and integration;
space, earth and atmospheric sciences and safety, reliability and quality assurance test and evaluation
support to the Intelligence agencies, the Department of Defense and NASA. Additionally, we provide
research and technology development and analysis for defense research programs.

System and Network Solutions. We provide telecommunications network architecture design,
implementation and operation; system and software development, integration, installation and operation
for Department of Defense, Department of Justice and other federal agencies. Additionally, we provide
information technology and information security services for federal agency customers.

109




* Transformation, Training & Logistics. We provide policy and concept development; engineering life
cycle support; system and subsystem modeling and simulation; and training and logistics support to
major federal acquisition programs.

* Enterprise & Infrastructure Solutions. We provide enterprise architecture development and engineering;
information technology systems, services and support; and infrastructure engineering and life cycle
support to several federal civil agencies. Additionally, we provide analysis, systems and services
supporting environmental, energy, and life science applications for federal agency customers.

* Naval Engineering & Technical Services. We provide naval engineering design, systems and
subsystems modification, installation, maintenance, training and life cycle support to shipboard and
shore based naval programs and support systems.

We provide our technical services and products through contractual arrangements as either a prime
contractor or a subcontractor to other contractors, primarily for departments and agencies of the U.S.
Government, including the Department of Agriculture, Department of Commerce, Department of Defense,
Department of Energy, Department of Health and Human Services, Department of Homeland Security,
Department of Justice, Department of Transportation, Department of Treasury, Department of Veterans Affairs,
Environmental Protection Agency and National Aeronautics and Space Administration. Operations in the
Government segment are subject to specific regulatory accounting and contracting guidelines such as Cost
Accounting Standards and Federal Acquisition Regulations. The percentage of our revenues attributable to the
Government segment for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 was 94%, 93% and 91%, respectively.

Commercial Segment

Our business units in the Commercial segment provide technical services and products primarily to
customers in commercial markets in both the United States and abroad. We provide a broad range of consulting
services and information technology and outsourcing systems and services to commercial and international
customers. These services include business and industry consulting, network systems design, development,
management and operations as well as enterprise systems and applications software development, integration,
operation and maintenance.

Generally, operations in the Commercial segment are not subject to specific regulatory accounting or
contracting guidelines. Our business units in the Commercial segment provide technical services and products
primarily for customers in the telecommunications, oil, gas and utilities commercial markets. The percentage of
our revenues attributable to the Commercial segment for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 was 7%, 7% and 9%,
respectively.

Corporate and Other Segment

The Corporate and Other segment includes our broker-dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc., and our real estate
subsidiary, Campus Point Realty Corporation. In addition, in certain circumstances, for management purposes,
certain revenue and expense items related to our operating business units are excluded from the evaluation of a
business units operating performance and reflected in the Corporate and Other segment. For certain other
financial information regarding our reportable segments and geographic areas, see Note 2 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements.

Other

In addition to our operating business units, we make equity investments in publicly traded and private
emerging technology companies. We hold and manage substantially all of these investments in our wholly-
owned subsidiary, SAIC Venture Capital Corporation.
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We own 55% of AMSEC LLC, a joint venture that provides maintenance engineering and technical support
services to the U.S. Navy and marine industry customers and which is included in our Government segment.

We also hold 60% of the common stock of a joint venture, Informadtica, Negocios y Tecnologia, S.A., which
we call “INTESA.” As of January 31, 2003, the operations of our INTESA joint venture have been classified as
discontinued operations and are no longer reflected in operating income. For further discussion of our
participation in INTESA, see “Management Discussion & Analysis—Commitments and Contingencies;” “Legal
Proceedings—INTESA” in our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K and Note 22 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

We were originally incorporated as a California corporation in 1969 and re-incorporated as a Delaware
corporation in 1984. Our principal office and corporate headquarters are located in San Diego, California at
10260 Campus Point Drive, San Diego, California 92121 and our telephone number is (858) 826-6000. All
references to “we,” “us,” or “our” include, unless the context indicates otherwise, our predecessor.

Resources

The technical services and products that we provide utilize a wide variety of resources. We can obtain a
substantial portion of the computers and other equipment, materials and subcontracted work that we require from
more than one supplier. However, with respect to certain products and programs, we depend on a particular
source or vendor. While a temporary or permanent disruption in the supply of these materials or services could
cause inconvenience or delay or impact the profitability of any affected program or product, we believe it would
not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

The availability of skilled employees who have the necessary education and/or experience in specialized
scientific and technological disciplines remains critical to our future growth and profitability. Because of our
growth and the competition for experienced personnel, it has become more difficult to meet all of our needs for
these employees in a timely manner. However, these difficulties have not had a significant impact on us to date.
We intend to continue to devote significant resources to recruit and retain qualified employees. We also maintain
a variety of benefit programs for our employees, including retirement and bonus plans, group life, health,
accident and disability insurance as well as the opportunity to participate in employee ownership. See
“Business—Employees and Consultants” and “Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities—The Limited Market” in our 2005 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Marketing

Our marketing activities in the Government and Commercial segments are focused on key vertical markets and
are primarily conducted by our own professional staff of engineers, scientists, analysts and other personnel. Our
marketing approach for our technical services begins with the development of information concerning the requirements
of our government, commercial and other potential customers for the types of technical services that we provide. This
information is gathered in the course of contract performance, reviewing requests for competitive bids, formal
briefings, participation in professional organizations and published literature. This information is then evaluated and
exchanged among our internal marketing groups (organized along functional, geographic and other lines) in order to
devise and implement, subject to management review and approval, the best means of taking advantage of available
business opportunities, including the preparation of proposals responsive to the stated and perceived needs of
customers. Qur products may be marketed with the assistance of independent sales representatives.

Competition

Our business is highly competitive, particularly in the business area of information technology outsourcing
in the Commercial segment. We have a large number of competitors, some of which have been established longer
and have substantially greater financial resources and larger technical staffs. We also compete with smaller, more
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specialized entities that are able to concentrate their resources on particular areas. In the Government segment,
we also compete with the U.S. Government’s own in-house capabilities and federal non-profit contract research
centers.

We compete on the basis of technical expertise, management and marketing abilities and price. Our
continued success is dependent upon our ability to hire and retain highly qualified scientists, engineers,
technicians, management and professional personnel who will provide superior service and performance on a
cost-effective basis.

Significant Customers

During fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, approximately 91%, 91% and 92%, respectively, of the revenues
in the Government segment were attributable to prime contracts directly with a number of departments and
agencies of the U.S. Government or to subcontracts with other contractors engaged in work for the
U.S. Government. Revenues from the U.S. Army represented 13% of consolidated revenues in each of fiscal
years 2005, 2004 and 2003. Revenues from the U.S. Navy represented 13% of consolidated revenues in fiscal
year 2005 and 12% of consolidated revenues in each of fiscal years 2004 and 2003. Revenues from the U.S. Air
Force represented 11% of consolidated revenues in each of fiscal years 2005 and 2004 and 12% of consolidated
revenues in fiscal year 2003. No other customer or single contract accounted for 10% or more of consolidated
revenues in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Government Contracts

The U.S. Government is our primary customer in the Government segment. Many of the U.S. Government
programs in which we participate as a contractor or subcontractor may extend for several years; however, such
programs are normally funded on an annual basis. All U.S. Government contracts and subcontracts may be
modified, curtailed or terminated at the convenience of the government if program requirements or budgetary
constraints change. If a contract is terminated for convenience, we are generally reimbursed for our allowable costs
through the date of termination and are paid a proportionate amount of the stipulated profit or fee attributable to the
work actually performed. Although contract and program modifications, curtailments or terminations have not had a
material adverse effect on us in the past, no assurance can be given that such modifications, curtailments or
terminations will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations in the future.

In addition, the U.S. Government may terminate a contract for default. Although the U.S. Government has
never terminated any of our contracts for default, such a termination could have a significant impact on our
business. If a contract is terminated for default, we may be unable to recover amounts billed or billable under the
contract and may be liable for other costs and damages.

Contract costs for services or products supplied to the U.S. Government, including allocated indirect costs,
are subject to audit and adjustments as a result of negotiations between U.S. Government representatives and us.
Substantially all of our indirect contract costs have been agreed upon through fiscal year 2003 and are not subject
to further adjustment. Contract revenues for fiscal years 2004 and 2005 have been recorded in amounts which are
expected to be realized upon final settlement with the U.S. Government. However, audits and adjustments for
fiscal years 2004 and 2005 may result in decreased revenues or profits for those years.

Contract Type

Our business with the U.S. Government and other customers is generally performed under cost-reimbursement,
target cost and fee with risk sharing, time-and-materials, fixed-price level-of-effort or firm fixed-price contracts.
Under cost-reimbursement contracts, the customers reimburse us for our direct costs and allocable indirect costs,
plus a fixed fee or incentive fee. Under target cost and fee with risk sharing contracts, the customers reimburse our
costs plus a specified or target fee or profit, if our actual costs equal a negotiated target cost. If actual costs fall
below the target cost, we receive a portion of the cost underrun as additional fee or profit. If actual costs exceed the
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target cost, our target fee and cost reimbursement are reduced by a portion of the overrun. Under time-and-materials
contracts, we are paid for labor hours at negotiated, fixed hourly rates and reimbursed for other allowable direct
costs at actual costs plus allocable indirect costs. Under fixed-price level-of-effort contracts, the customer pays us
for the actual labor hours provided to the customer at negotiated hourly rates up to a fixed ceiling. Under firm fixed-
price contracts, we are required to provide stipulated products or services for a fixed price. Because we assume the
risk of performing a firm fixed-price contract at a set price, the failure to accurately estimate ultimate costs or to
control costs during contract performance could result, and in some instances has resulted, in reduced profits or
losses for particular contracts. ‘

In recent years, the U.S. Government has increasingly used a contracting process called Indefinite Delivery,
Indefinite Quantity contracts, known as IDIQ contracts, to obtain contractual commitments from contractors to
provide certain products or services at established general terms and conditions. We may compete with multiple
contractors for a single IDIQ contract award or in some cases, a single procurement may result in IDIQ contract
awards to multiple contractors. At the time of the award of the IDIQ contract, the U.S. Government generally
commits to purchase only a minimum amount of products or services from the contractor to whom the IDIQ
contract was awarded. After award of the IDIQ contract, the U.S. Government may issue task orders for specific
services or products it needs. The contractor provides such products or services in accordance with the pre-
established terms and conditions. IDIQ contracts frequently have multi-year terms and unfunded ceiling amounts
which enable, but do not commit, the U.S. Government to purchase substantial amounts of products and services
from the contractor. The U.S. Government’s use of IDIQ contracts makes it more difficult for a contractor to
estimate the actual value of products or services to be ultimately awarded under a given contract.

The following table summarizes Government and Commercial segment revenues by contract type for the
last three years: ‘

Year ended January 31
2005 2004 2003

Government:
Cost-reimburSemMent . .. ...ttt e 47% 47% 52%
Time-and-materials and Fixed-price level-of-effort ..................... 37% 38% 33%
Firmfixed-price ... ... ..ot e 16% 15% 15%
Total . .o 100% 100% 100%

Commercial:
Cost-reimbursement . ......... . . e 4% 7% 7%
Time-and-materials and Fixed-price level-of-effort .. ................... 56% 47% 28%
Firm fixed-price . . ... .. e 18% 13% 9%
Target cost and fee withrisk sharing ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 2% 33% 56%

TOMAl ...t 100% 100% 100%

Any costs that we incur on projects for which we have been requested by the customer to begin work under
a new contract or extend work under an existing contract, and for which formal contracts or contract
modifications have not been executed are incurred at our risk, and it is possible that the customer will not
reimburse us for these pre-contract costs.
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Pre-contract costs for the Government and Commercial segments at January 31, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows:

January 31
2005 2004
" (In millions)
GOVEIMMENE SEGMENE L 4\ L\t v e e vttt ettt ettt et e e e e e $37 $41

Commercial SEZMENT . . ...ttt e e _ 4
$43 345

We expect to recover substantially all of these costs; however, no assurance can be given that the contracts
or contract amendments will be executed or that we will recover the related costs.

Research and Development

We conduct research and development activities under customer funded contracts and with independent
research and development (IR&D) funds. IR&D efforts consist of projects involving basic research, applied
research, development, and systems and other concept formulation studies. In fiscal year 2005, we spent
approximately $25 million on IR&D, which was included in selling, general and administrative expenses. We
spent $19 million on such activities in each of fiscal years 2004 and 2003.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our technical services and products are not generally dependent upon patent protection. We claim a
proprietary interest in certain of our products, software programs, methodology and know-how. This proprietary
information is protected by copyrights, trade secrets, licenses, contracts and other means.

We actively pursue opportunities to license our technologies to third parties and enforce our patent rights.
We also evaluate potential spin-offs of our technologies.

In connection with the performance of services for customers in the Government segment, the U.S.
Government has certain rights to data, computer codes and related material that we develop under U.S.
Government-funded contracts and subcontracts. Generally, the U.S. Government may disclose such information
to third parties, including, in some instances, competitors. In the case of subcontracts, the prime contractor may
also have certain rights to the programs and products that we develop under the subcontract.

Backlog

Backlog includes only the funded dollar amount of contracts in process and does not include the dollar
amount of projects for which we have been given permission by the customer (i) to begin work but for which a
formal contract has not yet been entered into or (ii) to extend work under an existing contract prior to the formal
amendment or modification of the existing contract. In these cases, either contract negotiations have not been
completed or a contract or contract amendment has not been executed. When a contract or contract amendment is
executed, the backlog will be increased by the difference between the dollar value of the contract or contract
amendment and the revenue recognized to date. We expect that a substantial portion of our backlog at January
31, 2005 will be recognized as revenues prior to January 31, 2006. Some contracts associated with the backlog
are incrementally funded and may continue for more than one year.
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The approximate amount of backlog for the Government and Commercial segments at January 31, 2005 and
2004 was as follows:

January 31
2005 2004
(In millions)

GOVErnmENt SEZMENT . .« .t v vttt et et ite et e e $3,333  $3,127
Commercial segment .. ...... . ... 313 228

$3,646  $3,355

Employees and Consultants

As of January 31, 2005, we employed approximately 42,400 full and part time employees. We also use
consultants to provide specialized technical and other services on specific projects. To date, we have not
experienced any strikes or work stoppages and we consider our relations with our employees to be good.

The highly technical and complex services and products provided by us are dependent upon the availability
of professional, administrative and technical personnel having high levels of training and skills. Because of our
growth and competition for experienced personnel, it has become more difficult to meet all of our needs for these
employees in a timely manner. However, such difficulties have not had a significant impact on us to date. We
intend to continue to devote significant resources to recruit and retain qualified employees. Management believes

that our employee ownership programs and philosophy are major factors in our ability to attract and retain
qualified personnel.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following is a list of the names and ages (as of March 25, 2005) of all our executive officers, indicating
all positions and offices held by each such person and each such person’s principal occupation or employment
during at least the past five years. All such persons have been elected to serve until their successors are elected or
until their earlier resignation or retirement. Except as otherwise noted, each of the persons listed below has
served in his present capacity for at least the past five years.

Name of Executive Officer ég
CMAIbero ................. 69
D.P.Andrews ................ 60
K.C.Dahlberg ............... 60
T.E.Darcy .................. 54
S.P.Fisher .................. 44
D.H. Foley .................. 60
M.V.Hughes, IIT ............. 60

Positions with the Company and Prior Business Experience

Group President since February 2004. Mr. Albero has held various
positions with us since 1987, including serving as a Sector Vice
President from 1998 to February 2004. Mr. Albero has also served as
Chief Executive Officer of our AMSEC LLC joint venture since July
1999.

Chief Operating Officer since January 2005, Corporate Executive
Vice President since 1998, and a Director since October 1996.

Mr. Andrews also served as President and Chief Operating Officer of
Federal Business from December 2003 to January 2005, Executive
Vice Prestdent for Corporate Development from October 1995 to
January 1998. Prior to joining us, Mr. Andrews served as Assistant
Secretary of Defense from 1989 to 1993.

Chairman of the Board since July 2004 and Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director since November 2003. Prior to joining us,

Mr. Dahlberg was with General Dynamics Corp. from March 2001 to
October 2003, where he served as Corporate Executive Vice
President. Mr. Dahlberg was with Raytheon International from
February 2000 to March 2001 where he served as President, and from
1997 to 2000 he served as President and Chief Operating Officer of
Raytheon Systems Company. Mr. Dahlberg held various positions
with Hughes Aircraft from 1967 to 1997.

Corporate Executive Vice President since December 2003 and Chief
Financial Officer since October 2000. From October 2000 to
December 2003, Mr. Darcy was an Executive Vice President. Prior to
joining us, Mr. Darcy was with the accounting firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP from July 1973 to September 2000,
where he served as partner from 1985 to 2000.

Treasurer since January 2001 and Senior Vice President since July
2001. Mr. Fisher has held various positions with us since 1988,
including serving as Assistant Treasurer and Corporate Vice President
for Finance from 1997 to 2001 and Vice President from 1995 to 1997.

Chief Engineering and Technology Officer since January 2005,
Executive Vice President since July 2000, and a Director since July
2002. Dr. Foley has held various positions with us since 1992,
including serving as Group President from February 2004 to January
2005 and a Sector Vice President from 1992 to July 2000.

Group President since February 2004. Mr. Hughes has held various
positions with us since 1990, including serving as an Executive Vice
President from July 2003 to February 2004 and as a Sector Vice
President from 1991 to July 2003.
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Name of Executive Officer

P. N. Pavlics

W.A Roper,Jr. ..............

G. T. Singley III

J. P. Walkush

JJH. Warmer,Jr. ..............

Positions with the Company and Prior Business Experience

Senior Vice President since January 1997 and Controller since 1993.
Mr. Pavlics has held various positions with us since 1985, including
serving as a Corporate Vice President from 1993 to January 1997.
Group President since February 2004. Mr. Peck has held various
positions with us since 1978, including serving as a Sector Vice
President from 1994 to February 2004.

Executive Vice President since April 1997 and a Director since 1996.
Dr. Rockwood has held various positions with us since 1986,
including serving as Chief Technology Officer from December 2003
to January 2005 and a Séctor Vice President from 1987 to April 1997.

Corporate Executive Vice President since April 2000. Mr. Roper
served as Senior Vice President from 1990 to 1999, Chief Financial
Officer from 1990 to October 2000 and Executive Vice President
from 1999 to 2000. Mr. Roper has served as a director of VeriSign,
Inc. since November 2003.

Secretary since July 2003, Senior Vice President since January 1997
and General Counsel since 1992. Mr. Scott has held various positions
with us since 1987, including serving as a Corporate Vice President
from 1992 to January 1997.

Group President since February 2004. Mr. Singley has held various
positions with us since 1998, including serving as a Sector Vice
President from 2001 to February 2004 and Group Senior Vice
President from 2000 to 2001.

Executive Vice President since July 2000 and a Director since April
1996. Mr. Walkush has held various positions with us since 1983,
including serving as a Sector Vice President from 1994 to 2000.

Chief Administrative Officer since December 2003, Corporate
Executive Vice President since 1996 and a Director since 1988.

Dr. Warner has held various positions with us since 1973, including
serving as Executive Vice President from 1989 to 1996.
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MARKET FOR THE COMPANY’S STOCK, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
COMPANY PURCHASES OF ITS STOCK

The Limited Market

Since our inception, we have followed a policy of remaining essentially employee owned. As a result, there
has never been a general public market for any of our securities. In order to provide some liquidity for our
stockholders, however, we have maintained a limited secondary market which we call the “limited market,”
through our wholly owned broker-dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc., which was organized in 1973 for the purpose of
maintaining the limited market.

The limited market permits existing stockholders to offer for sale shares of Class A common stock on
predetermined days which we call a “trade date.” Generally, there are four trade dates each year; however, a
scheduled trade date could be postponed or cancelled. In fact, the trade originally scheduled for July 26, 2002
was postponed to August 16, 2002 in order to establish a new stock price after it was determined that the stock
price set by the board of directors on July 12, 2002 no longer represented a fair market value. A trade date
typically occurs one week after our board of directors meetings, currently scheduled for April, June, September
and December of each year. All shares of Class B common stock to be sold in the limited market must first be
converted into 20 times as many shares of Class A common stock.

All sales and purchases are made at the prevailing price of the Class A common stock determined by the
board of directors or its stock policy committee pursuant to the valuation process described below. All
participants who wish to participate in a particular trade must submit a trade request in the form of a limit order.
A limit order is a request to buy stock at or below the limit price specified by the person placing the order or a
request to sell stock at any price equal to or above the limit price specified. A limit order will not be processed if
the limit price is not satisfied by the price established by the board of directors unless the order is modified. A
participant may not submit both a buy limit order and a sell limit order on the same account for the same trade.

Trade participants may submit their limit order requests either online or in paper format. In order to
participate in a particular trade, the participant’s limit order must be received by Bull, Inc. no later than 5 p.m.
Pacific Time on the day before the board of directors meeting at which the price of the Class A common stock is
determined which we refer to as the “limit order deadline.” After the stock price has been determined,
participants can cancel their orders prior to 5 p.m. Pacific Time on the Friday one week after the stock price is
determined which we refer to as the “trade modification deadline.” In addition, those participants who submitted
their orders online may modify their orders prior to the trade modification deadline. Participants who submitted
their order by paper may not modify their orders once submitted, other than to cancel their order. Participants
may not change a buy order to a sell order, or a sell order to a buy order after the limit order deadline. All sellers
in the limited market (other than our retirement plans and us) pay Bull, Inc. a sales commission. Stockholders
submitting sales orders online pay a commission currently equal to 0.5% of the proceeds from such sales and
stockholders submitting sales orders by paper pay a commission currently equal to 1% of the proceeds from such
sales. No commission is paid by purchasers in the limited market.

The purchase of Class A common stock in the limited market is restricted to (i) current employees of SAIC
and eligible subsidiaries who desire to purchase Class A common stock in an amount that does not exceed a pre-
approved limit established by the board of directors or a designated committee of the board, (ii) current
employees, consultants and non-employee directors of SAIC and eligible subsidiaries who have been specifically
approved by the board of directors or its designated committee or subcommittee to purchase a specified number
of shares which may exceed the pre-approved limit, and (iii) trustees or agents of the retirement and benefit plans
of SAIC and its eligible subsidiaries. These employees, consultants, directors, trustees and agents are referred to
as “authorized buyers.” No one, other than these authorized buyers, is eligible to purchase Class A common stock
in the limited market.
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If the aggregate number of shares offered for sale in the limited market on any trade date is greater than the
aggregate number of shares sought to be purchased by authorized buyers, offers by stockholders to sell 2,000 or
less shares of Class A common stock (or up to the first 2,000 shares if more than 2,000 shares of Class A
common stock are offered by any such stockholder) will be accepted first. Offers to sell shares in excess of 2,000
shares of Class A common stock will be accepted on a pro-rata basis determined by dividing the total number of
shares remaining under purchase orders by the total number of shares remaining under sell orders. If, however,
there are insufficient purchase orders to support the primary allocation of 2,000 shares of Class A common stock
for each proposed seller, then the purchase orders will be allocated equally among all of the proposed sellers up
to the total number of shares offered for sale.

We are currently authorized, but not obligated, to purchase shares of Class A common stock in the limited
market on any trade date, but only if and to the extent that the number of shares offered for sale by stockholders
exceeds the number of shares sought to be purchased by authorized buyers, and we, in our discretion, determine
to make such purchases. However, the number of shares we may purchase in the limited market on any given
trade date is subject to legal and contractual restrictions. Under Delaware law, we may repurchase our shares
only out of available surplus. In addition, financial covenants under our credit agreement or agreements we enter
into in the future may restrict our ability to repurchase shares. In deciding whether to make such purchases, we
will consider a variety of factors, including our cash position and cash flows, investment and capital activities,
financial performance, financial covenants, the number of shares outstanding and the amount of the
undersubscription in the market. We have purchased a significant amount of Class A common stock in the
limited market during recent periods. We purchased a total of 9,331,128 shares on the trade dates in fiscal year
2005 and a total of 6,824,113 shares on the trade dates in fiscal year 2004. These purchases accounted for 75.4%
and 65.5%, respectively, of the total shares purchased by all buyers in the limited market during fiscal years 2005
and 2004. Our purchases balanced the number of shares offered for sale by stockholders with the number of
shares sought to be purchased by authorized buyers. We cannot assure you that we will continue to purchase such
excess shares in the future. Accordingly, if the aggregate number of shares offered for sale exceeds the aggregate
number of shares sought to be purchased by authorized buyers, and we elect not to participate in a trade or
otherwise limit our participation in a trade, our stockholders may be unable to sell all the shares they desire to
sell in the limited market. Because no other market exists for our stock, our stockholders may be unable to sell all
the shares they desire to sell. In addition, if a limited market trade were undersubscribed and prorated or the
liquidity of our stock in the limited market were otherwise impaired, the stock price, as set by the board of
directors, could be adversely impacted because the independent appraiser could apply or increase any liquidity
discount used in valuing our stock.

During the 2005 and 2004 fiscal years, the trustees of certain of our retirement and benefit plans purchased
an aggregate of 2,294,161 and 2,351,031 shares, respectively, in the limited market. These purchases accounted
for approximately 18.5% and 22.6% of the total shares purchased by all buyers in the limited market during fiscal
years 2005 and 2004, respectively. Such purchases may change in the future, depending on the levels of
participation in and contributions to such plans and the extent to which such contributions are invested in Class A
common stock. In addition, the trustees of our retirement plans are not permitted to purchase shares of our Class
A common stock in the limited market unless the stock price established by the board of directors is determined
in good faith by the plan fiduciaries, in reliance on an appraisal by an independent appraiser, to be the fair market
value of the shares. The inability of the retirement plans to purchase shares in the Jimited market could adversely
impact the liquidity of our stock.

To the extent that purchases by the trustees of our retirement and benefit plans decrease, and purchases by
us decrease or do not increase, the ability of stockholders to resell their shares in the limited market will likely be
adversely affected. Although all shares of Class A common stock offered for sale were sold in the limited market
on each trade date occurring during fiscal years 2005 and 2004, we cannot assure you that a stockholder desiring
to sell all or a portion of his or her shares of our Class A common stock on any trade date will be able to do so.

To the extent that the aggregate number of shares sought to be purchased by authorized buyers exceeds the
aggregate number of shares offered for sale by stockholders, we may, but are not obligated to, sell authorized but
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unissued shares of Class A common stock in the limited market. In making this determination, we will consider a
variety of factors, including our cash position and cash flows, investment and capital activities, financial
performance, financial covenants, the number of shares outstanding and the amount of the over subscription in the
limited market. The final determination is not made before the trade date. In fiscal years 2005 and 2004, we did not
sell any shares of Class A common stock in the limited market as the number of shares sought to be purchased by
authorized buyers did not exceed the number of shares offered for sale by stockholders. To the extent that we
choose not to sell authorized but unissued shares of Class A common stock in the limited market, the ability of
individuals to purchase shares on the limited market may be adversely affected. We cannot assure you that an
individual desiring to buy shares of our Class A common stock in any future trade will be able to do so.

Price Determination of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock
Valuation Process

Our board of directors determines the price of the Class A common stock using the valuation process
described below. In establishing the stock price, the board of directors considers a broad range of valuation data
and financial information, including analysis provided by Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors,
Inc. (“HLHZ”), our independent appraisal firm. The board also considers valuation data and financial
information relating to publicly traded companies considered by our appraiser to be comparable to SAIC or
relevant to the valuation of our stock. The valuation process includes the valuation formula set forth below,
which has an earnings component and an equity component and includes a variable called the market factor.
After considering the analysis of the independent appraisal firm and other valuation data and information, the
board of directors sets the market factor at the value that causes the formula to yield a stock price that the board
believes represents a fair market value for the Class A common stock within a broad range of financial criteria.
The stock price and market factor, as determined by the board of directors, remain in effect until subsequently
changed by the board of directors or its designated committee.

The Class A common stock is traded in the limited market maintained by Bull, Inc. at the stock price
determined by the board of directors. In accordance with our certificate of incorporation, the price of the Class B
common stock is equal to 20 times the stock price applicable to the Class A common stock.

Role of Appraiser

HLHZ has served as the appraiser of our stock for over 20 years. HLHZ is a nationally recognized
investment banking firm that provides business and securities valuations for a variety of regulatory and planning
purposes, renders fairness opinions, and provides financial advisory services in connection with mergers and
acquisitions, leveraged buyouts, recapitalizations, financial restructurings and private placements of debt and
equity securities. In conjunction with the board of directors’ valuation process, HLHZ performs an appraisal of
our Class A common stock. As part of its methodology, HLHZ uses market multiple analysis of comparable
public companies to value SAIC as a whole and major business areas of SAIC.

In its appraisal of our stock, HLHZ may apply, and from time to time has applied, a liquidity discount based
on its assessment of the liquidity provided by the limited market. HLHZ provides substantial valuation data and
analysis, which the board relies upon, among other factors, in establishing the stock price. The data and analysis
include the reasonable range of fair market value established by the appraisers. In establishing the range of fair
market value, the appraiser considers, among other things, the volatility of the stock prices and implied volatility
of stock options of the comparable companies and any significant publicly traded securities that we may own.
After the board has established the stock price, HLHZ reviews the price and provides an opinion letter to the
board of directors and the SAIC retirement plans committee as to whether the stock price appears to reflect the
fair market value of our stock. The trustees of our retirement plans are not permitted to purchase shares of our
Class A common stock in the limited market unless the stock price established by the board of directors is
determined in good faith by the plan fiduciaries, in reliance on an appraisal by an independent appraiser, to be the
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fair market value of the shares. If the stock price established by the board of directors did not reflect the fair
market value as determined by an independent appraisal firm, our retirement plans would be unable to purchase
shares of our Class A common stock in that trade and the liquidity of the limited market and our stock price
could be adversely impacted.

Stock Price Formula

The following formula is used in the valuation method:

the price per share is equal to the sum of

(1) a fraction, the numerator of which is our stockholders’ equity at the end of the fiscal quarter
immediately preceding the date on which a price determination is to occur, adjusted to reflect the value of
our publicly traded equity securities classified as investments in marketable securities, as well as the profit
or loss impact, if any, on stockholders’ equity arising from investment activities, non-recurring gains or
losses on sales of business units, subsidiary common stock or similar transactions closed, as of the valuation
date (“E”) and the denominator of which is the number of outstanding common shares and common share
equivalents at the end of such fiscal quarter (“W,,”) and

(2) afraction, the numerator of which is 5.66 multiplied by the market factor (“M” or “market factor”),
multiplied by our operating income for the four fiscal quarters immediately preceding the price
determination, net of taxes, excluding investment activities, losses on impaired intangible assets, non-
recurring gains or losses on sales of business units, subsidiary common stock and similar items, and
including our equity in the income or loss of unconsolidated affiliates and the minority interest in income or
loss of consolidated subsidiaries (“P”), and the denominator of which is the weighted average number of
outstanding common shares and common share equivalents for those four fiscal quarters, as used by us in
computing diluted earnings per share (“W”).

The formula, shown as an equation, is as follows:

E N 5.66MP
Way W

Stock Price =

The number of outstanding common shares and common share equivalents described above in the formula
assumes that each share of Class B common stock is converted into. 20 shares of Class A common stock.

The board of directors first used a valuation formula in establishing the price of the Class A common stock
in 1972, The valuation formula has periodically been modified ever since. The market factor concept was first
added to the formula in 1973. The 5.66 factor was added to the formula in 1976 as a constant to cause the price
generated by the formula to reflect a fair market value of the Class A common stock. In 1984, the board of
directors, with the assistance of an outside appraisal firm, began its current practice of establishing the value of
the market factor to reflect the broad range of business, financial and market forces that also affect the fair
market value of the Class A common stock. In 2001, the board of directors approved the modifications of the
definitions of the “E” or the stockholders’ equity component and “P” or the earnings component of the formula.
Before approving these changes to the formula, the board of directors consulted with HLHZ and then determined
that these definitional changes were appropriate and that our valuation process would continue to generate a fair
market value of the Class A common stock within a broad range of financial criteria.

Other Valuation Considerations

In determining the price of the Class A common stock, the board of directors considers many relevant
factors, including:

« valuation input from HLHZ

+ the performance of the general securities markets and relevant industry groups
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« our historical financial performance versus comparable public companies
» the prospects for our future performance

+ the value of our investments

+ general economic conditions

+ general capital market considerations

« other factors the board of directors deems appropriate

Although orders to buy or sell shares of Class A common stock in the limited market must be entered prior
to the board’s determination of the stock price, this information is not made available to the board of directors
and is not a consideration in determining the price. However, if we elect not to purchase shares in the limited
market to fully balance an undersubscribed trade, this could impact both the current and subsequent valuations of
our stock.

Review of Stock Price

Our board of directors reviews the stock price at least four times each year, generally during its regularly
scheduled board meetings. These meetings are currently scheduled for April, June, September and December of
each year and are held approximately one week before the four predetermined trade dates. The board of directors
reviews the stock price during the period between a board meeting and the trade date to determine whether the
stock price continues to represent a fair market value, and if necessary, modifies the price. The board of directors
has authorized its stock policy committee to conduct this review, and, in some instances, the stock policy
committee has conducted this review. If a stock price modification is necessary, the stock policy committee or
the board of directors would apply the same valuation process used by the board of directors at a board meeting.
The stock policy committee modified the stock price on July 29, 2002 after it was determined that the stock price
established by the board of directors on July 12, 2002 no longer represented a fair market value.

Modification of Valuation Process

The board of directors has broad discretion to modify the valuation process. However, the board of directors
does not anticipate changing the valuation process unless:

* a change in the formula or any other aspect of the valuation process used to value the Class A common
stock is required under applicable law, or

« in the good faith exercise of its fiduciary duties and after consultation with our independent accountants
as to whether the change would result in a charge to earnings upon the sale of Class A common stock,
the board of directors, including a majority of the directors who are not our employees, determines that
the valuation process no longer results in a fair market value for the Class A common stock, or

in the good faith exercise of its fiduciary duties, the board of directors, including a majority of directors
who are not our employees, after consulting with an independent appraisal firm, determines that a
change in the formula or any other aspect of the valuation process is appropriate and that the stock price
established by the board of directors through the modified valuation process reflects a fair market value
of the Class A common stock.

Risk of Price Fluctuation

The price of the Class A common stock could be subject to fluctuations in the future due to a number of
factors, including:

« the impact of acquisitions, investments, joint ventures and divestitures that we may undertake

« the volatility of the market value of comparable public companies that are considered in our valuation
process and any publicly traded securities we may own
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* the mix of our commercial and international business as a proportion of our overall business and the
volatility associated with companies in these business areas

the impact of litigation, government investigations or other customer disputes on our operating
performance and future prospects ‘

the limited market trade imbalances, our inability to guarantee 100% liquidity in the quarterly trades,
regardless of the amount of the undersubscription, and the degree of liquidity actually provided to
stockholders by the limited market

the impact of any of the foregoing on HLHZ’s valuation analysis and the board of directors’ ultimate
determination of the stock price :

Stock Price Table

The following table sets forth information concerning the stock price for the Class A common stock, the
applicable price for the Class B common stock and each of the variables contained in the formula, including the
market factor, in effect for the periods beginning on the dates indicated. The Class A common stock has been
rounded to the nearest penny. There can be no assurance that the Class A common stock or the Class B common
stock will in the future provide returns comparable to historical returns or that the price will not decline.

The values of the variables of the stock price formula presented in the following table reflect the financial
data that existed at the time of each stock price determination and have not been adjusted to reflect the
restatement of our financial statements in fiscal years 2003, 2004 and the first quarter of fiscal 2005 or Telcordia
discontinued operations. See “Controls and Procedures” under Item 9A in Part II of our 2005 Annual Report on
Form 10-K for additional information concerning the restatement.

Price Price
“E” or “W* or Per Share Per Share
Adjusted “W, “P” or Weighted  of Class A of Class B Percentage
Market Stockholders’ or Shares Adjusted Avg. Shares Common Common Price

Date Factor Equity(1) Outstanding(2) Earnings(3) Outstanding(d)  Stock Stock  Change(5)
April 11,2003 ......... 1.90  $2,006,774,000 190,974,359  $349,930,000 203,232,903 $29.02 $580.40 1.5%
July 11,2003 .......... 190 $2,102,168,000 192,229,993  $358,704,000 197,175,777 $30.50 $610.00 51%
October 10,2003 .... ... 1.90  $2,133.849,000 190,791,535  $368,075,000 192,079,951 $31.79 $635.80 42 %
January 9,2004 ........ 220 $2,196,927.000 190,348,029  $380,148,000 189,499,866 $36.52 $730.40 149 %
April 16,2004 ......... 230 $2,190,267,000 191,418,123  $375,064,000 188,561,115 $37.34 $746.80 22 %
July 16,2004 .......... 220 $2.261,422,000 191,943,098 $386,692,000 188,653,945 $37.31 $746.20 0.1)%
October 8,2004 ........ 230 $2,283,435,000 189,671,084 $378,169.000 188,637,287 $38.14 $762.80 22%
January 14,2005 ....... 2.50  $2,304,706,000 188,204,746  $376,716,000  188,302.652 $40.55 $811.00 63 %

(1) “E” is our stockholders’ equity at the end of the fiscal quarter immediately preceding the date on which a price determination is to occur,
adjusted to reflect the value of publicly traded equity securities classified as investments in marketable securities, as well as the profit or
loss impact, if any, on stockholders’ equity arising from investment activities, non-recurring gains or losses on sales of business units,
subsidiary common stock, or similar transactions closed, as of the valuation date.

(2) “W," is the number of outstanding common shares and common share equivalents at the end of the fiscal quarter immediately preceding
the date on which a price determination is to occur.

(3) “P”is our operating income for the four fiscal quarters immediately preceding the price determination, net of taxes, excluding investment
activities, losses on impaired intangible assets, non-recurring gains or losses on sales of business units, subsidiary common stock and
similar items, and including our equity in the income or loss of unconsolidated affiliates and the minority interest in income or loss of
consolidated subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of these items on a pre-tax basis is disclosed as “‘segment operating income” in our
consolidated quarterly and annual financial statements filed with the SEC. The operations of our INTESA joint venture have been
classified as discontinued operations as of January 31, 2003 and are no longer reflected in operating income. Beginning with the April
11, 2003 stock price determination, the “P” variable of the formula no longer includes the operations of INTESA.

(4) “W” is the weighted average number of outstanding common shares and common share equivalents for the four fiscal quarters
immediately preceding the price determination, as used by us in computing diluted earnings per share.

(5) Value shown represents the percentage change in the price per share of Class A'common stock from the prior valuation.
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Holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock

As of March 25, 2003, there were 32,753 holders of record of Class A common stock and 178 holders of
record of Class B common stock. Substantially all of the Class A common stock and the Class B common stock
is owned of record or beneficially by our current and former employees, directors and consultants and their
respective family members and by our various employee benefit plans.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. The payment of any future
dividends will be at the discretion of the board of directors and will depend upon, among other things, future
earnings, capital requirements, our general financial condition and general business conditions.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

As of March 25, 2005, there were 1,406,947 shares of our Class A common stock outstanding which were
issued by us to non-affiliates since February 1, 2003 in transactions that were not registered under the Securities
Act. These shares are considered “restricted securities” (as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities
Act) and, subject to any contractual restrictions and our right of first refusal, may become eligible for resale
under Rule 144(k) as follows:

Date Holding Period Expires Number of Class A Shares
April 11,2005 ... e e 734,630
April 18,2005 .. ... 99,315
October 6, 2005 ... o 238,277
October 17,2005 .. .. it e e 27,158
December 19,2005 .. ... .. e 38,899
January 16,2006 .. ... .. .. 4,521
February 20,2006 . ... ... .0 74,807
October 6, 2006 .. ... ... o 43,586
April 19,2006 ... . . 38,545
August 8,2006 ... ... .. e 107,209
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Purchases of Equity Securities by Science Applications International Corporation (“SAIC”)

(d)
Maximum Number

(c) (or Approximate
Total Number of Dollar Value) of
(a) Shares Purchased as Shares that May
Total Number of (b) Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Shares Average Price  Announced Plansor  Under the Plans or
Period Purchased @@  Paid per Share Programs Programs
November 1, 2004 —
November 30,2004 ................ 308,839 $37.98 — —
December 1, 2004 —
December 31,2004 ................ 316,788 $38.12 — —
January 1, 2005 -
January 31,2005 ............ ... ... 3,999,226 $40.25 — —

Total ... 4,624,853 $39.95 — —

(1) Includes shares purchased by SAIC or affiliated purchasers as follows:

November December January

Upon surrender by stockholders of previously owned shares in
payment of the exercise price of non-qualified stock options .... 175,665 200,379 981,541

From former employees, directors, consultants or other entities
pursuant to SAIC’s right of repurchase upon termination of
affiliation as set forth in its Certificate of Incorporation or

pursuant to SAIC’s contractual right of repurchase . ........... 128,299 109,691 27,923
In the limited market;

by SAIC — —  2,441441

by the trustees of SAIC’s retirementplans .. ................. — — 40,228
From SAIC’s retirement plans . ..., — — 490,215
In privately negotiated transactions .......................... 4,875 6,718 17,878
Total . e 308,839 316,788 3,999,226

(2) Does not include (i) shares purchased by the agent of SAIC’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan for the benefit
of the plan’s participants, (ii) shares issued directly to the trusts of SAIC’s retirement plans or SAIC’s non-
qualified stock plans for the benefit of the plans’ participants, (iii) shares forfeited to SAIC without the
payment of any consideration to the holder or (iv) newly issued shares acquired by SAIC in connection with
employee exercise of non-qualified stock options to satisfy employees statutory tax withholding obligations
related to the options.

125




[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

126



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

127




o

oo 0 0 7 T TEXECUTIVE ‘QFFICERS*

Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chairman of the Board

Corparate Executive Vice
Presidents

Chief Operating Officer
D.P. Andrews*

Chief Financial Officer
T.E. Darcy*

Strategic Investments
W.A. Roper, Jr.*

Chief Administrative Officer
J H. Warner, Jr.*

K.C. Dahlberg

2 X et

Executive Vice Pr

Senigr Vice Presidents

Chief Engineering and
Technology Officer
D.H. Foley*

Business Development and
Government Affairs
A.L. Punaro

Strategic Initiatives
J.P. Walkush*

Group Presidents

C.M. Albero*
M.V. Hughes, IIT*
L.J. Peck*

L.B. Prior, I
G.T. Singley, III*
T.P. Smith, IlI

Controller
PN. Pavlics*

General Counsel and

Secretary
D.E. Scott*

Treasurer
S.P. Fisher*

Commercial and
International
C.F. Koontz

*Executive officers designated by the Board of Directors in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Executive Vice President,

Former Executive Vice
President, SAIC

A.K.Jones
University Professor,
Computer Sciences,
University of Virginia

W.A. Downing
General, U.S. Army (Ret )

H.M.J. Kraemen, Jr.
Former Chairman,
President and Chief
Executive Officer, Baxter
international, Inc.

J.A. Drummond
Vice Chairman, BellSouth
Corp. (Ret)

C.B. Malone
President, Financial &
Management Consulting
Inc.
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